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Minutes:

Chairman Keiser: Opened the hearing on HB1127.
Adam Hamm~North Dakota Insurance Commissioner: (see attached testimony).
Chairman Keiser:

Representative Ruby: | understand the mechanics of what you are trying to do; couldn't a
lot of this be preempted by prior authorization of some of these services? Wouldn't it be
simpler to get approval prior to the process starting?

Adam Hamm: | don't disagree with what you are saying but the reality under PPAC, they have
set forth this requirement that has to take place regardiess or not whether there has been prior
approval. Once the claim has been given, submitted and once you start working your way through
utilization review grievance process and external review, under PPACA and under the previous
rules from DOL and HHS, their promulgation of the rules, this is the requirement we have.

Representative N Johnson: Two questions | have, when they talk on page 24-26, the
independent review organizations and that you are to certify them, what are independent
organizations?

Adam Hamm: These are folks that are used currently both in North Dakota and around the country
as independent 3™ parties for external review. There are certain requirements that have to be met
to be an IRO Independent Review organization. Yes, they have to be an independent third party.
Representative N Johnson: The department selects who will be that independent reviewer.

Adam Hamm: From a list that we wouid maintain.

Representative N Johnson: The claimant wouldn't have any control over who would review it?

Adam Hamm: Correct.
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Representative N Johnson: The days, is it business or calendar days.

Adam Hamm: We will clear it.

Representative Nathe: Are we under a time line with this bill like HB 1126 or can we wait until
special session?

Adam Hamm: Yes, we are under a time line and this summer the HHS will be going state to state.
Representative Vigesaa: Is this bill an entirely NAIC model?

Adam Hamm: Yes, is NAIC model, it harmonizes those 3 models, the external review, the
grievance procedure and utilization review. We are willing to work to make sure we are in
compliance with federal law so we don't lose control over this issue.

Representative Vigesaa: Are states are all submitting legislation with model act?

Adam Hamm: We can get you that exact list of that.

Representative Clark: This process is going to apply to all health insurance claims, not just those
involved employers of ERISA?

Adam Hamm: Yes, but there is a difference between grandfather and non-grandfathered plans,
but if you take that out of the mix, then yes.

Chairman Keiser: How will the definition of essential health care benefits impact these review
process? Once they are defined then, those are primary in subject to review or even the non
essential are open to review?

Adam Hamm: My understanding is, this will apply regardless of the essential health care benefits,
which will be base line offered exchange.

Chairman Keiser: Has there been any form of analysis for requests from the various heaith care
insurance providers as to what this will cost and the subsequent impact on premium rates will be?

Adam Hamm: I'm not sure.

Chairman Keiser: It may add to costs for providers?

Adam Hamm: From what I've heard, it may.

Chairman Keiser: Anyone eise to testify in support of HB11277?

Rob St Aubyn~Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota: (see attached testimony).
Chairman Keiser: Questions from the committee?

Representative Clark: Do | understand that you and other insurance companies in North Dakota
already meeting the requirement of PPACA and the ERISA without this particular bill?

Rob St Aubyn: Not in all phases, we do not have an external review bill in North Dakota law.
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Representative Clark: Why will this cost you so much money if you are already meeting these
requirements?

Rob St Aubyn: Part of it is the difference in the appeals process.
Jane Nephew~Medical Management Department-BCBS: We have a corporate project and any
new changes, we estimate number of hours and staff. This will require system and we include

those fees as well.

Chairman Keiser: How much discussion did you have prior with them today in trying to address
your position?

Rob St Aubyn: This is a short time, we received this on Thursday and we were to send comments
on Friday and it was 160 pages and it was impossible to do.

Representative Boe: Would we be running into trouble when we reference the federal law with
transferring our power to them. Is that constitutional?

Rob St Aubyn: I'm not a constitutional lawyer, but this has happened may times.

Chairman Keiser: Anyone else here to testify in support of HB 1127, in opposition, neutral?
Closes the hearing on HB 1127.
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Chairman Keiser: Opens the work committee session on HB 1127. Representative Clark
what does this bill do?

Representative Clark: It implemented 3 model NCOILs acts into one bill that give the
insurance commissioner the authority to regulate the federal PPACA as it was passed in
July.

Chairman Keiser: You have 2 amendments before you. One is similar to the amendment
that we have placed on the other bill simply delaying the regulation components of PPACA
until November or the following general session. The second amendment, if we look
through the 96 pages, in adopting the NAIC models, the NAIC went further in many areas
than PPACA required. PPACA rules are being written daily and we don’t have a majority of
them. Of the rules and regulations that we do have, some of these regulation standards
goes beyond what is required in the federal law. What the 2" amendment does and it is a
hog house amendment, this 2 pages replaces all this and all it says that it shall not go
beyond the minimal requirements of PPACA relative to regulation.

Chairman Keiser: Committee, what are your wishes?

Representative Ruby: To be consistent with the other amendments, we need to remain in
control of what happens and to what extent the regulations are.

Representative Ruby: Moves to adopt amendment 01001.
Representative Clark: Second.
Voice vote, motion carried.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?
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Representative Ruby: Moves to adopt amendment 01002.

Representative Frantsvog: Second.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Voice vote, motion carried.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion? What are the wishes of the committee?
Representative Frantsvog: Moves a Do Pass as Amended.

Representative Clark: Second.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Roll call vote on HB 1127 for a Do Pass as Amended with 12 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent
and Representative Clark is the carrier.
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Chairman Keiser: I've been holding the bill at the request of the Insurance Department.
This is an extensive bill that incorporated 3 different NAIC model acts into 1 bill. We hog
housed that bill with a 2 page amendment suggested by BCBS which said that the state will
apply and meet any of the standards of the federal law but not exceed them in any way.
We have a significant disagreement between the department & providers. The department
believes and has had some verbal communication with HHS and they can't get it in writing
that that's unacceptable, they want more. Some of the providers have argued that can't be
because the ARRISA market, the self market, all they have to do is apply the standards.
So, why have dual standards, one for the group market and one for the self insured market.
The department is working on a set of amendments, which no one has seen and they will
have them tomorrow afternoon. We want to do the right thing. The department feels we
should provide guidance on the regulation of complaints by consumers on health care and
they have already consented through their amendments, which | have not seen, some
accommodating of those concerns expressed by the insurance providers.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Are there any providers here that can share their concerns?

Rod St Aubyn~BCBS of ND: It adopts 3 model acts to incorporate provision of the appeal
process. Our amendments that you adopted, basically say that the state regulations, rules
and the law will be the same as federal regulations as the PPACA law relates to that. |
think that the insurance department feels it needs to be more specific because of their
discussions with HHS. Our argument and one of the concerns we have is the discussions
about changing some of the standards that already have been adopted by HHS. HHS has
indicated a willingness to back off on some of these provisions. The fear we have is if you
adopt a set state law, then we will potentially have 2 appeal processes, the self funded and
fully insured. If you adopt some standard, whatever that may be, that is what we have to
live with for the fully insured market and if they relax anything between now and July 1, we
have to be in compliance with all of this. Then we have 2 different appeal processes. |f
there is going to be significant differences, we don’t know what those changes are. If you
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adopt our amendments then we are assured that if they do make changes to federal law, in
effect our state law will change accordingly.

Vice Chairman Kasper: What if federal standards are such, if we are not in session, the
insurance commissioner would object to and to abide by the federal standards. What
would the bill allow in the circumstance then?

Rod St Auybn: It wouldn’'t make any difference because insurance companies have to
abide by the federal law. That is the minimum standard requirement and you could make
state law that's more stringent than the federal law but you can't make state law less
stringent. We still have to abide by the law.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Have you been in discussion with the insurance department
about coming to these amendments to make it workable from the insurance’s company's
perspective or are the amendments going to be something brand new that you are not
aware of where it's going?

Rod St Auybn: We are not sure what their amendments are. The fear is we are not
going to have enough time to review them. You ask “what are some of the differences in
the proposed bill and amendments”. One of the things is PPACA is an appeals for the
consumer. What the proposed bill does is it extends appeal for providers as well. It also
provides a provision in federal law, a deal at the option of the insurer, you can actually
extend another level of appeal and it's a voluntary appeal process by the insurer. This also
have a provision that requires for emergency room services. If insurance has a
requirement for a pre-authorization, which we don’t, | don't know why you would need a
pre-authorization for emergency services. If you do or don't, this current bill requires that
you have to have medical staff available for those types of appeals 24-7. The Insurance
Department has indicated their amendments will take care of most of these. If stili does
not take into account the fear that we have, if HHS makes changes, it's still the state law.

Chairman Keiser: Two things committee members, we don’'t have to deal with this today.
We are going to take it up tomorrow. There is a big a big appropriation associated with th|s
bill, but it is in the insurance department budget, not in the bill.

Rod St Auybn: | just thought of one other component that is different, under current law,
unless the state has specified and under the NAIC model act, for independent external
review, the federal law says the insurance company must hire independent external
reviewers. They have to have 3 different external reviewers that rotate, so it's not the same
reviewer, The difference in this law is that the Insurance Department must establish this.
One of the issues in the current bill where it affords extends it to providers. All the appeal
processes have to be paid by the insurer. The consumer never has to pay for an appeal
which is somewhat understandable. From the provider standpoint, if they extend there,
there is no disincentive to not appeal any changes between the provider and the insurer.

Representative Clark: If the bill passes in current form, does the 27 million dollars in the
Insurance Commissioner's budget go away?
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Rod St Auybn: | think most of the expense in the Insurance Department appropriation
really doesn't have to do so much with the appeal process. It has more to do with the
exchange.

Chairman Keiser: It doesn't go away.

Rod St Auybn: Part of it goes because the commissioner wouldn't have to hire an
appeals reviewer.

Chairman Keiser: The reason this is critical is that there is a July 2011 time line on the
appeals requirements. This is one bill that we have to deal with and cannot put off into
special session.

Rod St Auybn: Actually the law is already in effect where we are suppose to be
complying. What HHS did is they delayed and said that they were not going to do any
enforcement action because this is evolving and they are trying to get the state to figure out
what they are going to do on the appeal process, so they will delay until July 1, 2011.
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Chairman Keiser: I'm the prime sponsor. This bill deals with the external utilization
review and was a computation of 3 NAIC model bills. It did put into law, several extensions
of PPACA as we currently know it. We put the amendment on that to say, “don't take any
action if the action can be delayed until the next special or general session”. We also hog
housed the amendments that said in effect, don’'t exceed any of the requirements that
PPACA might implement as you develop the state law as to external utilization review and
etc. The Insurance Department indicated that they had verbal conversations with HHS
and HHS won't send a letter saying that that is unacceptable but verbally said we would like
the states to do more. The Insurance Department has developed a set of amendments and
they became available yesterday at 4:43. | have not had a chance to review them. We will
not have any time to work on it today.
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Chairman Keiser: Opened the work session on HB 1127. | did request that we bring back
HB 1127 and reconsider our action. It's one of the 3 bills that the tax department
developed in response to PPACA. We hogged housed this bill with an amendment and the
tnsurance Department didn't catch it. They asked if they could come back and appear
before the committee and explain 2 things. One, why they would suggest that we need to
put back the original language with amendment and two to put the amendments on it.

Rebecca Ternes~Deputiy Commissioner for the North Dakota Insurance Department:
(See attached testimony).

Vice Chairman Kasper: Can you explain what the guts of the bill with the internal and
external audits and appeals so we can get our minds back on what the issue is we are
trying to address?

Rebecca Ternes: Basically if you get denied a procedure from an insurance carrier, this
covers more than just a simple procedure; you have the ability to ask the insurance
company to be reconsidered. There is an internal process that the carrier has to go
through internally, both by utilization and grievance and then when the carrier says no, you
get a another chance at an external appeal. In this case, with this bill, what the federal law
requires is that they would come to the insurance department to assign an external appeal
entity, which would not be us. What it is that is significantly different than what we have not
now is it lays out very specific time frames for all of these things to happen. Right now
those details do not exist in our law. This makes it consistent and makes it comply with
federal law. Really, it's what they are already doing in much of their business in the state of
North Dakota.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Can you give us the difference between self insured reviews are
different compared to fully insured and how this bill would address that if all?
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Rebecca Ternes: | not exactly what the statement was. This does bring it closer to what
is happening in the self insured business.

Vice Chairman Kasper. We are told under the self insured plans that the Insurance
Department has no authority because that's an ARISSA plan. So we are dealing with the
fully insured only and what you are proposing isn’t going to be similar to how self insured
plans are doing anyway, is that what we are going to see?

Rebecca Ternes: Yes, that true.

Chairman Keiser: Who pays for the external review when they come to the Insurance
Department?

Rebecca Ternes: The company will pay for the external review.

Chairman Keiser: Although there is no fiscal note on this bill, is there in the Insurance
Department a fiscal impact from this bill?

Rebecca Ternes: \We think we can absorb this because it becomes an assignment out to
an external company. What we would do is create a RFP a list of companies that want to
provide these services in North Dakota. Then we would randomly assign as these come in.
They don’t have that many that get to this point and won't be that big of an impact and we
are going to absorb it.

Melissa Hauer~General Counsel for the Insurance Department: We have an
amendment written and it would revise the original bill. Basically what it would do is to
incorporate one of the changes that BCBS recommended which were to allow
grandfathered plans the choice, whether to stick with the appeal they have right now or to
incorporate this new process. What it would do is also remove 2 sections that BCBS
expressed some concerns about and other companies did as well. It would take out
section 26.1-36.8-06, which is on page 84 of original bill and that will take out the whole
section that deals with standard reviews of grievances that don't involve an adverse
determination. It would also take out the next section which is 26.1-26.8-07, which would
have incorporated what was call the voluntary level of review of grievances. That would
have added another layer of review at the company level and we agreed to that change.
The federal PPACA was to say let's piggy back on what the self insured plans are already
doing and let's adopt a process for the fully insured. One other change that a different
company asked for was companies have to have somebody on staff 24 hours a day, 7 days
a week for these emergencies type claims that come in.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Can you give us a bottom line comparison, what your
amendment is as to the Blue Cross’.

Melissa Hauer: OQur bill with the amendments that | just went through, would satisfy the
Department of Labor regulations to lay out this process for how you appeal a decision of an
insurance company, the internal process that the company has to use and then the external
process. Comparing the Insurance Department and the BCBS amendment is difficult to do
because their amendment basically cites to federal law and to code of federal regulations,
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but it doesn't say which sections it referring to. My answer is that | don't know because we
don’t have citations to the regulations.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Under the BCBS amendments as we have them, it does not
provide specifically for an internal and external review process. It simply cites federal code
to which is not germane to the health insurance side of things or you couldn'’t find where it's
germane, is that correct?

Melissa Hauer: That correct. | think { understand what they intended but their citations
iIsn't clear because they don’t say what sections. | googled the code federal regulations
and came up with 4 pages of sections of federal regulations. The consumer is going to
have to figure out what is the appeals section.

Vice Chairman Kasper: With the BCBS amendments, it appears that our consumers
wouid be to appeal would be going to some federal entity and not have a clear way to have
state oversight and appeal process because it's becoming eliminated the way you
understand.

Melissa Hauer: That's the danger; I'm not saying that is what is going to happen. When
we talked with HHS we were comfortable with the process that was laid out under the
original bill. You will be able to control your own external review process. We also asked
them “what happens if we take everything out and refer to the federal law and regulations™?
They didn't like that but they said that they would not disapprove that. They were
uncomfortable with that.

Representative Ruby: We heard this set of amendments basically the goal was to keep
the regulation within the state but to limit the scope to minimum requirements of federal
government. You referenced to the codes that are not so easy to the consumer to search
the federal level but if you are required to maintain the minimal requirements at that point,
can't you extract that and that is our policy for the state at this time. |s that what conveyed
to the public through the Insurance Department.

Melissa Hauer: I'm not sure what you are totally asking.

Representative Ruby: If we are asking if minimum requirements required for appeals is to
be what the federal government is required at a minimum level, you could extract that and
have that written in rules to address that so the public can use the insurance department to
gain information as to how the appeals process works.

Melissa Hauer: The federal law, PPACA, says that the state has to have a process in its
state law. HHS did indicate that they thought if we would put into rule in our state that
would muster. We can certainly extract and refer to our state law what the federal law
says. We can do that, but part of the problem is the amendments don’t make clear which
federal regulations they are referring to and if they change in the future, we are stuck with
what is in our state law. State law cannot adopt future amendments in federal law.

Chairman Keiser: We have heard the other side of the discussion said that is just is the
reason we have to reference PPACA if we adopt this. If we had passed this bill out the way
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it was, it went beyond what PPACA required, you have amendments that theoretically take
it back to the current level of PPACA’s requiring and so what happens if we pass this into
law and they now reduce the standards significantly at the federal level, where are we
then?

Melissa Hauer: We have a process that says what our appeal process is.

Chairman Keiser: We are stuck with it for 2 years. That's the committee’s dilemma. Are
there other places in the code where we make reference to the state standard that will meet
federal law?

Melissa Hauer: Yes, in our insurance title specifically, there is a reference to HEPA and
Public Service Act as well.

Vice Chairman Kasper: If we do adopt your amendments, we have at least procedures in
statue which satisfy HHS according to your best understanding now and our citizens will be
able to have an appeal process in North Dakota, compared to going through the federal
channel, is that correct?

Melissa Hauer: Yes, that's correct.

Chairman Keiser: | don't believe that's correct. If we adopt the bill as it is, the
department has full authority to implement PPACA and whatever standards they have, the
state will control. We don’t require people; based on this amendment to go to the federal
government, we are saying in law the North Dakota’s law will be the minimum standards
requirement of PPACA and therefore we are retaining the authority.

Melissa Hauer: Maybe I'm misunderstanding the questions, are you saying under the
original bill or the hogged housed bill?

Chairman Keiser: As hog housed.

Melissa Hauer: That we would maintain state control under that? Based on our
conversations with HHS, | can’t guarantee that, they were very concerned with a state law
that just references a federal law. They did not like the idea that the process was not laid
out somewhere in a rule or law.

Chairman Keiser: But they can't circumvent our state law if our law says we will meet
their standards. They don't want to set up for one state a review process.

Melissa Hauer: That may be, | don't know.
Vice Chairman Kasper: Could we state that we will set up the internal and external review

according to what the department is proposing and in addition to that state that PPACA
changes state guidelines, then the department could modify?
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Melissa Hauer: The legislature can delegate authority as long as you give sufficient
guidelines to an agency as to what you want done in that situation, yes, you could delegate
that authority.

Chairman Keiser: Couldn't we delegate that authority with the amendment?

Melissa Hauer: Yes, you mean something that would say that the federal law changed.
Our current amendment would not go there and their amendment doesn't address that
either.

Rod St Aubyn~Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota: (See attached testimony).

Representative Clark: Is your amendment that's under attack, is your opinion that your
amendment is superior the one we were just offered.

Rod St Austyn: Yes, it is because that way we have assurances. At least it's going to be
the minimum of the PPACA and it won't go beyond. Even with the amendments where
they have taken off a few things, the department still takes us beyond PPACA. The other
option and it would be a simple amendment, would be to take all the components of
PPACA and lay them out in state statue. | can assure you that the provision in HB 1127
with their amendments does go beyond the minimum requirements of PPACA.

Representative Clark: Does it concern you that the amendment that we voted on last
week, doesn't allow us to do it?

Rod St Austyn: This is the first that | heard this and | will have to check with our attorneys.

Representative Clark: | do believe the amendment, the way we voted on it, does allow
the Insurance Department to do their regulation, it’s just that they don't want to go there.

Chairman Keiser: They don't need all those references because they are writing a bill
with all of the specific details in it.

Rod St Austyn: It is our contention that with the amendments the department will have the
authority to regulate the PPACA provisions of the appeals, utilizations and all the issues.
They will have the authority, the same as they do not have authority in all examples that |
gave you before.

Chairman Keiser: Other questions?

Rod St Austyn: Our concern is the consumer is going to see such a rate shock the way it
is if PPACA does go into effect the way it is and we are trying to minimize costs. We don't
object at all to complying with federal requirements, we just object to going beyond that.

Chairman Keiser: The department raised one of the concerns that the amendment that is
on the bill currently, does not adequately reference it. The department would have the
authority to generate the rules based on the final resolution of the rules by HHS. Do you
have any problem adding any language giving them specific authority?
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Rod St Austyn: | reference you to HB 1125 and that is the enforcement piece. | would
argue that alone gives the commissioner the authority to do this. We are talking about the
appeals provisions under PPACA.

Vice Chairman Kasper: |s BCBS supporting HB 1125?
Rod St Austyn: Yes.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Then you are supporting it so there would be no problem putting
the same language in here.

Rod St Austyn: We wouldn't have any problem with that. We think the state should
regulate this provision versus the federal government.

Chairman Keiser: What is the July date that we as a state have to have our rules in
effect? Do we need the emergency clause?

Rod St Austyn: By July 1, all insurers must comply. Actually, the law went into effect o
comply but they are in the process of making changes and they are delaying enforcement
until of July 1, 2011.

Chairman Keiser: If it was left as it is, do we need the emergency clause?

Rod St Austyn: That would be a question for the department. It's immaterial what the
state does, as a health plan we have to comply with the federal law.

Chairman Keiser: The state has had conversations with HHS and HHS has expressed
some concern that North Dakota is not developing its own model. Do you think HHS has
some concerns of our hog housed amendment approach, do you think that is a legitimate
concern of HHS?

Rod St Austyn: No | don't. |If they say it's detailed enough, how can the federali
government enforce those same laws for the selff funded? It is already detailed in federal
law what is required.

Chairman Keiser: But Rod it isn't, you just said that they are changing them.

Rod St Austyn: They are changing them but the existing regulations and the laws are out
there. Our self funded, we are going to have to comply no matter what and federal
government is the one that enforces that. You have to understand, the Department of
Labor, they have come to do some audits of some of our self funded plans before.

Chairman Keiser: We are not talking about self-funded.
Rod St Austyn: | don't see that's an issue because if they feel this isn’t clear enough, then

how can it be enough for what they are going to have to enforce? The same law applies to
both.
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Rebecca Ternes: | will have Melissa speak to the lack of detail in PPACA. We are talking
about three areas, utilization review, grievance and external appeals. On external appeals,
they specifically refer to a model in NAIC in the law. In talking to them, they also referred
us to the other two models. They assure us that if we go down that road in the state of
North Dakota, we will retain that state control. We would not have brought this to you but
we thought it was necessary to make sure we do not risk losing state control. That is why
we reached all of the companies on this bill. Three of the four companies are completely
fine with this bill. One in particular worked with us on very detailed amendments where
they did identify that it went beyond PPACA where there wouid be costs. Most said we
could live with it the way it is. We went back and forth with HHS on the detailed
amendments, maintaining state control is important. With the BCBS amendments that risk
arises tremendously. We can’'t guarantee one way or the other where it lands because
HHS will not determine this until closer to July 1. This bill is not what PPACA says because
PPACA doesn'’t have any details; it's setting up a system that will pass muster with HHS.

Chairman Keiser: Committee members might want to know what rules they have
established.

Melissa Hauer: PPACA leaves us in a strange place because what it does is, it doesn’t
give us any details. PPACA says that state law has to have a sufficient internal and
external review process. To say let's do what PPACA requires, it doesn't give any detail,
that's the problem. HHS is responsible for enforcing this law and what do they do? They
make regulations to try to give some detail and those regulations say “we know there is
already this is process out that self funded plans use, let's piggyback and incorporate that
here”. You have federal and all of these regulations. If you say that we are just going to
incorporate the PPACA, | think we are talking about something that doesn't exist. To
maintain state control, we must pass federal muster to do that. There is a federal agency
that is going to look at our process and say, yes or no that it protect our consumers. If the
federal agency says no it doesn’'t, when the consumer wants to appeal to an external
review, you will have to send them to the federal government. We have heard concern
from HHS that just referring to a federal law that refers to federal regulations of three
federal agencies’ treasuries, have all adopted regulations on this and that that's not
sufficient. They say that what concerns them. Then there is the idea that if those
regulations changed, relaxed, struck down or repealed whatever you put in our state law is
what you get on the day you enact it. You don't get to incorporate future changes. Our
Supreme Court has already said that's not allowed. To use that for a reason for doing it
that way, | don’t understand.

Chairman Keiser: Whatever we pass is effective on that date. PPACA is over 2000
pages and it contains nothing other than bad information but it does indicate and delegate
authority to develop rules. HHS, Department of Labor and other departments, HHS has a
full time staff on developing rules. They have come up with some and they are under
review and possibly will be modified, those rules they develop will become our minimum
standards that must be met regardless of what we do here. Even if we pass a law that
didn’t meet those, they would supersede on July 1 our state law. What they identify will be
the minimum law and we can go beyond that. Why wouldn't it be the case recognizing that
if we were to pass the amended version that we have before us and it become law, that
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any addition standards that were implemented by HHS they would become part of the law.
Their current standards do require you to have utilization, external and internal review, they
just maybe haven’t defined those things are, is that the issue?

Melissa Hauer: In my opinion, the rules are already there. | have not heard from HHS that
they are intending to change or relax rules, that is something we have not heard.

Chairman Keiser: So if we adopt those rules that are there with our amended version, we
are in compliance.

Melissa Hauer: Which amended version?
Chairman Keiser: The BCBS amendment.

Melissa Hauer: Then the one concern that | have is that their citations to the code of
federal regulations may not be correct and don’t cite to anything. That’s one problem.

Chairman Keiser: That's a legitimate issue.

Melissa Hauer: If the federal regulations would change, our law is still stuck on the day
that it was enacted.

Chairman Keiser: If they became less restrictive, our law would be in effect but if they got
more restrictive the federal law would supersede.

Melissa Hauer: What is going to happen on July 1, the federal government is going to look
at what whatever our process is in state law.

Chairman Keiser: If we say you have you're final rules and those are the rules we will
adopt, nothing more, what can be the problem?

Melissa Hauer: | don't think there is a problem if you are clear on which rules you are
talking about.

Representative Ruby: If the insurance company has to provide that to their insured, you
can have that on hand to notify people if they call you instead? You have approval of what
the insurance policies are and you have that on record. They could call you and you could
provide that information for them couldn’t you.

Melissa Hauer: Yes, that won't influence the federal government when it looks at our state
law and decides whether we have an appropriate process or not.

Representative Ruby: But that's what the chairman is talking about. The process is
approved because it is the requirement of the self-insured, we are referencing the correct
areas of the code and the other area part is notifying the people about the appeals process,
correct?

Melissa Hauer: Again, there is a question about if whether that will pass muster with HHS.
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Representative Ruby: That' a different issue than the notification of the process.
Melissa Hauer: Correct.
Chairman Keiser: Further questions?

Vice Chairman Kasper: | would like clarification on the citation on the federal law that the
department has expressed their concerns and perhaps the department should sit down and
try to come to an agreement. There appears to be conflicting positions, that is a key part to
what this bili is about, and it has to be done.

Chairman Keiser: If we stay with the amendment, | concur. We need the parties and your
attorneys involved. We will ask the department and BC to work on that. We will give you
untii Wednesday morning. The Department, if we need a declarative statement to the
current bill saying not only do the current date it becomes law, we are adopting the
standard identified by PPACA, HHS and everyone else, but the insurance department will
be responsible for implemention our plan.
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Health carrier external review, utilization review and grievance procedures; limitation of
health insurance company risks, utilization review and independent external reviews.

Committee Work Session Minutes:

Chairman Keiser: Opens the work session on HB 1127.
Rebecca Ternes~North Dakota Insurance Department: (See attached testimony).

Vice Chairman Kasper: A comment more than a question. I'm disappointed that the
department and the BCBS didn’t sit down and talk.

Rebecca Ternes: We met in the parking lot and we did discuss again. The department
made several amendments to meet the needs of BCBS and the other three companies. |
again, why isn’t that enough and there’s no harm here, there was no willingness to move.

Vice Chairman Kasper: A meeting in the parking was poor judgment on your part.

Representative Ruby: Could you explain to me how the provisions in the amended bill
are less vague than the language we have in HB 1125.

Rebecca Ternes: HB 1125 is the enforcement piece. Those amendments were not in our
original language in HB 1125. Our original language refers to enforcing the entire law of
PPACA. If you recall that on Monday we discussed the citations that BCBS put in, cited to
several different code of federal regulation that are much larger than this. In areas of the
code that have only a littie to do with health care reform, not in total and that was part of our
problem with those citations. It makes it difficult for someone who isn't an attorney or
someone who is just reading those regulations to be able to figure out what is the law in the
state of North Dakota.

Representative Ruby: If the laws that deals with self-insured plans is in place and
understood, the intention of this is to mirror them as much as possible, how is it less vague
than all of PPACA which is completely vague?
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Rebecca Ternes: The reference to PPACA is to the specific law and to the language
within the law. Whatever exists that day is the iaw, that's the intent. If you had to follow
these regulations as a layperson, it's extremely difficult. We thought the better approach
would be to lay it out in law and make it simple for industry and consumers. We only have
one opponent in this issue.

Chairman Keiser: Because they didn’t meet, this is not necessarily what I'm supporting, |
did request Legislative Council what we had discussed last time in the form of the
amendment. It's an expansion on page two of citing to the CFR and USC code. (see
attached amendment). Reads section three that was added. This amendment is a slight
expansion and we have before you the two positions. The question is before the
committee, we have to take additional action, that is to take this amendment or we need to
bring it back, restore it to its original condition and place the Insurance Department’s
amendments on the bill.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Would it help strengthen our position with HHS, if in front of the
amendments starting with “if federal laws” if we said something like it is the intent of North
Dakota or the Legislature to total comply with the rules of HHS so that we maintain state
control, would that mean anything?

Chairman Keiser: | have no objection for Legislative Council to add an additions language
to make it clear as possible what we are trying to achieve.

Rod St Aubyn: There is a typo on page three. Vice Chairman Kasper suggestion maybe
covered in the previous sentence.

Vice Chairman Kasper: | understand that part, but if we can even state in the bill that it is
the intent that we will, | thought it might strengthen it even more.

Chairman Keiser: Itis the legislative intent of the 2011 session to ...

Vice Chairman Kasper: comply with HHS so the state of North Dakota is totally in control
of the regulation of the internal and external review process.

Representative Ruby: Do we put the words “intent” language in the bill?

Chairman Keiser: North Dakota shall comply with. The minute we say that, the intent is
imputed. We have two options here, what are your wishes.

Representative M Nelson: Looking at the two different ways of doing things, 1 think the
real problem with the amendment you handed out and what we currently have is that it's
trying to write to some vaporous standard. | like what the department had, it's straight
forward and | don't think it goes too far beyond. There | know what we are doing; here |
don’'t know what we are doing. Maybe if we passed this, we are just moving this over into
the rules. | would support the department’s position with the amendments because it's
straight forward.
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Representative M Nelson: Moves that we return to the origina! form of the bill and adopt
the amendments purposed by the insurance department.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Representative Frantsvog: There are already some amendments that have been
adopted, are we talking about something else?

Representative Ruby: This would replace them.

Chairman Keiser: We would go back to the original bill, the 90 pages, then adopt the
amendments distributed by the Insurance Department today. That is the motion before the
committee. The amendment currently on the bill was a hog housed amendment taking the
90 pages to a two or three page bill.

Representative Ruby: I'm going to resist the motion. We accomplished our goal the first
time and we don’'t want to adopt any further than what PPACA is putting in place. The
intent was to put the authority at the state level and | think we should go with it.  I'm going
to resist the motion.

Representative Boe: My question is this, the amendment that was handed out, your
amendment that you have drafted out, when we talk about having the meeting of the
standards as they come up with them. Are we illegally transferring the power to someone
else?

Chairman Keiser: Representative M Nelson and Representative Boe have raised the two
big issues on this bill. One, the standards have not been developed but when the
standards are finalized, they are the minimum standards that every state must meet
regardless of what you have done. If our standards we are adopting in our bill were not
restrictive enough when the federal law is adopted, we would have to meet them.
Representative M Nelson point, the standards are not developed so are these standards
more restrictive or not restrictive enough. They are going to have to change up or down
once the final standards are developed but regardless of which bill you pass, it will become
effective on the day it becomes effective and the standards in place that day if you were to
adopt this amendment, will become North Dakota standards. There is a time issue. We
are shooting in the dark because HHS has not finalized all their standards. We have a
proposal that will attempt to in a reasonable way, look at the standards of what might be
coming down. The second approach is to say and | do firmly believe, the federal
government is not going to take over the regulation in our state, we are meeting standards,
- we are meeting the standards. If we are exceeding the standards, they are not going to
take it over.

Representative Amerman: Second the motion.
Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Representative Vigesaa: Could we have Melissa go over the amendments dated
February 87
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Melissa Hauer~General Counsel for the Insurance Department: The purposed
amendments are dated February 8. (See attached amendments on back of original
testimony)

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Roll call was taken on returning to the original form of the bill, the 80 plus pages, and
adopting the Insurance Department amendments on HB 1127 with 5 yeas, 9 nays, 0
absent and the motion fails.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Move that we adopted the amendments 11.8111.01005 and the
clarification of the typo and the addition of the sentence.

Representative Ruby: Second.
Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Representative M Nelson: We have to do something and | ask that we support the bill as
it stands before us with the amendments.

Voice vote, motion carried.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Moves a Do Pass as Amended.
Representative Ruby: Second.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion.

Roll call was taken for a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1127 with 13 yeas, 1 nay, 0
absent and Representative Clark is the carrier.
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1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium

General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds
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1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.
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2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill is to ensure that the state’s appeals process meets the requirements of 2010 federal legislation.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. Include any assumplions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Any additional work required by the Department will be absorbed using existing resources.
3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide delail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

This bill will not affect revenues.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
ftem, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

See Section 2B.
C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
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11.8111.01001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Keiser
January 13, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to health carrier external appeals and internal claims and appeals procedures; and to
amend and reenact sections 26.1-03-01, 26.1-26.4-01, and 26.1-36-44 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to limitation on health insurance company risks,
utilization review, and independent external reviews.

BE !T ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-03-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:;

26.1-03-01. Limitation on risks acceptable by company.

An insurance company transacting an insurance business in this state may not
expose itself to loss on any one risk or hazard to an amount exceeding ten percent of
its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock company, or ten percent of its surplus if a
mutual company, unless the excess is reinsured. An insurance company offering group
or_individual insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L.111-148}, as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 {Pub. L. 111-152] is not subject
to this section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-26.4-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-26.4-01. Purpose and scope,

This chapter applies to grandfathered health plans unless a health care insurer
or utilization review agent determines to extend the protections of section 5 of this Act
to a grandfathered plan. "Grandfathered health plan” has the meaning stated in the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the
Heaith Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. The purpose
of this chapter is to:

1.  Promote the delivery of quality health care in a cost-effective manner,;

2. Assure that utilization review agents adhere to reasonable standards for
conducting utilization review;

3. Foster greater coordination and cooperation between health care providers
and utilization review agents;

4, Improve communications and knowledge of benefits among all parties
concerned before expenses are incurred; and

5. Ensure that utilization review agents maintain the confidentiality of medical
records in accordance with applicable laws.

Page No. 1 11.8111.01001



SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36-44 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

. 26.1-36-44. Independent external review,

This section applies to grandfathered health plans. "Grandfathered health plan”
has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act
[Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of
2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. Every insurance company, nonprofit health service corporation,
and health maintenance organization that offers an accident and health line of
insurance shall establish and implement an independent external review mechanism to
review and determine whether medical.care rendered under the line of insurance was
medically necessary and appropriate to the claim as submitted by the provider. For
purposes of this section, "independent external review" means a review conducted by
the North Dakota health care review, inc., another peer review organization meeting
the requirements of section 1152 of the Social Security Act, or any person designated
by the commissioner to conduct an independent external review. A determination made
by the independent external reviewer is binding on the parties. Costs associated with
the independent external review.are the responsibility of the nonprevailing party. A
provider may not use an independent external review under this section unless the
provider first has exhausted all.internal appeal processes offered by the insurance
_,company, nonprofit health ser\nce corporatlon or health maintenance organization.

SECTlON ‘4K new sect|0n to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is. created and enacted as follows

External appeals procedures
. An insurance company, nonprofit health services corporation, or health
maintenance organization may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,
group, blanket, franchise, or association basis uniess the policy, contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements_of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies
with 26 CFR 54 and 602, 28 CFR 2590, and 45 CFR 147.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

Internal claims and appeals procedures.

An insurance company, nonprofit health services corporation, or health

maintenance organization may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,

group. blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy, contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies

with 26 CFR 54 and 602, 29 CFR 2590, and 45 CFR 147."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 11.8111.01001
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11.8111.01002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Keiser
January 27, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127
Page 1, line 5, remove the second "and"
Page 1, line 5, after "penalty” insert ": to provide for application; and to declare an emergency"
Page 95, after line 2, insert:

"SECTION 7. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management
during the 2011-12 interim. The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the
legislative management for consideration at a special legislative session if the
commissioner is required by federal law to implement any program or requirement
before January 1, 2013. For any program or requirement that must be implemented
between January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit
proposed legislation to the legislative management before Qctober 15, 2012.

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.8111.01002
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11.8111.01005 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for

Title.

Representative Keiser
February 15, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and

anact two new sections to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to health carrier external appeals and internal claims and appeals procedures; to
amend and reenact sections 26.1-03-01, 26.1-26.4-01, and 26.1-36-44 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to limitation on health insurance company risks,

utifization review, and independent external reviews; to provide for application; and to
declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-03-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-03-01. Limitation on risks acceptable by company.

An insurance company transacting an insurance business in this state may not
expose itself to loss on any one risk or hazard to an amount exceeding ten percent of
its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock company, or ten percent of its surplus if a
mutual company, unless the excess is reinsured. An insurance company offering group
or individual insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the

Health Care and Education Recongiliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-1521, is nof subject
to this section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-26.4-01 of the North Daketa Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-26.4-01. Purpose_and scope.

This chapter applies to grandfathered health plans unless a health care insurer
or utilization review agent determines to extend the protections of section 5 of this Act
to a grandfathered plan. "Grandfathered health plan" has the meaning stated in the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. The purpose
of this chapter is to:

1. Promote the delivery of quality health care in a cost-effective manner;

2. Assure that utilization review agents adhere to reasonable standards for
conducting utilization review;

3. Foster greater coordination and cooperation between health care providers
and utilization review agents;

4. Improve communications and knowledge of benefits among all parties
concerned before expenses are incurred; and

Page No. 1 11.8111.01005



5. Ensure that utilization review agents mainiain the confidentiality of medical
records in accordance with applicable laws.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36-44 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36-44, Independent external review.

This section applies to grandfathered health plans. "Grandfathered nealth pian”
has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act
[Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of
2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. Every insurance company, nonprofit health service corporation,
and health maintenance organization that offers an accident and health line of
insurance shall establish and implement an independent external review mechanism to
review and determine whether medical care rendered under the line of insurance was
medically necessary and appropriate to the claim as submitted by the provider. For
purpases of this section, “independent external review" means a review conducted by
the North Dakota health care review, inc., another peer review organization meeting
the requirements-of section 1152 of the Social Security Act, or any person designated
by the commissioner to conduct an independent external review, A determination mace
by the independent external reviewer is binding on the parties. Costs associated with
the independent-external review are the responsibility of the nonprevailing party. A
provider may not use an independent external review under this section unless the
" provider first’has: exhausted allinternal appeal pracesses-offered by the insurance
‘company, nonproﬂt health ‘Sefvice’ corporation or health maintenance organization. If
federal laws or rules relating to'indeépendent-external review -are amended, repealed, or
otherwise changed,.thé insurance commissioner shall adopt rules fo ensure the
independent external review. procedure is'in. comphance w1th -and substantlve!y
equivalent to.the: federa| requwements

1’

SECTION 4. A new sec‘non ta chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

External appeals procedures.

An insurance company, nonprofit health services corporation, or health
maintenance organization may not deliver,_issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage gn an individual,

.group. ‘blanket,franchise  or-associdtion:basis .uniess the policy, contract. or evidence
of coverage meets the minimuintirequirements of 42'U.S.C. 300gg-19-and complies
with 2910:8:C. 1133, 29 CER:2560:503:1%4214,5.C, 300gg-19, 26 CFR
54.9815-2719T: 29 U.S.C. 11856d, 28 CFR 2590.715-2719; and 26 U.$.C, 9815, 45
CFR 147.136. The insurance commissioner may take sieps necessary to ensure
compliance with this section, If federal laws or rules relating to external appeals are
amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner shall adopt
rules to ensure the external appeals procedure is in compliance with and substantively
equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as foliows:
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Internal claims and appeals procedures.

An insurance company, nonprofit health services corporation, or health

. maintenance organization may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,
group, blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy, contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies
with 20 U.S.C. 1133, 29 CFR 2560.503-1; 42 U.S.C. 300qg-19, 26 CFR
54.9815-2719T; 29 U.S.C. 1185d, 29 CFR 2580.715-2719; and 26 U.S.C. 9815, 45
CFR 147.136. The insurance commissioner may take steps necessary to ensure
compliance with this section. f federal laws or rules relating to internal claims and
appeals are amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner
shall adopt rules to ensure the internal claims and appeals procedure is in compliance
with and substantively equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 6. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management
during the 2011-12 interim. The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the
legislative management for consideration at a special legislative session if the
commissioner is required by federal law to implement any program or requirement
before January 1, 2013. For any program or requirement that must be implemented
between January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit
proposed legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012.

SECTION 7. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

. Renumber accordingly
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11.8111.010086 Adopted by the Industry, Business and Labor
Title.02000 Committee

February 15, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and

enact two new sections to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to heatth carrier external appeals and internal claims and appeals procedures; to
amend and reenact sections 26.1-03-01, 26.1-26.4-01, and 26.1-36-44 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to limitation on health insurance company risks,
utilization review, and independent external reviews; to provide for application; and to
declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-03-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-03-01. Limitation on risks acceptable by company.

An insurance company transacting an insurance business in this state may not
expose itself to loss on any one risk or hazard to an amount exceeding ten percent of
its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock company, or ten percent of its surplus if a
mutual company, unless the excess is reinsured. An insurance company offering group
or_individual insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148), as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. is not subject
to this section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-26.4-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as foliows:

26.1-26.4-01. Purpose_and scope.

This chapter applies to grandfathered health plans unless a health care insurer
or utilization review agent determines to extend the protections of section 5 of this Act
to a grandfathered plan. "Grandfathered health plan" has the meaning stated in the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. The purpose
of this chapter is to:

1. Promote the delivery of quality health care in a cost-effective manner;

2. Assure that utilization review agents adhere to reasonable standards for
conducting utilization review;

3. Foster greater coordination and cooperation between health care providers
and utilization review agents;

4. Improve communications and knowledge of benefits among all parties
concerned before expenses are incurred; and
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5 Ensure that utilization review agents maintain the confidentiality of medical
records in accordance with applicable laws.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36-44 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36-44. Independent external review.

This section applies to grandfathered health plans. "Grandfathered health plan”
has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Afferdable Care Act
[Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of
2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. Every insurance company, nonprofit health service corporation,
and health maintenance organization that offers an accident and health line of
insurance shall establish and implement an independent external review mechanism to
review and determine whether medical care rendered under the line of insurance was
medically necessary and appropriate to the claim as submitted by the provider. For
purposes of this section, "independent external review" means a review conducted by
the North Dakota health care review, inc., another peer review organization meeting
the requirements of section 1152 of the Social Security Act, or any person designated
by the commissioner to conduct an independent external review. A determination made
by the independent external reviewer is binding on the parties. Costs associated with
the independent external review are the responsibility of the nonprevailing party. A
provider may not use an independent external review under this section unless the
provider first has exhausted all internal appeal processes offered by the insurance
company, nonprofit health service corporation, or health maintenance organization._The
insurance commissioner shall take steps necessary to ensure compliance with this
section. if federal laws or rules relating to independent external review are amended,
repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner shall adopt rules to
ensure the independent external review procedure is in compliance with and
substantively equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 4. A new section to ¢chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

External appeats procedures.

An insurance company, nonprofit health services corporation, or health
maintenance organization may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,
group, blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy, contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies
with 29 U.S.C. 1133, 29 CFR 2560.503-1; 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19, 26 CFR
54.9815-2719T: 28 U.S.C. 1185d, 29 CFR 2590.715-2719; and 26 U.5.C. 9815, 45
CFR 147.136. The insurance commissioner may take steps necessary 1o ensure
compliance with this section. If federal laws or rules relating to external appeals are
amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner shall adopt
rules to ensure the external appeals procedure is in compliance with and substantively
equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

Page No. 2 11.8111.010086



internal claims and appeals procedures.

An insurance company, honprofit health services corporation, or health
maintenance organization may not deiiver, issue. execute, or renew any healith
insurance policy, health service coniract, or evidence of coverage on an individuai,
group, blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy, contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies
with 28 U.8.C. 1133, 29 CFR 2560.503-1; 42 U.S.C. 300ga-19. 26 CFR
54.9815-2719T. 29 U.S.C. 1185d, 29 CFR 2590.715-2719: and 26 U.5.C. 9815 45
CFR 147.136. The insurance commissioner may take steps necessary to ensure
compliance with this section. If federal laws or rules relating to internal claims and
appeals are amended. repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner
shall adopt rules to ensure the internal claims and appeals procedure is in compliance
with and substantively equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 6. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management
during the 2011-12 interim. The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the
legislative management for consideration at a special legislative session if the
commissioner is required by federal law to implement any program or requirement
before January 1, 2013. For any program or requirement that must be implemented
between January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit
proposed legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012.

SECTION 7. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.”

Renumber accordingly
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_33_019
February 18, 2011 9:21am Carrier: Clark
Insert LC: 11.8111.01006 Title: 03000

HB 1127: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (13 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1127 was placed
on the Sixth order on the calendar.

. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to health carrier external appeals and internal claims and appeals procedures; to
amend and reenact sections 26.1-03-01, 26.1-26.4-01, and 26.1-36-44 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to limitation on health insurance company risks,
utilization review, and independent external reviews; to provide for application; and to
declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-03-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-03-01. Limitation on risks acceptable by company.

An insurance company transacting an insurance business in this state may
not expose itself to loss on any cene risk or hazard to an amount exceeding ten
percent of its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock company, or ten percent of its
surplus if a mutual company, unless the excess is reinsured. An insurance company
offering group or individual insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit
limit restrictions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148],
as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L.
111-152], is not subject to this section.

. SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-26.4-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-26.4-01. Purpose_ and scope.

This_chapter applies to grandfathered health plans unless a health care
insurer or utilization review agent determines to extend the protections of section 5 of
this Act to a grandfathered plan. "Grandfathered health plan” has the meaning stated
in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by
the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. The
purpose of this chapter is to:

1. Promote the delivery of quality health care in a cost-effective manner;

2. Assure that utilization review agents adhere to reasonable standards for
conducting utilization review;

3. Foster greater coordination and cooperation between health care providers
and utilization review agents,

4. Improve communications and knowledge of benefits among all parties
concerned before expenses are incurred; and

5. Ensure that utilization review agents maintain the confidentiality of medical
records in accordance with applicable laws.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36-44 of the North Dakota Century
. Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_33_019



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_33_019
February 18, 2011 9:21am Carrier: Clark

insert LC: 11.8111.01006 Title: 03000

26.1-36-44. Independent external review.

This section applies to grandfathered health plans. "Grandfathered health
plan” has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordabie Care Act
[Pub. L. 111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act
of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. Every insurance company, nonprofit health service
corporation, and health maintenance organization that offers an accident and heaith
line of insurance shall establish and implement an independent external review
mechanism to review and determine whether medical care rendered under the line of
insurance was medically necessary and appropriate to the claim as submitted by the
provider. For purposes of this section, "independent external review" means a review
conducted by the North Dakota health care review, inc., ancther peer review
organization meeting the reguirements of section 1152 of the Social Security Act, or
any person designated by the commissioner to conduct an independent external
review. A determination made by the independent external reviewer is binding on the
parties. Costs associated with the independent external review are the responsibility
of the nonprevailing party. A provider may not use an independent external review
under this section unless the provider first has exhausted all internal appeal
processes offered by the insurance company, nonprofit health service corporation, or
health maintenance organization. The insurance commissioner shall take steps
necessary to ensure compliance with this section. If federal laws or rules relating to
independent external review are amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the
insurance commissioner shall adopt rules to ensure the independent external review
procedure is in compliance with and substantively equivalent to the federal

requirements.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

External appeals procedures.

An insurance company. nonprofit health services corporation, or health
maintenance grganization may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,
qroup, blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy contract, or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum requirements of 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19 and complies
with 28 U.§.C. 1133, 29 CFR 2560.503-1; 42 U.S.C. 300gg-18, 26 CFR
54 .9815-2719T;: 29 U.S.C. 1185d, 29 CFR 2590.715-2719: and 26 U.S.C. 9815, 45
CER 147 136. The insurance commissioner may take steps necessary to ensure
compliance with this section. If federal laws or rules relating to external appeals are
amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commissioner shall adopt
rules to ensure the external appeals procedure is in compiiance with and

substantively equivalent to the federal requirements.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

internal claims and appeals procedures.

An insurance company, nonprofit health_services corporation, or heaith
maintenance organization. may_not deliver, issue, execute, or renew any health
insurance policy. health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an individual,
group, blanket, franchise, or association basis unless the policy. contract. or evidence
of coverage meets the minimum_requirements of 42 U.5.C. 300g9g-12 and complies
with 29 U.S.C. 1133, 29 CFR 2560.503-1; 42 U.S.C. 300gg-19. 26 CFR
54.9815-2719T1: 29 U.S.C. 1185d, 29 CFR 2590,715-2719; and 26 U.S.C. 9815 45
CFR 147.136. The insurance commissioner may take steps necessary to ensure
compliance with this section. If federal laws or rules relating to internat claims and
appeals are amended, repealed, or otherwise changed, the insurance commigsioner
shall adopt rules to ensure the internal claims and appeals procedure is in compiiance

with and substantively equivalent to the federal requirements.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_33_019
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insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management
during the 2011-12 interim. The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the
legislative management for consideration at a special legislative session if the
commissioner is required by federal law to impiement any program or requirement
before January 1, 2013. For any program or requirement that must be implemented
between January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shail submit
proposed legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012,

. SECTION 6. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the

SECTION 7. EMERGENCY. This Act is deciared to be an emergency
measure.”

Renumber accordingly
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Human Services Committee
Red River Room, State Capitol

HB 1127
3-16-2011
Job Number 15549

[] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature —78lay st

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to health carrier external appeals and internal claims and appeals
procedures.

Minutes: Attachments

Senator Judy Lee opened the hearing on Engrossed HB 1127.

Representative George Keiser (Dist. 47) explained the bill. Attachment #1 He also
submitted an amendment for a simple correction. Attachment #1a.

Senator Tim Mathern was a little concerned with leaving the department in a lurch.
He wondered if they thought of the possibility to proceed with the greater
elaboration of the processes in the 95 page bill but with more of an escape clause to
move out of it if the federal requirements weren't that restrictive versus not
developing them.

Rep. Keiser answered that they did think about that issue but didn’t choose that
option.

There are currently federal laws on the books that seem to be working. They saw the
bill as extending beyond the limitations that they knew were, at that time, in PPACA.
They weren't comfortable with that. There were two options: 1. The default option —
adopting those standards that went beyond PPACA and if it is ruled unconstitutional
reverting back to our current standards, or 2. They felt it was a more positive
approach to stay with the current standards and maybe change them, upgrade them,
in the special session.

Dan Ulmer, BC of North Dakota, testified in support of the biil as sent by the House.
Attachment #2

Senator Tim Mathern said one of his concerns was kind of like a back end loading.
Without these changes being considered or reviewed or tested in rule making and

some need to be put in place he wondered if there would be some scrambling at the
end that would be tough.
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Bob Stroup, Deputy General Counsel for BC/BS of ND, didn't feel it puts anyone in a
box because, for the most part, the internal appeals have been in place and they are
following the changes and the time frames. The probiem with the external appeals is
they don’t have the final rules yet. In the short term he didn’t think this would cause
the kinds of concerns Sen. Mathern was asking about.

Adam Hamm, ND Insurance Commissioner, appeared in opposition to HB 1127. He
asked the committee to restore the language of the bill as introduced and to adopt

amendments the Insurance Department prepared in February. Attachment #3 and
#3a

Senator Tim Mathern asked who the sponsor of the bill was.

Commissioner Hamm responded that the original bill was prepared by the Insurance
Department but it was sponsored by Chairman Keiser, Chairman of IBL.

Senator Tim Mathern asked why he didn't introduce it.

Commissioner Hamm replied that there were several discussions about that and it
was decided by all parties that the three pieces of legislation 1125, 1126, and 1127
would all be introduced or sponsored by Chairman Keiser. At the end all sides could
not work out an agreement on 1127.

After a short discussion, it was noted that the amendments prepared by the Dept.
were for the original bill. To accomplish the objective of the Commissioner a
different set of amendments wouid be needed.

Senator Dick Dever asked if he would like to see the bill go away if the changes are
not adopted.

Commissioner Hamm replied that was not what he was saying. The engrossed bill is
still a potential answer to what HHS is looking for but is less likely to be given the
stamp of approval.

Attachment # 4 — Written testimony submitted from Lisa Carlson, Sanford Health.

The hearing on HB 1127 was closed.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: Attachments

Senator Judy Lee opened committee discussion.

Senator Tim Mathern presented amendment .03002 dated 3-21-2011. Attachment #5
This is taking 1127 back to how it was introduced in the House with the specifics that
were laid out in the department's original bill. His concern was that they are piling
up too many things for the special session. The special session dealing with
redistricting can often be real contentious. In the context of that contention, he is
concerned with what they are doing in health care reform so he is asking to put more
detail into the bill which reflects the work of the interim committees.

This bill, as he understood it, is more oriented towards the consumers, the rights of
providers, the rights of health care users, in and around federal health care reform
and should have the highest level of scrutiny. He felt 1127 was an attempt to
understand people’s rights about appeal, changes, and demands of services that are
available. 1t is a lot of material but he thought not knowing and dealing with the
material is essentially turning over control to the federal government.

Senator Judy Lee responded that by what they were told, the original longer bill
spelled out what the current potential federal circumstances were. There was
knowledge of the possibility of change. Her understanding of 1127 is that instead of
being specific it directs the insurance department to make sure that whatever
requirements are in place are the minimum that the feds establish as things go
along. It allows them and insurance carriers to be adaptable to whatever is

determined by the federal rule to be the restrictions at the time. She felt there was
an advantage to that.

Senator Tim Mathern was concerned about how long they are keeping it flexible.

Senator Dick Dever said that Rep. Keiser's explanation satisfied his own concerns
about the rationale for reducing the bill to what they did.
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Senator Spencer Berry felt the same.
The effective date and emergency clause were discussed. They are both needed.

Rod St. Aubyn, BC of North Dakota, informed the committee that if Sen. Mathern's
amendments are considered a fiscal note may be needed.

He pointed out that the interim committee might not have to do anything. The
federal law already exists in quite a bit of detail. In addition, the appeals process has
to be identified in detail by the insurers in the members benefit book.

Senator Tim Mathern addressed two points. 1. If the biil isn't structured to clarify the
costs then they aren't clear about the message. 2. Why not work with the last set of
changes that were announced and put them in an amendment where it is appropriate
so more people become informed.

Rod St. Aubyn said that theoreticaily if this is passed there shouldn't be a need at
the special session for anything as it relates to appeals. There won’t be a need
because the law is in effect with this. There isn’t any need for additional legislation
as it relates to the appeal process of 1127. There is going to be a need in terms of
the exchange and if the federal government makes changes between now and then
on other provisions of PPACA.

He emphasized that this only deals with the appeals process and doesn’'t have
anything to do with the other provisions of PPACA.

To answer the question posed by Sen. Mathern in #2 above about including the
changes that happened from the Dept. of Labor he said part of the reason is that
they haven't formulated the formal response. This was supposed to go into effect on
July 1 and now four or five issues have been identified and significant changes will
be made to the interim final rules — one being a change to an appeal time frame.

Senator Spencer Berry asked for a response to the testimony by the Insurance
Commissioner who opposed this and felt that reinstating to the originai form would
give a better chance of keeping local control.

Rod St. Aubyn responded that he didn't think it was a valid concern to be more
detailed.

The federal law ends up being the threshold. Rules or state laws can be adopted
that go beyond the minimum threshold but it would only apply to fully insured
products. The lower leve! of the threshold would apply to the self funded. Then
there would be two different appeal processes.

Dan Ulmer, BC of ND, said the other thing that needed to be understood was how the
process works. First, they are in motion now in terms of complying. Secondly, he
said they need to appreciate that the commissioner has the authority. This bill
entitles him to basically enforce the PPACA appellate process. He explained how
that works.
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Senator Tim Mathern said that he hadn't shared his amendments with the Ins.
Commissioner but was willing to do so and felt he would also have some
amendments.

Discussion: The original bill is three NAIC model acts. They are not PPACA
requirements and it goes beyond PPACA.

Senator Gerald Uglem moved to accept the amendment proposed by Rep. Keiser.
Seconded by Senator Spencer Berry.

Roll call vote 5-0-0. Amendment adopted.

Senator Judy Lee was comfortable with the bill after the attachment of the
amendment by Rep. Keiser. She had concerns with the larger bill because it was

three National Association Insurance Commissioner Bills put together to get the
detail. It was not the PPACA details.

Further action was set aside so Sen. Mathern could visit with the Insurance
Commissioner about the larger amendments.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: Attachments

Senator Judy Lee opened committee work.

Senator Tim Mathern reported that he had a copy of what the Insurance Commissioner
recommended - an amendment of 94 pages. Attachment #6 This is an alternative to the
amendment by Sen. Mathern from 3-21-11.

He summarized the Commissioner's amendments (Attachment #7) and provided an e-mail
from Melissa Hauer, Attorney who works with the Insurance Commissioner. (Attachment
#8)

Sen. Mathern believes that potentially between now and the next legislative session the
federal government is going to assess whether or not North Dakota is properly prepared to
be the regulator in this area. We have the greatest chance of the federal government
approving ND remaining in charge of the insurance regulation aspect if we were to adopt
these amendments now.

He understood that this puts them in a different place than the House but that the Senate
would have strength in its position with the Insurance Commissioner supporting the

position. 1t would have to be negotiated out with the House probably in a conference
committee.

Senator Judy Lee didn't remember the $10,000 penalty for each violation before.

Senator Tim Mathern thought that had been part of the bill from the beginning.

Melissa Hauer, Insurance Department, explained that the penalty provisions were in the
bill as introduced. The three models have penalty provisions in them. The insurance code

has a number of different penalty provisions. Some are $10,000 and some are higher.

Senator Dick Dever was curious if all of the amendments flow from PPACA and are
necessary to satisfy the requirements.
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Ms. Hauer replied that was difficult to answer because PPACA has a very small section on
what states have to do with their appeals. For the external review it basically says, if the
state has the minimum protection that the NAIC model has, that will be deemed sufficient.
The federal law does not have any detail about what is required.

Senator Dick Dever asked if there was a time frame.

Ms. Hauer — July 1- it was effective right away but the federal government promulgated
regulations and gave a grace period until July 1. There are different level of requirements
that are going on whether you are an employer sponsored plan or a fully insured individual

plan. Dept. of Labor rules apply to some plans. The HHS rules apply to other insurance
coverage.

Senator Judy Lee asked if the 95 page biil or amendment, which includes merging three
NAIC bills, includes provisions in addition to the minimum requirements for PPACA.

Ms. Hauer replied that the bill takes the NAIC models. For external review they have what
the NAIC models require. In some areas they go beyond what the Dept. of Labor rules

require. Those rules only apply to certain kinds of coverage. They don't apply to fully
insured, what you would think of as an individual policy.

Senator Tim Mathern asked how these amendments have responded to the insurance
industries concerns or requests.

Ms. Hauer replied that Sanford Health Plan was ok with the bill as introduced but asked for
modification in a couple of areas. Those modifications were made along with the
grandfathering change that Blue Cross asked for.

Senator Tim Mathern asked what she believed the outcome to the state would be if the
amendments were not adopted.

Ms. Hauer said the risk that the federal government will look at the review process and say
it doesn’t meet muster is greater with the way the bill is right now. Referring to the federal
law and regulations might not be enough.

Rod St. Aubyn (BC/BS of ND) addressed the guidance issued by the Dept. of Labor and
the effective dates. There are changes coming on board and part of the problem is that
there are so many significant changes they are looking at and it's taking longer than they
thought to finalize all of them.

A concern they had from the original bill was that there is no definition of a post evaluation
and he explained the problem with it.

He pointed out that they are going to have to comply to PPACA but they don’t think it is
appropriate to go beyond PPACA minimum requirements.

Senator Spencer Berry asked if he saw this as an all or nothing. Adopt this now to
increase the chances of leaving it within the state or going with this and there's no chance
for ongoing conversation and change.
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Rod St. Aubyn found it hard to believe that the federal government would even attempt to
tell a state that it is not specific enough if the state says their requirement is going to be the

same as the federal requirement. The federal government has to regulate the self funded
right now.

Ms. Hauer, talked about the amendment on page 53 concerning post evaluation or post

stabilization services. She explained the changes made that were requested by Sanford
and discussion followed.

Senator Dick Dever asked if not for PPACA would they consider all of the provisions of
this bili to be good public policy.

Ms. Hauer said it was a matter of opinion. In the Commissioner's view this is good for the
consumers.

Senator Judy Lee didn’t see that all the detail needed to be in statute.

Discussion continued on who the detail might be needed for and why it is needed. Also
more discussion followed on the post stabilization services and definitions.

Senator Tim Mathern moved to accept the amendments, dated 3-22-11, which reflect his
summary aiso dated 3-22-11. They would restore the original bill and make the additional
changes that have come to the attention of the Insurance Commissioner and that he
agrees should be changed from the original bill.

Seconded by Senator Spencer Berry.

Senator Gerald Uglem was conflicted between doing what the Insurance Commissioner
recommends or what the legislators have decided is the best way to go. For that reason he
opposed the amendment.

Senator Spencer Berry was also conflicted but wanted the second for the purpose of
discussion.

Senator Dick Dever said that the House took a position on this and he wasn’t sure what
their rationale was for that position. This seems to him to some extent to be more about
insurance than health care. He would probably vote yes.

Senator Tim Mathern hoped the amendment would be passed. He felt this gives them the
best shot to keeping ND in charge while still realizing that they will have to revisit it.

Senator Judy Lee planned to oppose the amendments. The House committee worked
judiciously to go through this much more thoroughly than this committee has had a chance
to do at this point. She agreed with what Rep. Keiser said in his presentation. This bill that
has combined three NAIC model bills together into one has way more in it than PPACA
requires and she felt it was burdensome.

Roll call vote 3-2-0. Amendment adopted.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes:

Senator Judy Lee reopened committee work on Engrossed HB 1127.
Senator Spencer Berry moved to reconsider actions on 1127.
Seconded by Senator Gerald Uglem.

Senator Tim Mathern thought the amendments they adopted were appropriate.
Essentially, they recognize interim committee work of the last interim, the work of the
Insurance Commissioner in putting together consumer protections, meet muster with
federal requirements, and they have a reflection of the feedback that the Insurance
Commissioner has received. They have the changes the Insurance Commissioner
suggested since the bill was introduced and the additional wording that direct the Insurance
Commissioner to come to the special session if there are things that need to be addressed.
He felt the amendments also reflect the needs of the committee to prepare for negotiations
with the House.

He opposed the motion and asked the rest of the committee to vote no on the motion.

Senator Dick Dever pointed out that the prime sponsor of the bill is the Chairman of the
House IBL Committee and was the Chairman of the Interim IBL Committee and also serves
on the National Council of Insurance Legislators. Sen. Dever originally supported the
amendment for the purpose of having a conversation in Conference Committee to hear
their rationale of why they adjusted the bill from 95 pages to 4. In further conversations, he
said he is comfortable with Rep. Keiser's position. The bill as amended would be largely
about insurance and those people are the ones that deal with it all the time. He felt our
focus should be on federal health care reform. To the extent it exceeds that, it detracts
from that focus. He supported the motion.

Senator Judy Lee asked for a vote of the reconsideration.

Voice vote 4-1 (Senator Tim Mathern). The amendment will be reconsidered.
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Senator Spencer Berry moved to reverse the action by which they adopted the
amendment dated 3-22-2011.

Seconded by Senator Dick Dever.

Senator Tim Mathern suggested that those amendments reflect the greatest opportunity
for the state of ND to continue to be in charge of regulation of health care in terms of
consumer rights. He believed it's the intent of most of the legislature and probably most of
the citizens that the state of ND retain jurisdiction of that effort. He felt this amendment is
the best effort to demonstrate to the federal government that we can stay in charge of this
area of commerce and regulation. He said it would be in our interest to pass the
amendment and continue working on it. Then have the federal government make its
decision and if we have to make other changes we can do it in November.

Senator Spencer Berry agreed with Senator Tim Mathern as far as the intent. He wants to
see North Dakota stay in control of it as much as possible. That is his #1 intent. Rep.
Keiser is very knowledgeable about this and the fact that he is comfortable with the
situation as it is right now is very impressive — that he comes to it with that idea and with his
background and depth of involvement. That is the reason Sen. Berry feels ND will be able
to stay in charge and control. He supported the removal of the amendments.

Senator Tim Mathern commented further that this bill represents the best effort of a
statewide elected official, Commissioner Adam Hamm. That is the greatest portion of the
amendments. That department has every bit as much expertise as Rep. Keiser. He did
echo some of the concerns of the committee and felt that all of them needed to attain that
same level of expertise. It would bring forth the best product for North Dakota if more
legislators get into the detail of heath care reform. He believed that is what the amendment
suggested they do. He opposed the motion.

Senator Judy Lee replied that everybody wants North Dakota to be in control of what's
going on. She was no more comfortable because it is a department bill than because it
would have any involvement with Rep. Keiser. She was part of some of those interim
committee meetings and spent a lot of time looking into this also. Trying to do everything
that is beyond what just deals with the Affordable Health Care Act in this bill is a concemn to
her. She is comfortable having it in sync with what the federal minimums are for PPACA.

For clarification, a yes vote is to remove the amendment.

Roll call vote 4-1-0. Amendment dated 3-22-2011 was removed.

Senator Judy Lee pointed out that it is their intent that the State and the Insurance Dept.
work together but make sure there similar grace periods to insurers and group health plans

as the recent Dept. of Labor technical release has mentioned.

The hill before the committee now is the bill as it came from the House with the Keiser
amendment (.03001) on it.

Senator Spencer Berry moved a Do Pass as Amended with .03001.
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Seconded by Senator Gerald Uglem.

Senator Tim Mathern believed the bill is now in a format that puts our state at great risk to
losing the ability to stay in charge of the regulation in this area. It also makes it unclear to
consumers what our position is in terms of their rights with health care reform as expressed
by the ND Legislature.

Senator Spencer Berry asked Sen. Mathern what specifically concerned him that we
would lose control if, in fact, we are staying in sync with guidelines from PPACA.

Senator Tim Mathern responded his concern was that the federal government will look to
see what we have in place in the detail sometime around July. Passing of the bill without
the amendments doesn’t demonstrate to the federal government that we have the detail in
place that demonstrates we are prepared to regulate this area.

Senator Dick Dever didn't think they should construe the passage or defeat of this bili as a
concession to the federal government of the authority to assume control of the reguiation of
our insurance industry.

Roll call vote 4-1-0. Motion carried.

Carrier is Senator Judy Lee.
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March 22, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127
Page 1, line 1, replace “two new sections to chapter 26.1-36" with “chapters 26.1-36.6,
26.1-36.7, and 26.1-26.8"

Page 1, line 2, replace “appeals and internal claims and appeals” with “review,
utilization review, and grievance”

Page 1, line 5, after the first semicolon and before “to” insert “and” and replace “for
application; and to declare an” with "a penalty”

Page 1, line 6, remove “emergency”

Page 2, line 30, remove “The insurance commissioner shall take steps”

Page 2, remove line 31

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31
. Page 4, remove lines 1 through 9

Page 4, after line 9, insert the following:

“SECTION 4. Chapter 26.1-36.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-01. Definitions. For purposes of this-chapter:

26.1-36.6-02. Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.6-03. Notice of right to external review.

26.1-36.6-04. Request for external review.
26.1-36.6-05. Exhaustion of internal grievance process.

26.1-36.6-07. Expedited external review.




26.1-36.6-08. External review of experimental or investigational
treatment adverse determinations.

26.1-36.6-09. Binding nature of external review decision.

26.1-36.6-10. Approval of independent review organizations.

26.1-36.6-11. Minimum qualifications for independent review
organizations.

26.1-36.6-12. Hold harmless for independent review organizations.No
26.1-36.6-13. External review reporting requirements.

26.1-36.6-14. Funding of external review.
26.1-36.6-15. Disclosure requirements.

26.1-36.6-16. Rulemaking.The commissioner may adopt rules to carry
out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.6-17. Confidentiality.Any protected healith information that the
commissioner receives pursuant to this chapter is confidential.

SECTION 5. Chapter 26.1-36.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.7-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:




a
. 26.1-36.7-02. Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.7-03. Corporate oversight of utilization review program.

26.1-36.7-04. Contracting.

26.1-36.7-05. Scope and content of utilization review program.

26.1-36.7-06. Operational requirements.

26.1-36.7-07. Procedures for standard utilization review and benefit
determinations.

26.1-36.7-08. Procedures for expedited utilization review and benefit
determinations.

26.1-36.7-09. Emergency services.
26.1-36.7-10. Confidentiality requirements. 26.1-36.7-11. Disclosure

. requirements.

26.1-36.7-12. Rules.

26.1-36.7-13. Penalties.

SECTION 6.

26.1-36.8-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:

26.1-36.8-02. Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.8-03. Grievance reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

26.1-36.8-04. Grievance review procedures.

26.1-36.8-05. First-level reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.




26.1-36.8-06. Expedited reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.

26.1-36.8-07. Rulemaking. The commissioner may adopt rules to carry
out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.8-08. Penalties. The commissioner may assess a penaity against
a health carrier that violates this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars
for each violation.The fine may be recovered in_an action brought in the name of
the state.ln addition to imposing a monetary penalty, the commissioner may aiso
cancel, revoke, or refuse to renew the certificate of authority of a health carrier
that has violated this chapter.”

The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the legislative
management for consideration at a special legislative session if the federal government

adopts standards regarding internal claims and appeals and external review that are

iess stringent than the standards contained in this Act.

Renumber accordingly
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11.8111.03001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.04000 Representative Keiser
March 9, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide an effective date"

Page 4, line 1, after the second boldfaced period insert "The citations to federal laws and rules
in this Act refer to the versions in effect on the effective date of this Act.”

Page 4, after line 8, insert:

"SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2011."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.8111.03001
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_53_006
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Insert L.C: 11.8111.03001 Titie: 04000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1127, as engrossed: Human Services Committee ({Sen.J.Lee, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (4 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1127
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.
Page 1, line 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide an effective date;"

Page 4, line 1, after the second boldfaced period insert "The citations to federal laws and
rules in this Act refer to the versions in effect on the effective date of this Act.”

Page 4, after line 8, insert:

"SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2011."

Renumber accordingly

{1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_53_006



2011 TESTIMONY

HB 1127



HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Presented by: Adam Hamm
Commissioner
North Dakota Insurance Department

Before: House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Representative George Keiser, Chairman

Date: January 17, 2011

TESTIMONY

Good morning, Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Adam
Hamm, the North Dakota Insurance Commissioner. | appear before you today in
support of House Biil No. 1127.

This bill was brought due to the federal heaith care reform law that was signed into law
on March 23, 2010. The law, known as the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,
was followed one week later by the enactment of the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010. These laws are sometimes referred to as “federal heaith
care reform”, or “PPACA”". | will refer to them as "PPACA".

PPACA is lengthy and deals with many topics related to health care reform. This bill
deals only with the requirement that group health plans and health insurers implement
an “effective” process for appeals of coverage determinations and claims, including an
internal claims appeal process (meaning an appeal within the company) and an external

review process (meaning asking an independent third party to review an appeal).

BACKGROUND

Some background information will be helpful in understanding the bill. PPACA provides

that plans and issuers must initially incorporate the internal claims and appeals



processes set forth in regulations issued in 2000 by the U.S. Department of Labor for
plans covered by the Empioyee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Those
regulations require that every employee benefit plan establish and maintain reasonable
claims procedures governing the filing of benefit claims, notification of benefit

determinations and appeal of adverse determinations.

An “adverse determination” means a determination by a health insurance company that
a request for payment of a benefit does not meet requirements for medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care setting, level of care or effectiveness, or is determined to
be experimental or investigational. The requested benefit is, therefore, denied,
reduced, or terminated by the health insurer. it also includes the health insurer's
rescission of a health insurance policy due to fraud or misrepresentation by the insured.
Essentially, an adverse benefit determination occurs when someone with health
insurance received a health care service or treatment and the health insurer declines to
pay, either in whole or in part. This bill deals with the procedures that the health

insurance consumer can use to appeal the insurer’'s decision.

PPACA recognized that the 2000 Department of Labor regulations contained an existing
standard for this appeals process in those plans governed by ERISA and that process
could be used as the basic model to be applied to all health insurance issuers. PPACA
also added some additional requirements to the claims appeals procedures which were
explained in regulations issued on July 22, 2010, by the Departments of Treasury,
Labor, and Health and Human Services (HHS). The regulations contained the
requirements for the internal claims and appeals procedures for group health pians and
a new requirement for an external appeals process. The new requirements generally
apply to insured and self-insured group health plans beginning with the first plan year
commencing on or after September 23, 2010, but do not apply to group health plans

that are treated as “grandfathered plans.”



It is important to note that most of the health insurers doing business in North Dakota
today also administer some self-insured, ERISA plans in and out of our state and,

therefore, are already required to use these appeals processes.

Changes to Internal Claims and Appeals Procedures

A group health plan and a health insurer must implement an effective process for
appeals of coverage determination and claims. This appeals process must include, at a

minimum, the following™:

» An established internal claims appeal process,

» A notice to participants, in a “culturally and linguistically appropriate manner”,
of available internal and external appeals processes, including the availability

of assistance with the appeals processes; and

» A provision allowing an enrollee to review his or her file, to present evidence
and testimony as part of the appeals process, and to receive continued

coverage during the appeal process.

Health insurers offering individual coverage and any issuers that were not initially
subject to existing Department of Labor claims appeals rules may initially use claims
and appeals procedures under any other applicable law, such as individual state
insurance requirements. Insurers are now required, however, to update these
procedures specified in the 2010 HHS regulations. The 2010 regulations create the
following six new requirements that supplement the existing ERISA claims and appeals

procedures:

' Act Sec. 1001(5) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by Act Sec. 1010%(g),
adding Public Health Service Act Sec. 2712(a}(1)).



First, the definition of an “adverse benefit determination” that is subject to the
new internal appeals procedures has been expanded to include a “rescission of

coverage.”

Second, the maximum time period within which a plan must notify a claimant of
the determination of an urgent care claims is reduced from 72 hours to 24 hours
after receipt of such claim, uniess the claimant fails to provide sufficient
information for the plan to determine whether, or to what extent, benefits are

covered or payable.

Third, claimants must be allowed to review the claim file and present “evidence
and testimony” as part of the internal claim and appeal process. Upon review of a

denial of a claim, plans must now provide to the claimant, free of charge:

o Any new or additional evidence considered, relied upon, or generated

by the plan in connection with the claim, and

o Any new or additional rationale that will be used as a basis for the
denial of the claim on appeal or review. Plans must provide such
information in advance of any final internal adverse benefit
determination so that the claimant has a reasonable opportunity to
respond prior to the determination.

Fourth, plans must take additional steps to avoid conflicts of interest and ensure

independence and impartiality in the appeals process.

Fifth, a notice of an adverse benefit determination must include significantly more
disclosures, including diagnosis, treatment, and denial codes and an explanation

of those terms.



« Finally, if a plan fails to comply with all requirements of the internal claims and
appeals process, a claimant will be deemed to have exhausted the process and,
therefore, will be eligible to seek external review or judicial review of the claim.
This remedy is available even if the plan has substantially complied with these

requirements or the error was de minimis.

In addition to these six requirements, the 2010 regulations require group health plans to
continue coverage pending the outcome of an internal appeal of an adverse benefit
determination. Plans are generally prohibited from reducing or terminating an ongoing
course of treatment without notice and an opportunity to review, and individuals in
urgent care situations and those receiving an ongoing course of treatment may be
allowed to proceed with an expedited external review at the same time as the internal

appeals process.

New Process for External Review of Appeals‘

The 2010 regulations also provide details of the new external review process for
appeals of final internal adverse benefit determinations and rules determining whether a

state or federal external review process applies.

Under the new regulations, an insured group health plan that is already subject to an
existing state external review process must continue to comply with the applicable state
process if such process includes, at a minimum, the consumer protections set forth in
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ Uniform Model Act as in effect on
July 23, 2010 (the “NAIC Model Act”). However, the regulations provide for a transition
period, such that all existing state external review processes are deemed to be in
compliance with the requirements until the first day of the first plan year beginning on or
after July 1, 2011, after which time the Department of Health and Human Services will
determine whether a state's external review process complies with the requirements of
the NAIC Model Act.



Plans that do not meet the minimum standards of the NAIC Model Act must comply with

a federal external review process which will follow the NAIC Model Act as well.

SUMMARY OF THE BILL’S PROVISIONS

Since the bill is lengthy, | will not endeavor to explain every provision but rather will
provide an overview of what it will accomplish. If you have questions as to any specifics
in the bill, | would be happy to try to answer them. As the background section of my
testimony states, the bill is designed to ensure that the state’s appeals process is found
to be an “effective” process by the federal government so that our health care
consumers and insurers will have available to them an appeals process overseen by the
state rather than a federal agency. To accomplish this goal, the bill would incorporate
the NAIC Model External Review Act. If HHS determines our state law is not an
effective external review process, health plans issued here will have to comply with a
federal external review process. In other words, North Dakotans will have to deal with a

federal agency when they want to invoke the external review process.

The bill would also incorporate the NAIC Model Utilization Review Act and the Model
Grievance Procedures Act. These two models work in tandem with the NAIC Model
External Review Act, to provide to consumers the full process of appeals anticipated by
PPACA. Each of these three model acts are designed to work together and they refer
to the others often as they describe the process of utilization review (the health insurer’s
initial review of a ¢claim), grievance procedure (interal appeals process), and external
review (review by an outside independent entity). In other words, each of the three
model acts assumes the existence of the others in state law. Without each of the
models, the state's appeals process would lack one of these three levels of review of

adverse benefit determinations.

These three models are similar to the levels of review given by our court system, with a
trial court giving the first level, the appeliate court giving the second level and the

Supreme Court giving the final level of review. They work together to ensure a



. hierarchical system of review that offers every consumer the exact same process to

reach a final determination within expressly stated timelines.

The purpose of each model is:

Health Carrier External Review Model Act — To provide uniform standards for
the establishment and maintenance of external review procedures to assure
that covered persons have the opportunity for an independent review of an
adverse determination or final adverse determination. The Insurance
Commissioner would be responsibie for accepting requests for external
review and forwarding them to independent review organizations for a

decision.

Health Carrier Grievance Procedure Model Act — To provide standards for the
establishment and maintenance of procedures by health carriers to assure
that covered persons have the opportunity for the appropriate resolution of

grievances.

Utilization Review and Benefit Determination Model Act — To establish
standards and criteria for the structure and operation of utilization review and
benefit determination processes designed to facilitate ongoing assessment

and management of health care services.

Any process used by a plan to resolve a claim dispute must be conducted without

imposing fees on the claimant. The bill also preserves the existing utilization review and

external review processes in state law for grandfathered plans. The new law would only

apply to nongrandfathered plans.

In summary, plans and insurers must have an effective and fair claims and appeals
. process. As noted, HHS will determine if the state’s process meets the minimum
consumer protections. HHS has indicated that the details of the claims and appeal



processes must be codified so we will likely not meet federal requirements if we simply
refer to a separate piece of federal law or regulation. | believe that it is important to
North Dakotans to ensure these processes are overseen at the state level and not the
federal level.

Before this bill was filed, | shared a draft with all the major health insurance companies
doing business in North Dakota. Two companies responded with comments. There are
a couple of areas where the models used to craft the bill vary from the requirements of
the DOL rules which are in the definition of a “grievance” and the voluntary level of
review. In conversations we have had with HHS, we were informed that if our state’s
process follows at least the minimum protections contained in the DOL rules, the state
will be allowed to oversee the claims appeal process. If our state process does not
have those minimum protections, however, the federal government will almost certainly
take over the administration of the external review process. Given that information, we
are willing to work with these insurers on amendments that would address these areas
to align the requirements of the bill with those of the DOL. rules. If the proposed
amendments do not, however, follow at least the requirements of the DOL rules, it

would be difficult to see how | could support them due to the likely loss of state control.

| do also want to mention that this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom
or effectiveness of its provisions. It is merely the means by which the issue of whether

the state or federal government should enforce the law is brought before you.

Lastly, the final section of the bill was added to take care of another PPACA
consequence. It amends existing N.D.C.C. § 26.1-03-01 to provide an exception for
health insurers to the limitation on risks acceptable by insurers. The existing section
provides that an insurance company may not expose itself to loss on any one risk or
hazard to an amount exceeding 10 percent of its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock
company, or 10 percent of its surplus if a mutual company, unless the excess is

reinsured.



The amendment provides that an insurance company offering group or individual
insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of PPACA is
not subject to this section. Insurers can no longer impose lifetime or annual benefit limit
restrictions on most group or individual health insurance plans. The amendment is
being sought because, although in practice it is uniikely that the payouts under any one
health insurance policy could exceed 10 percent of a health insurer’s surplus, the
elimination of the benefit caps by PPACA could result in a conflict with current state law
and would mean a company would be out of compliance with surplus or capital

requirements.

This concludes my testimony. | would be happy to try to answer any questions you may
have. Thank you.
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Testimony on House Bill 1127
House Industry Business and Labor Committee
January 17, 2011

Chairman Keiser and members of the House Industry Business and Labor Committee, for the record | am
Rod St. Aubyn, representing Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota. Because this bill is so complicated
and detailed we have representatives from our Legal Department and Medical Management Division
here today to answer any technical or operational questions. We support the concept of HB 1127, but
are quite concerned about many details within this proposed bill and would like to offer amendments to
address these concerns. Qur staff have spent extensive time reviewing the 3 original bills and now the
combined HB 1127. ! think BCBSND and the Insurance Department are after the same goal — to extend
jurisdiction to the Insurance Department and incorporate provisions of PPACA regarding External
Review, Utilization Review, and the specified grievance procedures. At the same time, we do not think it
is in the public’s best interest to go beyond what is required by PPACA and the associated regulations
which wil! add costs to already increasing health insurance premiums.

The following includes a comparative analysis between those provisions included in the legislation
proposed by the North Dakota insurance Department through House Bili 1127 related to required claims
and appeals procedures that are now mandated for health plans with the requirements in the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act, PL 111-148, enacted March 23, 2010, and the Health Care and
Education Reconciliation Act, PL 111-152, enacted on March 30, 2010, which are referred to in this
analysis as PPACA.

BACKGROUND

In the most simplified terms, PPACA extended current internal federal claims and appeals requirements
adopted during the Clinton Administration in 2001. On July 1, 2002, the U.S. Department of Labor, under
authority granted by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), put into effect new
regulations covering claims procedures for employer-based health plans. These regulations were the
first updated claims procedures regulations issued by the federal government since 1977 and had been
under development since 1998. The regulations were originally published in the Federal Register in
November 2000 to become effective on January 1, 2001, however, after the Bush Administration took
office, the applicability date of these regulations was delayed until july 1, 2002, These initial regulations
created standards for claims procedures, required greater disclosure of information by insurers, outlined
requirements for insurers' appeals processes, and established set timelines for insurers in responding to
customer claims and appeals.

INTERNAL CLAIMS AND APPEALS PROCESSES

PPACA establishes two major changes to the current internal claims and appeals requirements. The first
is to extend these requirements from only group health plans to individual insurance policies and other
group health plans not included in the previous requirements. The second was to amend or impose
changes to several aspects of the existing regulatory requirements. These changes include expanding
the definition of adverse benefit determination to ‘nclude rescissions, amending the response time for
claims for urgent care from 72 hours to 24 hours, implementing new information disclosure
requirements providing for “full and fair” review, expanding limitations on “conflicts of interests” for
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reviewers, expanding the requirements for notifications to customers, creating guidelines for culturally
and linguistically appropriate standards, revising the strict compliance requirements in the previous
regulations, and clarifying continuing coverage requirements throughout the appeal process.

The original claims and appeals requirements included specific definitions established by the federal
government when implementing these regulations, which were implemented and have been in place
and followed by all insurance companies and third party administrators since July 1, 2002. BCBSND
implemented these requirements beginning in 2001 effective for its group health insurance business
upon the anniversary of any group health plan through July 1, 2002, and BCBSND has been compliant
with these requirements since that time. Moreover, because it was not cost-effective to administer two
separate claims and appeals processes, BCBSND extended its federally mandated claims and appeals
requirements to its fully insured individua! book of business as well. In other words, BCBSND has
developed timeframes and implemented processes based on the original internal claims and appeals
requirements for both its fully insured group and individual lines of business that have been in place and
followed for over 10 years as of this moment in time.

Critical to the administration of these original internal claim and appeals regulations are the definitions
included in the federal regulation, which not only defined what constituted a claim for benefits and
adverse benefit determination, but also established specific timeframes for claims and appeals reviews
dependent upon whether these claims for benefits were pre-service claims or post-service claims.
Again, BCBSND has developed timeframes and implemented processes based on the definitions set
forth in the original claims and appeals requirements that have been in place and followed for over 10
years at this moment in time.

Although the state of North Dakota did not enact any legislation in 2001 setting forth mandated claims
and appeals requirements available to customers of insurance companies, in 2003 the legislature did
enact legislation that applied to all pre-service claims that were submitted by health care providers to
health insurance companies on behalf of their patients with health insurance. This legislation amended
§26.1-26.4-04, N.D.C.C., to track the federal internal claims and appeals requirements by specifically
referencing the federal laws containing these requirements. See, e.g., §26.1-26.4-04(10), N.D.C.C,,
“Notification of a determination by the utilization review agent must be provided to the enrollee or
other appropriate individual in accordance with 26 U.S.C. 1133 and the timeframes set forth in 29 CFR
2560-503-1” see also S.L. 2003, ch. 248, §1 (Senate Bill number 2184).

As a result, in regard to the internal claims and appeals requirements, all insurance companies in North
Dakota were required to comply with these requirements, develop administrative processes, and extend
the protections contained with the federal regulations by July 1, 2002, and BCBSND has been providing
the protections of these federal laws since that time. Similarly, for all pre-service claims (claims
involving prior approval or preauthorization for benefits}, all insurance companies in North Dakota have
been required by state law to meet the internal claims and appeals requirements required under federal
law. This includes BCBSND. ' '

Proposed House Bill 1127 includes separate legislative requirements that incorporate new definitions
and expanded administrative requirements that apply to the internal claims and appeals processes that
have applied to and have been and administered by insurance companies since 2001, and that expand
beyond those amended and new requirements than are required under PPACA. BCBSND proposes to
delete those provisions of House Bill 1127 that alter the definitions and administrative processes that
apply to internal claims and appeals procedures to track the requirements imposed under the original
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. regulations as now amended by PPACA and recognize the processes that have been in place since 2001.
The amended federal internal claims and appeals requirements aiready anticipate a costly
administrative burden. Qur staff has calculated the additional added costs already anticipated for these
new requirements of PPACA. We have estimated that these provisions required hy PPACA will increase
our costs by approximately $275,000 per year plus $300,000 in one-time implementation costs.
BCBSND currently is in the process of developing and implementing these new requirements. But to
impose additional layers of administrative requirements, including changing definitions and expanding
certain requirements that impact processes already established that are fully compliant with the federal
regulations as proposed in House Bill 1127 is unduly burdensome. Qur staff has projected that the costs
to implement the changes within HB 1127 that go beyond what PPACA will cost our members and your
constituents, approximately an additional $600,000 annually in addition to the costs we will incur with
the PPACA requirements. In addition it is estimated that one-time implementation cost of $50,000.
Keep in mind, other provisions within PPACA will have a significant impact on premiums in the future.
We need to keep this in mind and try to avoid any unnecessary increases that go beyond the minimal
requirements of PPACA.

EXTERNAL APPEALS PROCESS.

PPACA included a new requirement related to health insurance companies and third party
administrators that was never before required under federal or North Dakota state law, and this
involves an independent external appeals process that was available to members. BCBSND is currently
required to meet the federai guidelines as contained in two technical releases issued by the United
States Department of Labor. However, these external appeal processes are exceedingly different from
the provisions offered by the Department in Section 4 of House Bill 1127. As a resuit, BCBSND proposes
amendments to refer to PPACA legislation and associated rules and regulations.

OTHER PROBLEMATIC PROVISIONS

House Bill 1127 contains an amendment to §26.1-26.4-01, N.D.C.C., that will restrict the ability of
insurance companies that want to extend the federal claims and appeals requirements across all
company lines of business from doing so and prohibits insurance companies from providing these
protections to “grandfathered” health plans, as these plans are defined under PPACA. There may be
valid reasons for insurance companies to desire expanding the claims and appeals requirements across
all company lines including economies of scale and costs involved with administering two separate
claims and appeals processes.

The amendment in Section 3, page 2, lines 12-14, does not comply with the new external review
requirements contained in PPACA and does not extend any external appeal protections to consumers
{except, perhaps tangentially in the case of pre-service claims). 1t will permit an avenue of external
review to health care providers, which was not contemplated under the federal law, where external
appeals were restricted to consumers only. This is one area of great discrepancy between the NAIC
model laws and the PPACA requirements, which fimit external appeals only to consumers. HB 1127
expands these claims and appeal rights to health care providers, which was never contemplated under
the federal regulations or PPACA. Retaining this provision will certainly lead to confusion in regard to
. the external appeals process required under PPACA and added cost.

Several provisions of the proposed bills contain requirements related to utilization review that conflict
with chapter 26.1-26.4, N.D.C.C.



The external review requirements contained in §26.1-36-44, N.D.C.C., remain intact but only for
grandfathered plans. This could result in numerous administrative processes and confusion.

Section 6 of House Bill 1127 contains a grievance process but there are no amendments or consideration
given to §26.1-36-42, N.D.C.C,, a statute entitled, “Grievance procedures”. Again, this will require two
separate administrative processes and cause confusion.

On page 86, Section 26.1-36.8-07, establishes a “mandatory” voluntary levei of reviews of grievances.
Not only is such a process not contemplated under the federal claims and appeals requirements adding
a costly and unnecessary level of administration not included within PPACA, but it imposes as a mandate
a voluntary level of review that is permissive to the insurance company under PPACA. The voluntary
hearing process imposes a fiduciary responsibility onto the review committee not contemplated under
federal law and usually unwanted by the health plan.

One more example of discrepancies of this bill that is not only problematic, but ultimately very costly
deals with page 67, lines 21-23. There is no definition or reference to this in PPACA for “postevaluation
or poststabilization services” and the insurer must maintain a designated representative 24/7, which is
also not a requirement of PPACA. Because of the nature of the requirement, it would mean that we
would have to have a physician available 24/7 even though we don’t have preauthorization or prior
approval requirements for emergency services.

CONCLUSION

As our staff was going through the bill there were so many proposed amendments and notations of
differences between PPACA requirements and the propesed bill, it became apparent that there was a
much simpler process to achieve the same goal that we thought both the insurance Department and
BCBSND wanted to achieve - establish a state standard that would be exactly the same as the federal
PPACA law and associated regulations. Our proposed solution would be to reference the applicable
federal laws instead of adopting the bill offered by the Department. The advantages are:

No unwarranted and not-required administrative process outside of those included in PPACA.

Insurance companies, and the North Dakota legislature, adopted the claims and appeals requirements
and have offered these to consumers for over 10 years, and it is far easier and less expensive to just
expand the “new” PPACA requirements to the current processes.

Our proposal is far less complicated, easier to understand and implement than the proposed bill.

Our proposal guarantees the same claims and appeals processes for members of both fully insured and
self-funded plans {but perhaps not grandfathered and non-grandfathered plans as provided by PPACA).

Should the federal law or the regulations be changed in the future, ND's requirements would be up to
date and not require a change during an upcaming legislative session. In addition, if that were to occur
with passage of HB 1127, it would result in two different processes for fully insured and seif-funded



plans until the legislature made the required changes. We are aware that the federal government is in
fact already looking at some changes before the required July 1, 2011, impiementation date.

This proposal (referencing the federal faw) is common in the Insurance Code (ie NDCC 26.1-36-09.11,
NDCC 26.1-36-12, NDCC 26.1-36-44, NDCC 26.1-36.5-05, NDCC 26.1-26.4-04, etc.)

The Department can extend its jurisdiction over the claims and appeals provisions of fully insured plans.

Mr. Chairman and Committee members, this is a very complicated and costly process. It is our hope
that the ND Legislature will see the merit in assuring that ND's requirements do not go beyond what is
required by PPACA and their regulations. We ask that you adopt our proposed amendments and
approve this bill to ensure that the State of North Dakota and the Insurance Commissioner retains
jurisdiction in this important aspect of insurance law. We would be willing to answer any questiens that
the committee may have.
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TESTIMONY

Good morning, Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Rebecca
Ternes and | am Deputy Insurance Commissioner. | appear before you today to ask that
you restore House Bill No. 1127 to the originally proposed bill and adopt an amendment

based on extensive feedback from several insurance companies.

The intent of House Bill No. 1127 is to set forth requirements that health insurers must
follow when consumers disagree with their determinations regarding coverage. The
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) and federal regulations lay out
specifics for how a person might request a reconsideration of an insurer’'s decision to
deny coverage including an insurer's failure to pay based on an individual’s eligibility to
participate in a plan; that a benefit is not covered or is limited; or that a benefit is
experimental, investigational, or not medically necessary. These requirements closely
follow procedures long used by companies on the self-insured side of their businesses.
PPACA provides a system for either a state external review process or a federal

external review process once all internal methods are exhausted.

As Commissioner Hamm stated in his original testimony, the reason the Insurance
Department brought this lengthy bill with all of its detail to you is to ensure that the
state’s appeals process remains within the control of the State of North Dakota and not
the federal government. Similar to how we have approached all of the healthcare reform
legistation, our goal was to implement the minimum required by PPACA in order to

maintain state control.



By July 1, 2011, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) will be
reviewing North Dakota's internal claims appeal process and external review process to
determine whether they pass muster with the federal requirements. After several
lengthy conversations with HHS, we have been informed they do not favor the approach
suggested by North Dakota Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) in the amendment
incorporated into the bill as it sits today. This approach will risk the state’s ability to
retain the authority over the handling of external review. This could lead to the
possibility of consumers having to “phone a friend” in the federal government for

assistance—something the Insurance Department adamantly opposes.

HHS has made it clear they will be very concerned with any states where the process is
not clearly laid out for consumers. Without a process laid out clearly in law, how can it

be enforced?

The amendments presented by BCBS refer to a federal law and federal regulations.
While | realize that from time to time our state law will refer to federal laws or
regulations, this trail of federal bureaucratic crumb dropping is not easy for consumers
to follow and is not our preference for good, clean policymaking. Most importantly, it is
not necessary. Additionally, it appears that the regulations cited in the BCBSND
amendment do not deal with health insurance claims or appeals. Page 2 of the
proposed amendments cites to “26 CFR 54", which deals with pension excise taxes. It is
unclear what this citation intends to refer to—one section of the code or to a group of
code sections. Consumers are going to have a difficult time knowing where to find
appeal procedures in a regulation that deals with pension excise taxes. The citation to
“26 CFR 802" is also unclear in that it does not refer to a particular section or chapter.
26 CFR Part 602 deals with OMB Control Numbers under the Paperwork Reduction Act.
Similarly, the cites to "29 CFR 2590” and “45 CFR 147" are unclear as to whether they
are intended to refer to one particular section of the code or to a group of code sections.
How will consumers be able to go through tens of sections of the Code of Federal
Regulations and determine which one applies? This is not consumer friendly nor does it

bode well for enforcement.



As to the suggestion that the federal healthcare reform law may change, the
amendments proposed will not incorporate any changes that may be made in the future.
A bill may adopt by reference an existing law or regulation. But, except for federal
income tax laws, a bill may not adopt future amendments. According to State v. Julson,
202 N.W.2d 145 (N.D. 1972); Weber v. Weber, 512 N.W.2d 723, 730-731 (N.D. 1994);
McCabe v. N.D. Worker's Compensation Bureau, 567 N.W2d 201 (N.D. 1997); and

Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of North Dakota, once the state law is enacted, it

will refer to the federal law and the regulations as they existed on that day. So, if the
federal law would change, or the regulations would change, the state law would not
change along with them. Courts have found that an attempt to adopt future laws, rules

or regulations is an unlawful delegation of legislative power.

In the first hearing it was stated that the originally proposed bill might add to the
expenses of insurance companies and, therefore, be passed on to consumers in the
form of premiums. We have not been presented the specific costs of each of the
processes suggested in this bill. In fact three of the insurers we spoke to about this bill
indicated this does not change their business practices at all because all insurers
already have this process in place for self-insured business and a number of them for

efficiency purposes use it for fully insured business as well.

We have taken a further step with today’s amendment to ensure requirements in the
legislation that are not specifically required in PPACA are removed such as the ability to
have an additional level of voluntary review and requiring a medical expert be on call
24/7 for appeals. We also incorporated BCBS’s suggestion that they be given the option

to apply this law to grandfathered plans at their discretion.

In enacting the original bill with the Department’'s amendments you will be assuring that
North Dakotans will be able to ask their own Insurance Department for assistance with
appeatls and not take the risk that instead they will be passed on to a federal agency.
They will also be able to go to one place—our state law-—and know what their minimum

appeal rights are no matter what insurer carries their coverage.
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. Melissa Hauer, the Department’'s General Counsel, will be walking through the specifics

of the amendments and we will both be available for questions.

Thank you for your consideration.




HB 1127
Consideration of Insurance Department Amendments
February 14, 2011

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, for the record | am Rod 5t. Aubyn representing Blue Cross Blue
Shield of North Dakota.

We had our Medical Management and Legal staff review the proposed amendments offered by the
Insurance Department. While some of the proposed amendments address a few of our concerns, there
still remain many items within HB 1127 that go beyond the rules, regulations, and specific language of
PPACA. | will address some of their concerns below:

The page 1 change to Section 2 of the bill kind of follows the proposed amendment requested by
BCBSND to atlow grandfathered plans to follow the federal claims and appeals requirements. However,
as | understand this legislation from the Department, the proposed language change does not extend to
the initial claim or “grievance”, only to Section 5 of HB 1127, regarding appeals of “grievances” or the
initiat claim for benefits, | would argue that permitting “grandfathered” plans to follow the legislation
proposed by the Department under HB 1127 extends administrative requirements significantly beyond
PPACA, but to even meet the requirements of the federal law, the amendment proposed by the
Department would need to extend to Section 6 of HB 1127, too, governing “grievances” or the initial
claim and not just appeals as the proposed amendment does. This may be further evidence of how
complicated the bill is. But at a minimum, the requirements included even with the proposed
amendments extend way beyond PPACA.

The next significant amendment proposed by the Departmeht, to page 67, line 23, amends language
objected to by BCBSND and concerns regarding staffing nurse or doctors 24/7/365 to address post-
stabilization or post-evaluation services. This is a requirement that does not currently exist under the
federal claims and appeals requirements. Importantly, please note that the Department’s solution, to
exclude the requirement so long as the insurance company pays any claims incurred during this time
period {"or otherwise provide coverage with no financial penalty to the covered person”), is not a
satisfactory response to address the concern. The requirement still exceeds the requirements
established by PPACA, which has no similar requirement by offering a choice, incur costs of staffing
personnel to meet the requirement or incur costs by simply paying the claim. Additionally, to obligate a
health plan or insurance company to extend coverage for services under a health plan where these
services are not covered benefits or not medically necessary and appropriate is potentially a violation of
the plan’s fiduciary obligations to the plan participants at its worst, but simply paying claims as a result
of expediency certainly is not a sign of being a good steward of member health care dollars. This
requirement would also result in a2 violation of the administrative agreement in place between BCBSND
and its employer groups.

The proposed changes on pages 84 through 91 appear to delete the requirements that insurance
companies offer the full blown claims and appeals processes for claims NOT involving adverse benefit
determinations {which is not required under PPACA), as well as the "voluntary” but mandatory appeals
requirement contained in the initial bill (atso not required under PPACA), tirrough the removal of certain
language. The first concession, eliminating the non-adverse benefil determination requirements, does



provide for some administrative savings from the initial bill, but this requirement was never included as
a part of PPACA. Additionally, the mandatory “voluntary” requirements that the Department proposes
to remove leave the remaining bill very confusing and maintain additional administrative requirements
not included in PPACA that will add cost to administering fully insured health plans. The proposed HB
1127 still appears to require an insurance company to: provide a statement to a covered person that
there is no voluntary level of review and a statement directing a covered person to contact the
Department, requirements outside of any administrative directive contained in PPACA.

The remaining proposed amendments simply correct the section number changes brought about by the
removal of the two provisions described above.

There still exist additional provisions that go beyond PPACA. There are numercus additional
administrative reports and surveys that need to be submitted to the Department, extending the scope
of the federal claims and appeals and external review requirements beyond PPACA to include, e.g.,
health care providers, and other costly administrative burdens not otherwise required under PPACA.
Additionally, these bills as engrossed together are confusing and do not appear to flow freely together
but in several instances contain repetitive and, worse, contradictory provisions. The bill also remains
confusing in light of two existing North Dakota statutory requirements, and through the use of terms

and concepts included in the NAIC model acts that do not appear in the federal claims and appeals
requirements.

This bill also extends appeal rights to medical providers, not intended within PPACA. The hill as propased
also would extend jurisdiction by fiat to the Department over numerous reimbursement issues normally
the subject of contract between BCBSND and its participating providers through the definitions included
in the proposed HB 1127 and through the fact that many of the coding /bundling reimbursement issues
are easily transposed over Lo the claims and appeals process. This is an aspect of the NAIC moadel acts
verified and acknowledged by commentators addressing these model acts, as represented in HB 1127,
And it results in a significant extension of the coverad person’s claims and appeal rights significantly
beyond those contained in PPACA.

The only time the federal claims and appeals requirements refer to health care providers in acting on
behalf of a claimant is in 29 CFR Section 2560.503-1{b}{4), wherein the regulations provides: “The claims
procedures do not preclude an authorized representative of a claimant from acting on behalf of such
claimant in pursuing a benefit claim or appeal of an adverse benefit determination. Nevertheless, a plan
may establish reasonable procedures for determining whether an individual has been authorized to act
on behalf of a claimant, provided that, in the case of a claim invoiving urgent care, . . . a health care
professional . . ., with knowledge of a claimant’s medical condition shall be permitted to act as the
authorized representative.” What this language means is that a claimant may have any person act on
their hehalf as an authorized representative so long as the claimant follows the plan’s reasonable
procedure for becoming authorized, except in cases involving a claim for urgent care, in which case the
health care provider may act so long as the provider is familiar with the claimant’s medical condition. In
other words, except in cases involving urgent care, the plan can reguire an authorization process before
a provider can seek reimbursement for a claim.

" In the definitions of “authorized representative” included throughout HB 1127, in particular in Section 5
and Section 6, the authorization process left up to the plan under federal law is changed by requiring



only consent by the claimant. None of these definitions appear under PPACA or other federal laws. This
consent requirement undermines the concept of the federal regulations by allowing a claimant the
authority to simply “consent” to the representation by a provider in these instances, where the federal
requirements permit a process developed by the plan. As with claims for urgent care, which do not
allow this authorization process, BCBSND is certain to see an increase in claims and appeals by
providers, some of whom may simply include such “consent” in their intake and other registration forms
presented to their patients. This will result in added administrative costs and additionat claims paid, and
more cost. It will also require changes to current BCBSND administrative processes that currently meet
and follow the federal claims and appeals requirements. And through this simple “consent” process, it
will be relatively easy for providers to turn normally reimbursement issues involving coding, as an
example, into a denial of a benefit under the health plan, and implication of this entire review process,
occasionally without even the covered person’s knowledge.

Medical management staff also noted some areas of concern which are presented below:

I get a hit confused by their definition of “Grievance” and how they intend to regulate within the
appeals process. On page 71 is the definition of Grievance which is a complaint related to 3 issues. One
of the issues is a complaint about adverse benefit determinations (Letter a}. Letters b and ¢ seem to
mean anything else a member wishes to appeal {reimbursement, claims payment, a non-covered benefit
etc.). Since they are amending this section to remove 26.1-36.8-06 {pages 84, 85) how are we to apply a
“grievance” procedure for issues b and c? Or doesn’t it matter and their appeal process regulation
doesn’t have to include processes for the entire definition?

We previously proposed amendments that your committee adopted that would simply make ND law the
same as required under PPACA. That way, you can be assured that ND standards are not more than that
required by PPACA. This is not unusual. It has occurred in numerous locations of the Insurance laws
within the ND Century Code. | referenced many of those in my previous testimony. i have inciuded
some of those highlighted sections for your benefit.

The requirements for these areas are clearty laid out or will soon be adopted by government agencies
and are the minimal standard that must be applied to all self funded and fully insured products. States
may adopt additional standards for fully insured products, but are precluded from doing so on self
funded plans. About 50% of our market is covered by the self funded plans.

One final note that | want to emphasize for the committee is very important to understand. The rules
and regulations for the appeals process within PPACA are still evolving. | wanted to share with you a
memo that | received last Thursday. There was conference call with the BCBS Association and members
of our Reform Task Force. Their discussions were a summary of meetings with Federal agencies
adopting rules, regulations, and guidance for PPACA. You will note that several changes are expected to
be made within the next two weeks. By simply adopting our amendments, we can be assured that these
changes will be reflected in ND’s law and will eliminate the need to have two appeal processes — one for
fully insured plans and a different cne for self-funded plans.

Mr. Chairman and committee members, we urge you to adopt the amendments you previously adopted

and not include these amendments which will expand requirements beyond PPACA and will increase
costs for our members.



26.1-36-09.11. Breast reconstruction surgery. An insurance company, nonprofit

health service corporation, or health maintenance organization may not deliver, issue, execute,
or renew any health insurance palicy, health service contract, or evidence of coverage on an
individual, group, blanket, or franchise basis unless the policy, contract, or evidence of
insurance provides the benefit provisions of the federal Women's Heaith and Cancer Rights Act
of 1998 [Pub. L. 105-277; 112 Stat. 2681-337; 42 U.S.C. 300gg-6]. This section does not apply
to individual or group supplemental, specified disease, long-term care, or other limited benefit
policies.

26.1-36.5-05. Authority and jurisdiction. This chapter is adopted pursuant to the requirements
of sections 4301 and 13623 of Public Law 103-66 [107 Stat. 312; 29 U.S.C. 1161 et seq. and 42
U.8.C. 1396g-1]. The commissioner may take any action reasonably necessary to enforce this
chapter and section 26.1-36-12. Any insurer subject to the provisions of this chapter or section
26.1-36-12 must submit to the jurisdiction of the commissioner and to the courts of this state to
the greatest extent permitted under state or federal law.

26.1-26.4-04. Minimum standards of utilization review agents. All utilization review agents
must meet the following minimum standards:
1. Notification of a determination by the utilization review agent must be provided to the enrollee
or other appropriate individual in accordance with 20 U.S.C. 1133 and the timeframes set forth
in 29 CFR 2560.503-1.
2. Any determination by a utilization review agent as to the necessity or appropriateness of an
admission, service, or procedure must be reviewed by a physician or, if appropriate, a licensed
psychologist, or determined in accordance with standards or guidelines approved by a physician
or licensed psychologist.

3. Any notification of a determination not to certify an admission or service or procedure must
include the information required by 28 U.S.C. 1133 and 29 CFR 2560.503-1.
4. Utilization review agents shall maintain and make available a written description of the appeal
procedure by which enroliees or the provider of record may seek review of determinations by
the utilization review agent. The appeal procedure must provide for the following:
a. On appeal, all determinations not to certify an admission, service, or procedure as being
necessary or appropriate must be made by a physician or, if appropriate, a licensed
psychologist.
b. Utilization review agents shall complete the adjudication of appeals of determinations not to
certify admissions, services, and procedures in accordance with 29 U.S.C. 1133 and the
timeframes for appeals set forth in 29 CFR 2560.503-1.
c. Utilization review agents shall provide for an expedited appeals process complying with 29
U.S.C. 1133 and 29 CFR 2560.503-1.
5. Utilization review agents shall make staff available by toll-free telephone at least forty hours
per week during normal business hours.
8. Utilization review agents shall have a telephone system capable of accepting or recording
incoming telephone calls during other than normal business hours and shall respond to these
calls within two working days.
7. Utilization review agents shall comply with ail applicable laws to protect confidentiality of
individual medical records.
8. Psychologists making utilization review determinations shall have current licenses from the
state board of psychologist examiners. Physicians making utilization review determinations shalf
have current licenses from the state board of medical examiners.
9. When conducting utitization review or making a benefit determination for emergency services:



a. A utilization review agent may not deny coverage for emergency services and may not
require prior authorization of these services.

b. Coverage of emergency services is subject to applicable copayments, coinsurance, and
deductibles.

10. When an initial appeal to reverse a determination is unsuccessful, a subsequent
determination regarding hospital, medical, or other health care services provided or to be
provided to a patient which may result in a denial of third-party reimbursement or a denial of
precertification for that service must include the evaluation, findings, and concurrence of a
physician trained in the relevant specialty to make a final determination that care provided or to
be provided was, is, or may be medically inappropriate.

However, the commissioner may find that the standards in this section have been met if the
utilization review agent has received approval or accreditation by a utilization review
accreditation organization.



_Rod St. Aubyn

.’n: Tim Huckle
t: Thursday, February 10, 2011 3:.00 PM
To: Mark Tschider; Paul von Ebers; Dan Uimer; Rod St. Aubyn; Bob Stroup; Brad Bartle; Kimberly
Myers; Judd Wagner; Denise Kolpack
Subject: Guidance Coming on Appeals Rule

On BCBSA Reform Task Force cali.
Just heard that we are expecting guidance in the next two weeks that will:

e Eliminate the requirement for ICD codes on the EOB. It sounds like we may need to add a tag line indicating the
code information is available upon request.

s There is also a softening on the linguistic translation thresholds for members. There are moving to a county by
county 10% threshold. We may not have any counties that reach a 10% threshold for any one language so this

change may not affect us. Kim, do we have any counties with 10% of higher population speaking a specific
language other than English?

» Urgent Claims — Going back to the 72 hours requirement with some education and compliance required.

e Administration is asking if we can be compliant by 7/1/11.

Tim Huckle

Chief Operating Officer

BlueCross BlueShield of North Dakota
701-282-1539
tim.huckle@bcbsnd.com

Confidentiality Notice: This communication and any attachiments are for the sole use of the intended recipiet(s) and may contain confidential and privilegod
infornation. Any unawthorized review, use, disclosure, distribulion or copying is prohibited. If you are notthe intended reciplent(s], please contact the sender by
veplying to this e-mail and destroyfdetete all copies of this e~mail message.



HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Presented by: Rebecca Ternes
Deputy Commissioner
North Dakota Insurance Department

Before: House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Representative George Keiser, Chairman

Date: February 16, 2011

TESTIMONY

Good morning, Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Rebecca

Ternes. | am the Deputy Insurance Commissioner.

| stand before you on House Bill No. 1127 to reiterate the ultimate decision that you
have to make with this bill. The choice is whether to have the state or federal
government oversee health insurance appeals. If you want the state to oversee the
process, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) has indicated that
the bill as introduced or with the Depariment’s amendments would almost certainly

accomplish that goal.

Adopting the approach in the amendments written by Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS)
substantially increases the risk of losing oversight of this process to the federal
government. Again, this is a choice between one approach that has the best chance of
maintaining state control and another approach where the risk of losing that control is

increased.

Thank you and | would be happy to take any questions.



February 8, 2011
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 20, after “plans” and before the period insert “unless a health care insurer
or utilization review agent determines to extend the protections of section 5 of
this Act to a grandfathered plan”

Page 9, line 26, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 13, line 10, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 13, line 18, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 13, line 30, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 14, line 3, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 20, line 23, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 20, line 28, replace “26.1-36.8-0_8."' yyith “26.1-36.8—06"
Page 63, line 23, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 67, line 23, after “review” and before the period insert “or otherwise provide
coverage with no financial penalty to the covered person”

Page 71, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 76, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 76, remove lines 10 through 12
Page 76, line 13, replace “4.” with *3."
Page 76, line 20, replace "5."” with “4."
Page 76, line 22, replace “6.” with “5.”
Page 77, remove lines 2 through 4 _
Page 77, line 5, replace “(e)” with (_c_i)

Page 77, line 6, replace “(f)" with “(e)"



. Page 77, line 7, replace “(g)” with “(f}"
Page 77, line 8, replace “(h)" with “(g)"
Page 77, line 12, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with "26.1-36.8-06"

Page 77, line 14, remove *, 26.1-36.8-0'6_. and 26.1-36.8-07"

Page 77, line 16, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with "26.1-36.8-06"
Page 77, line 21, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 77, line 31, remove “__26.1-36.8-06, and 26.1-36.8-07"

Page 83, line 8, remove “the covered person wishes to request”

Page 83, line 9, replace “pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-07" with “is offered by the health
carrier”

Page 84, remove lines 11 through 31
. Page 85, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 86, remove lines 1 through 29

Page 87, remove lines 1 through 30 -

Page 88, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 89, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 90, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 91, remove lines 1 through 2

Page 91, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 94, line 26, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with "26.1-36.8-07"

Page 94, line 28, replace “26.1-36.8-10" with “26.1-36.8-08"

Renumber accordingly




Testimony on Engrossed House Bill No. 1127
Senate Human Services Committee
Rep. George Keiser

Madam Chair and Committee members, | am Rep. George Keiser, representing
District 47 in Bismarck.

| was asked to introduce this bill by the insurance Department. The House
Industry Business and Labor committee, which | chaired, originally heard this bill.
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, often referred as PPACA,
established some minimum health insurance appeal processes. In order to give
the Insurance Commissioner the authority to enforce these new federai
requirements, it is necessary for the state to establish its own state law that is
comparable or stricter than the federal law. The original bill included the
components of three National Association of Insurance Commissioners {(NAIC)
model acts. These 3 components included model acts for Internal Appeals,
External Appeals, and Utilization Review. It came to us as a 95 page bill.
Testimony heard in our committee indicated that the proposed bill went beyond
the minimum requirements of PPACA. |n addition, we became aware that federal
agencies were considering changes that were less stringent than those issued last
year in the federal interim final regulations. These interim final regulations are
scheduled to be finalized on July 1, 2011.

Our committee was concerned about all of the anticipated additional costs
associated with PPACA. Amendments were offered by representatives from Blue
Cross Blue Shield to basically say that ND’s laws regarding Internal Appeals,
External Appeals, and Utilization Review would be the same as the requirements
of PPACA, but nothing more than that. We ultimately adopted those
amendments. If there are changes in the future to the federal law or regulations,
the engrossed bill makes it clear that the Insurance Commissioner is to adopt
administrative rules to make sure the state law remains “substantively equivalent
to the federal requirements”. The insurance Department did not support the
proposed amendments and felt that more specificity is needed in order for HHS to



certify that the state can enforce the minimum PPACA requirements. While we
respect their opinion, we felt that if there are enough specifics in federal law and
regulations for self-funded plans which the federal government must regulate,
then those same specified federal law and regulations should be adequate for the
Insurance Department to regulate for fully insured plans.

In addition, the Department thought that it was important to have all the
regulations spelled out in the Century Code rather than a reference to the federal
law and regulations in order for the consumer to be knowledgeable. However,
our committee was informed that the new law requires that an insurer must
specify the appeal process in their benefit books that each insurance policyholder
gets. These benefit books must be approved by the Insurance Department. In
addition, our committee felt that the Insurance Department staff would have the
expertise to assist any consumer in explaining the appeal processes if needed.

Madam Chair and committee members, | will attempt to explain the different
sections of the bill as approved by our committee and the full House.

Section 1 is language offered by the Insurance Department in the original bill to
amend provisions of NDCC 26.1-03-01 regarding limitations on risks acceptable by
company. | will let the Department describe that further in their testimony.

Section 2 adopts language to give flexibility to health insurers to decide if they
wish to adopt internal appeals provisions to “grandfathered plans” under PPACA.
Currently these “grandfathered plans” do not have to comply with the internal
appeal provisions, but this section allows flexibility to health insurers to establish
the same standard if they desire to for business reasons.

Section 3 is the section that clarifies that this section dealing with independent
external reviews applies to “grandfathered” plans as defined by PPACA. it also
states that if the federal rules or law change, the Insurance Commissioner must

adopt rules to make sure ND’s laws are “substantively” equivalent to the federal
requirements.

Section 4 establishes that the ND law for external appeal procedures is the same
as the federal requirement. It also contains the same language that if the federal



rules or law change, the Insurance Commissioner must adopt rules to make sure
ND’s laws are “substantively” equivalent to the federal requirements.

Section 5 establishes that the ND law for internal appeal procedures is the same
as the federal requirement. It also contains the same language that if the federal
rules or law change, the Insurance Commissioner must adopt ruies to make sure
ND’s laws are “substantively” equivalent to the federal requirements.

Section 6 is application language that our committee amended in all of the PPACA
bills that states that the Insurance Commissioner is to update our interim
committees on issues regarding PPACA and any changes being made at the
federal level. It directs the Insurance Commissioner to prepare any proposed
legislation for an anticipated special legislative session this fall.

Section 7 includes the emergency clause because these new standards are
supposed to go into effect on July 1, 2011.

Madam Chair and Committee Members, after our committee approved this bill
and the full House approved Engrossed HB 1127, we discovered that we needed

to make a simple correction. | have an amendment to make that correction. | will
explain the amendment now.

Explanation of Proposed Amendments to Engrossed House Bill No 1127

The Engrossed Bill as amended in the House included the emergency clause. That
means that the law would become effective at the time of signature of the
Governor and filing by the Secretary of State.

According to the Legislative Council, when this bill references a federal law and
regulations, it means that the state law would be the same as such reference at
the time of enactment. Interim Final Regulations were initiated with an
enforcement date of july 1, 2011. As a result, we need to clarify that that the
effective date would be July 1, 2011.



In addition recent discussions betweeh Insurers and the Department of Labor
seem to indicate possible changes to their rules within the next few weeks that
could lessen the requirements of the current regulations. If that was to occur
between the time of passage of this bill and July 1, 2011, we need the first part of
these amendments to make it clear that our state law is the same as PPACA with
its regulations on the effective date — July, 2011.

| worked with the legal staff at the Legis!ative Council to address these issues
which is what is reflected in these amendments,

As previously stated, after july 1, 2011, if there are future changes to PPACA or its
associated regulations, then the Insurance Commissioner must adopt
administrative rules to make sure the state law remains “substantively equivalent

to the federal requirements”. It was intention to never go beyond the minimal
requirements of PPACA.

Madam Chair and Committee Members, | hope this fully explains the engrossed
bill and my proposed amendments. There are others here that could probably
answer the more technical nature of the bill, but | would attempt to answer
questions related to the House IBL Committee’s work on this very important bill. |

would urge that you adopt my proposed amendment and that you give this bill as
amended a Do Pass as Amended.



11.8111.03001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Keiser
March 9, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127
Page 1, line 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide an effective date:"

Page 4, line 1, after the second boldfaced period insert "The citations to federal laws and rules
in this Act refer to the versions in effect on the effective date of this Act.”

Page 4, after line 8, insert:

"SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2011."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.8111.03001



Testimony on HB 1127
Senate Human Services Committee 3/16/11

Madam Chair and members of the committee I'm Dan Ulmer representing Blue Cross Blue Shield of
North Dakota and we support this bill as sent you from the House.

HB 1127 came in as a 95 page bill intended to allow North Dakota’s Insurance Commissioner to
implement and regulate the appeals rights explicated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act
(PPACA)by establishing those appeals in state law. The original bill included numerous sections from
several model acts put forth by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC).

As you can imagine we at BCBSND have spent a significant amount of time and effort attempting to
comply with the various sections and ensuing requirements contained in PPACA, That process involves
paying close attention to the federal rules promulgation process. As each rule has come forward we
have done our best to implement it.

BCBSND has fully committed to complying with PPACA and doing that has required us to establish work
groups composed of our experts along with outside counsels. These folks have exerted an incredible
amount of vigilance in assuring that the solutions we implement not only meet PPACA's requirements
but also serve our members in the best way we can.

As you know there are still many federal rules forthcoming, essential benefits, exchanges, and, amongst
others, the appeals rules that are the topic of HB1127. The interim appeals rules have surfaced but
they are still not fully promulgated and our sources in Washington DC that are working directly with the
various departments charged with promulgation (the White House, Dept of Labor, Health and Human
Services ,and the IRS) indicate that several significant changes are still forthcoming.

When HB1127 was introduced our internal workgroup examined it closely and discovered that many of
the requirements in the bill went far beyond the minimum requirements in PPACA and promulgated
rules. So given that the rules are not fully promulgated and the fact that HB1127 went far beyond what
we knew about the existing requirements we asked the House to amend the bill to not go beyond what
PPACA requires and they did so.

In particular we are very concerned that if the original HB1127 passed without our amendments we
insurers would end up with two differing appeals procedures.

As you know seif funded plans are only subject to federal law (regulated by the Dept. of Labor) and fully
insured are subject to state regulation (regulated by the ND Insurance Dept.). So if the original 1127 had
passed unamended we would have ended up with two different appeals procedures depending on who
gets to regulate the plan. It makes sense to us and will be much simpler for patients and their families,
as well as providers, to only have to navigate their concerns through one set of appeal rights and that
would be one of the more important reasons we asked for HB1127 to be amended and as you can see
the House agreed.

2



. Thus HB 1127 as amended wil! assure that North Dakota will have the same appeals process for both the
fully insured and self funded plans. Should federal regulations change in the future amendments in the
house provide that the Insurance Commissioner must adopt administration rules to replicate and not
exceed the minimum requirements of PPACA.

Madam Chair and members of the committee this was not an easy task for us or the insurance
department or the House 1BL committee. The House IBL committee held several hearings on this issue
as they attempted to understand the nuances and details involved in assuring that patients were treated
fairly when they feel their health claims are unfairly denied and such.

However, as Representative Keiser said in his testimony to you, the committee came to the same
conclusion that our internal work group did and that is North Dakota law should not expand beyond
what PPACA requires.

Madam Chair in an attempt to be brief and to the point | have been scant on describing the details of
the appeals process. | am not an expert in this arena , however | do have two of our experts in the room
today that came in from Fargo to assist you in this area if you so desire.

Thank you for your time and we will attempt to answer any questions you might have.

Dan Ulmer

. AVP Government Relations BCBSND



ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127 Dﬁ’/ ’b

Presented by: Adam Hamm
Insurance Commissioner
North Dakota Insurance Department

Before: Senate Human Services Committee
Senator Judy Lee, Chairman

Date: March 186, 2011
TESTIMONY

Good morning, Chairman Lee and members of the committee. My name is Adam
Hamm, North Dakota's Insurance Commissioner. | appear before you today in
opposition to Engrossed House Bill No. 1127 and ask that you restore the language of
the bill as introduced and adopt amendments that the Insurance Department prepared

in February following extensive feedback from several insurance companies.

The intent of the original bill was to set forth requirements that health insurers must
follow when consumers disagree with their determinations regarding coverage. The
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) and federal regulations iay out
specifics for how a person might request a reconsideration of an insurer's decision to
deny coverage including an insurer’s failure to pay based on an individual's eligibility to
participate in a plan; that a benefit is not covered or is limited; or that a benefit is
experimental, investigational, or not medically necessary. These requirements closely
follow procedures long used by companies on the self-insured side of their businesses.
PPACA provides a system for either a state external review process or a federal

external review process once all internal methods are exhausted.

As | stated in my original testimony on this bill in the House (which is attached to this
document), the reason the Insurance Department originally supported House Bill No.
1127 was to ensure that the state’s appeals process remains within the control of the

State of North Dakota and not the federal government. Similar to how we have



approached all of the health care reform legislation, our goal was to implement the

minimum required by PPACA in order to maintain state control.

By July 1, 2011, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) will review
North Dakota's internal claims appeal process and external review process to determine
whether they pass muster with the federal requirements. HHS has made it clear it will
be very concerned with any states where the process is not clearly laid out for
consumers. After several lengthy conversations with HHS, we have been informed they
do not favor the approach included in Engrossed House Bill No. 1127. This approach
will risk the state’s ability to retain the authority over the handling of external review.
This could lead to the possibility of consumers having to go to the federal government

for assistance—something that the Insurance Department opposes.

In the House, it was suggested that Engrossed House Bill No. 1127, which basically just
refers to a federal law and regulations, was the proper course of action because PPACA
may change, but it is important to understand that Engrossed House Bill No. 1127 will
not incorporate any changes that may be made in the future. A bill may adopt by
reference an existing law or regulation. But, except for federal income tax laws, a bill
may not adopt future amendments. According to State v. Julson, 202 N.W.2d 145 (N.D.
1972); Weber v. Weber, 512 N.W.2d 723, 730-731 (N.D. 1994); McCabe v. N.D.
Worker's Compensation Bureayu, 567 N.w2d 201 (N.D. 1997); and Article X, Section 3

of the Constitution of North Dakota, once the state law is enacted, it will refer to the

federal law and the regulations as they existed on that day. So, if the federal law would
change, or the regulations would change, the state law would not change along with
them. Courts have found that an attempt to adopt future laws, rules or regulations is an

unlawful delegation of legislative power.

Also, in the House it was stated that the original proposed bill might add to the
expenses of insurance companies and, therefore, be passed on to consumers in the
form of premiums. We have not been presented the specific costs of each of the
processes suggested. In fact three of the insurers we spoke to about this bill indicated

this does not change their business practices at all because all insurers already have

2



this process in place for self-insured business and a number of them for efficiency

purposes use it for fully insured business as well.

We have taken a further step with the amendments we prepared over the last few
weeks in consuitation with numerous insurance companies to ensure requirements in
the legistation that are not specifically required in PPACA are removed such as the
ability to have an additional level of voluntary review and requiring a medical expert be
on call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week for appeals. We also incorporated Blue Cross
Blue Shield of North Dakota's suggestion that insurers be given the option to apply this

law to grandfathered plans at their discretion.

By enacting the original bill with the Department's amendments you will be assuring that
North Dakotans will be able to ask their own Insurance Department for assistance with
appeals and not take the risk that instead they will be passed on to a federal agency.
They will also be able to go to one place—our state law-—and know what their minimum

appeal rights are no matter which insurer carries their coverage.

The bottom line here is that this is a choice between one approach that has the best
chance of maintaining state control and not losing oversight of this process to the
federal government (original House Bill No. 1127 with amendments we have prepared)
and another approach where the risk of losing that control is substantially increased
(Engrossed House Bill No. 1127).

Thank you and | would be happy to attempt to answer any questions you may have.



HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Presented by: Adam Hamm
Commissioner
North Dakota Insurance Department

Before: House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Representative George Keiser, Chairman

Date: January 17, 2011

TESTIMONY

Good morning, Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Adam
Hamm, the North Dakota Insurance Commissioner. | appear before you today in
support of House Bill No. 1127.

This bill was brought due to the federal health care reform law that was signed into law
on March 23, 2010. The law, known as the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,
was followed one week later by the enactment of the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010. These laws are sometimes referred to as “federal health
care reform”, or “PPACA”". | will refer to them as “PPACA”.

PPACA is lengthy and deals with many topics related to health care reform. This bill
deals only with the requirement that group health plans and health insurers implement
an “effective” process for appeals of coverage determinations and claims, including an
internal claims appeal process (meaning an appeal within the company) and an external

review process {meaning asking an independent third party to review an appeal).

BACKGROUND

Some background information will be helpful in understanding the bill. PPACA provides
that plans and issuers must initially incorporate the internal claims and appeals



processes set forth in regulations issued in 2000 by the U.S. Department of Labor for
plans covered by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Those
regulations require that every employee benefit plan establish and maintain reasonable
claims procedures governing the filing of benefit claims, notification of benefit

determinations and appeal of adverse determinations.

An “adverse determination” means a determination by a health insurance company that
a request for payment of a benefit does not meet requirements for medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care setting, level of care or effectiveness, or is determined to
be experimental or investigational. The requested benefit is, therefore, denied,
reduced, or terminated by the health insurer. It also includes the health insurer's
rescission of a health insurance policy due to fraud or misrepresentation by the insured.
Essentially, an adverse benefit determination occurs when someone with health
insurance received a health care service or treatment and the health insurer declines to
pay, either in whole or in part. This bill deals with the procedures that the health

insurance consumer can use to appeal the insurer's decision.

PPACA recognized that the 2000 Department of Labor regulations contained an existing
standard for this appeals process in those plans governed by ERISA and that process
could be used as the basic model to be applied to all health insurance issuers. PPACA
also added some additional requirements to the claims appeals procedures which were
explained in regulations issued on July 22, 2010, by the Departments of Treasury,
Labor, and Health and Human Services (HHS). The regulations contained the
requirements for the internal claims and appeals procedures for group health plans and
a new requirement for an external appeals process. The new requirements generally
apply to insured and self-insured group health plans beginning with the first plan year
commencing on or after September 23, 2010, but do not apply to group health plans
that are treated as "grandfathered plans.”



It is important to note that most of the health insurers doing business in North Dakota
today also administer some self-insured, ERISA plans in and out of our state and,

therefore, are already required to use these appeals processes.

Changes to Internal Claims and Appeals Procedures

A group health plan and a health insurer must implement an effective process for
appeals of coverage determination and claims. This appeals process must include, at a

minimum, the following™:
o An established internal claims appeal process;

¢ A notice to participants, in a “culturally and linguistically appropriate manner”,
of available internal and external appeals processes, including the availability

of assistance with the appeals processes; and

A provision allowing an enrollee to review his or her file, to present evidence
and testimony as part of the appeals process, and to receive continued

coverage during the appeal process.

Health insurers offering individual coverage and any issuers that were not initially
subject to existing Department of Labor claims appeals rules may initially use claims
and appeals procedures under any other applicable law, such as individual state
insurance requirements. Insurers are now required, however, to update these
procedures specified in the 2010 HHS regulations. The 2010 regulations create the
following six new requirements that supplement the existing ERISA claims and appeals

procedures:

! Act Sec. 1001(5) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by Act Sec. 10101(g).
adding Public Health Service Act Sec. 2719(a}(1)).
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First, the definition of an “adverse benefit determination” that is subject to the
new internat appeals procedures has been expanded to include a “rescission of

coverage.”

Second, the maximum time period within which a plan must notify a claimant of
the determination of an urgent care claims is reduced from 72 hours to 24 hours
after receipt of such claim, unless the claimant fails to provide sufficient
information for the plan to determine whether, or to what extenf, benefits are

covered or payable.

Third, claimants must be allowed to review the claim file and present "evidence
and testimony” as part of the internal claim and appeal process. Upon review of a

denial of a claim, plans must now provide to the claimant, free of charge:

o Any new or additional evidence considered, relied upon, or generated

by the plan in connection with the claim, and

o Any new or additional rationale that will be used as a basis for the
denial of the claim on appeal or review. Plans must provide such
information in advance of any final internal adverse benefit
determination so that the claimant has a reasonable opportunity to

respond prior to the determination.

Fourth, plans must take additional steps to avoid conflicts of interest and ensure

independence and impartiality in the appeals process.

Fifth, a notice of an adverse benefit determination must include significantly more
disclosures, including diagnosis, treatment, and denial codes and an explanation
of those terms.



s Finally, if a plan fails to comply with all requirements of the internal claims and
appeals process, a claimant will be deemed to have exhausted the process and,
therefore, will be eligible to seek external review or judicial review of the claim.
This remedy is available even if the plan has substantially complied with these

requirements or the error was de minimis.

In addition to these six requirements, the 2010 regulations require group health plans to
continue coverage pending the outcome of an internal appeal of an adverse benefit
determination. Plans are generally prohibited frdm reducing or terminating an ongoing
course of treatment without notice and an opportunity to review, and individuals in
urgent care situations and those receiving an ongoing course of treatment may be
allowed to proceed with an expedited external review at the same time as the internal

appeals process.

New Process for External Review of Appeals

The 2010 regulations also provide details of the new external review process for
appeals of final internal adverse benefit determinations and rules determining whether a

state or federal external review process applies.

Under the new regulations, an insured group health plan that is already subject to an
existing state external review process must continue to comply with the applicable state
process if such process includes, at a minimum, the consumer protections set forth in
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ Uniform Modetl Act as in effect on
July 23, 2010 (the “NAIC Model Act”). However, the regulations provide for a transition
period, such that all existing state external review processes are deemed to be in
compliance with the requirements until the first day of the first plan year beginning on or
after July 1, 2011, after which time the Department of Heaith and Human Services will
determine whether a state’s external review process complies with the requirements of
the NAIC Model Act.



Plans that do not meet the minimum standards of the NAIC Model Act must comply with

a federal external review process which will follow the NAIC Model Act as well,
SUMMARY OF THE BILL’S PROVISIONS

Since the bill is lengthy, | will not endeavor to explain every provision but rather will
provide an overview of what it will accomplish. If you have questions as to any specifics
in the bill, | would be happy to try to answer them. As the background section of my
testimony states, the bill is designed to ensure that the state's appeals process is found
to be an “effective” process by the federal government so that our health care
consumers and insurers will have available to them an appeals process overseen by the
state rather than a federal agency. To accomplish this goal, the bill would incorporate
the NAIC Model External Review Act. If HHS determines our state law is not an
effective external review process, health plans issued here will have to comply with a
federal external review process. In other words, North Dakotans will have to deal with a

federal agency when they want to invoke the external review process.

The bilt would also incorporate the NAIC Model Utilization Review Act and the Model
Grievance Procedures Act. These two models work in tandem with the NAIC Model
External Review Act, to provide to consumers the full process of appeals anticipated by
PPACA. Each of these three mode!l acts are designed to work together and they refer
to the others often as they describe the process of utilization review (the health insurer's
initial review of a claim), grievance procedure (internal appeals process), and external
review (review by an outside independent entity). In other words, each of the three
model acts assumes the existence of the others in state law. Without each of the
models, the state’s appeals process would lack one of these three levels of review of

adverse benefit determinations.

These three models are similar to the levels of review given by our court system, with a
trial court giving the first level, the appellate court giving the second level and the

Supreme Court giving the final leve! of review. They work together to ensure a



. hierarchical system of review that offers every consumer the exact same process to

reach a final determination within expressly stated timelines.

The purpose of each model is:

Health Carrier External Review Model Act — To provide uniform standards for
the establishment and maintenance of external review procedures to assure
that covered persons have the opportunity for an independent review of an
adverse determination or final adverse determination. The Insurance
Commissioner would be responsible for accepting requests for external
review and forwarding them to independent review organizations for a

decision.

Health Carrier Grievance Procedure Model Act - To provide standards for the
establishment and maintenance of procedures by health carriers to assure
that covered persons have the opportunity for the appropriate resolution of

grievances.

Utilization Review and Benefit Determination Model Act — To establish
standards and criteria for the structure and operation of utilization review and
benefit determination processes designed to facilitate ongoing assessment

and management of health care services.

Any process used by a plan to resolve a claim dispute must be conducted without

imposing fees on the claimant. The bill also preserves the existing utilization review and

external review processes in state law for grandfathered plans. The new law would only

apply to nongrandfathered plans.

In summary, plans and insurers must have an effective and fair claims and appeals

process. As noted, HHS will determine if the state’s process meets the minimum

consumer protections. HHS has indicated that the details of the claims and appeal
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processes must be codified so we will likely not meet federal requirements if we simply
refer to a separate piece of federal law or regulation. | believe that it is important to
North Dakotans to ensure these processes are overseen at the state level and not the

federal level.

Before this bill was filed, | shared a draft with all the major health insurance companies
doing business in North Dakota. Two companies responded with comments. There are
a couple of areas where the models used to craft the bill vary from the requirements of
the DOL rules which are in the definition of a “grievance” and the voluntary level of
review. In conversations we have had with HHS, we were informed that if our state's
process follows at least the minimum protections contained in the DOL rules, the state
will be allowed to oversee the claims appeal process. If our state process does not
have those minimum protections, however, the federal government will almost certainly
take over the administration of the external review process. Given that information, we
are willing to work with these insurers on amendments that would address these areas
to align the requirements of the bill with those of the DOL rules. If the proposed
amendments do not, however, follow at least the requirements of the DOL rules, it

would be difficult to see how | could support them due to the likely loss of state control.

| do also want to mention that this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom
or effectiveness of its provisions. It is merely the means by which the issue of whether

the state or federal government should enforce the law is brought before you.

Lastly, the final section of the bill was added to take care of another PPACA
consequence. It amends existing N.D.C.C. § 26.1-03-01 to provide an exception for
health insurers to the limitation on risks acceptable by insurers. The existing section
provides that an insurance company may not expose itself to loss on any one risk or
hazard to an amount exceeding 10 percent of its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock
company, or 10 percent of its surplus if a mutual company, unless the excess IS

reinsured.



The amendment provides that an insurance company offering group or individual
insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of PPACA is
not subject to this section. Insurers can no longer impose lifetime or annual benefit limit
restrictions on most group or individual health insurance plans. The amendment is
being sought because, although in practice it is unlikely that the payouts under any one
health insurance policy could exceed 10 percent of a health insurer's surplus, the
elimination of the benefit caps by PPACA could result in a conflict with current state law
and would mean a company would be out of compliance with surplus or capital

requirements,

This concludes my testimony. | would be happy to try to answer any questions you may
have. Thank you.



# qcy.)
February 8, 2011
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 20, after “plans” and before the period insert “unless a health care insurer
or utilization review agent determines 1o extend the protections of section 5 of
this Act to a grandfathered plan”

Page 9, line 26, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with "26.1-36.8-06"

Page 13, line 10, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 13, line 16, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 13, line 30, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 14, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 20, line 23, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 20, line 28, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 63, line 23, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 67, line 23, after “review” and before the period insert “or otherwise provide
coverage with no financial penalty to the covered person”

Page 71, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 76, line 3, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 76, remove lines 10 through 12

Page 76, line 13, replace "4."” with “3."

Page 76, line 20, replace “5." with “4."

Page 76, line 22, replace “6." with "5.”

Page 77, remove lines 2 through 4

Page 77, line 5, replace “(e)" with “(d}"

Page 77, line 6, replace “(f)" with “(e}"



Page 77, line 7, replace “(g)" with “(f)"
Page 77, line 8, replace "(h}" with "(g}"
Page 77, line 12, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"

Page 77, line 14, remove “,_26.1-36.8-06, and 26.1-36.8-07"

Page 77, line 16, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 77, line 21, replace "26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-08"

Page 77, line 31, remove *, 26.1-36.8-06, and 26.1-36.8-07"

Page 83, line 8, remove “the covered person wishes to reguest’

Page 83, line 9, replace “pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-07" with “is offered by the health
carrier”

Page 84, remove lines 11 through 31

Page 85, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 86, remove lines 1 through 29

Page 87, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 88, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 89, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 90, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 91, remove lines 1 through 2

Page 91, line 3, replace “26.1-36.8-08" with “26.1-36.8-06"
Page 94, line 26, replace “26.1-36.8-09" with “26.1-36.8-07"
Page 94, line 28, replace “26.1-36.8-10" with “26.1-36.8-08"

Renumber accordingly
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Sanford Health Plan

PO Box 91110 SANF':BRD

05) 328-6868

(877) 305-5463
sanfordhealthplan.com

Lisa Carlson, Director of Planning and Regulation
Sanford Health Plan
Testimony on HB 1127

March 15, 2011

Sanford Health Plan is submitting this letter to testify against the amended version of HB1127 and respectfully request
that the Insurance Department’s original version be re-instated. On January 7, 2011, | held conference call with Deputy
Commissioner Rebecca Ternes to discuss the technical aspects of this bill. This call with the Insurance Department was
followed up with a letter dated on January 14, requesting, minor modifications to the bill based on our experience in
with the NAIC model in South Dakota. The Department incorporated such changes into the original bill. On February 8,
the bill was amended and stripped of its NAIC model language.

We understand the state’s intent to merge NAIC model language with the DOL appeais and grievance and utilization
management language. Also, as we previously discussed with the Department, the National Committee for Quality
Assurance (NCQA), the accrediting body for health plans, has historically adopted the NAIC model. In NCQA's 2012
product update they have adopted the newest NAIC model. Currently, 40 states recognize NCQA managed care
ganization accreditation in whole or part in either their commercial market and/or their Medicaid managed care
Q:gram. As an NCQA accredited plan with “Excellent” accreditation status, we are familiar with this “hybrid” model
nd the patient protections it grants to health plan members. Additionally, many states, including the state of South
Dakota combine both NAIC and DOL language.

Stripping the NAIC language out of HB1127 will have the following negative impact on insured members:

e Grandfathered health pians will be exempt. The ACA’s provisions providing consumers with new rights to
internal and external appeals do not apply to consumers in grandfathered health plans. However, the NAIC's
modei laws are more expansive than the federal law and provide the appeal protections to aff state-regulated
plans — new plans and grandfathered plans.

» Professional standards for appeal reviewers are lowered. The NAIC model laws are more stringent than the
DOL rules because they require insurers to designate a “clinical peer” of the “same or similar specialty” to
review the appeal. In other words, if a neurologist would typically manage a certain member’s condition, the
health plan would be required to designate a neurologist to review any appeal associated with that member’s
coverage. The federal rules give insurers more flexibility in who they appoint to review an appeal and hence
may enable reviewers to deny claims for conditions in cases for which they do not have the clinical expertise.

¢ Reducing consumers’ access to necessary information. The NAIC model laws have tougher requirements than
the federal DOL rules on the following:

o Timely access to documents. The NAIC model requires health plans to provide to the consumer all
documents relevant to the case within three working days after the health plan receives the appeal.

. The federal ruies don’t include this timeliness requirement.

o Access to a broad range of necessary documents. NAIC's model requires that, once a plan has made a
decision on an internal appeal, it must provide to the consumer a range of documents and supporting
evidence that will help the consumer understand the basis for the decision. The federal rules don’t
require plans to provide the same breadth of documents.



.summary, stripping the NAIC language out of HB1127 will make the state law less protective of consumers.
Opponents of the bill will testify that adopting NAIC language {and hence language that overreaches the minimum
DOL rules as outlined by the Accountable Care Act) will result in increasing costs and administrative burden, However,
Sanford Health Plan has always viewed NCQA accreditation {and its inherent operational and financial commitments)
as an investment in the services we provide and the quality of our plans. Regardless of the legislative outcome of this
bill, Sanford Health Plan will abide by the NCQA and NAIC standards as it’s our prerogative to maintain compiiance
with NCQA's accreditation standards. It also provides us with aperational efficiencies if we operate our utilization and
appeals and grievance procedures consistently across the four states we conduct business in.

Thank you for your time and consideration of these comments.



11.8111.03002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern

March 21, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact chapters 26.1-36.6, 26.1-36.7, and 26.1-36.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to health carrier external review, utilization review, and grievance procedures;
to amend and reenact sections 26.1-03-01, 26.1-26.4-01, and 26.1-36-44 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to limitation on health insurance company risks,
utilization review, and independent external reviews; and to provide a penatty.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-03-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-03-01. Limitation on risks acceptable by company.

An insurance company transacting an insurance business in this state may not
expose itself to loss on any one risk or hazard to an amount exceeding ten percent of
its paid-up capital and surplus if a stock company, or ten percent of its surplus if a
mutual company, unless the excess is reinsured. An insurance company offering group
or individual insurance that is subject to the lifetime or annual benefit limit restrictions of
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L.111-148] as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152].is_not subject
to this section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-26.4-01 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-26.4-01. Purpose_and scope.

This chapter applies to grandfathered health plans. "Grandfathered health plan"
has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L.
111-148). as amended by the Heaith Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
[Pub, L. 111-152]. The purpose of this chapter is to:

1. Promote the delivery of quality health care in a cost-effective manner;

2. Assure that utilization review agents adhere to reasonable standards for
conducting utilization review;

3. Foster greater coordination and cooperation between health care providers
and utilization review agents;

4. Improve communications and knowledge of benefits among all parties
concerned before expenses are incurred; and

5. Ensure that utilization review agents maintain the confidentiality of medical
records in accordance with applicable laws.
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SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36-44 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36-44. Independent external review.

This section applies to grandfathered heaith plans. "Grandfathered health plan”

has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

[Pub. L. 111-148). as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of
2010 [Pub. L. 111-152]. Every insurance company, nonprofit health service corporation,
and health maintenance organization that offers an accident and health line of
insurance shall establish and implement an independent external review mechanism to
review and determine whether medical care rendered under the line of insurance was
medically necessary and appropriate to the claim as submitted by the provider. For
purposes of this section, "independent external review" means a review conducted by
the North Dakota health care review, inc., another peer review organization meeting
the requirements of section 1152 of the Social Security Act, or any person designated
by the commissioner to conduct an independent external review. A determination made
by the independent external reviewer is binding on the parties. Costs associated with
the independent externai review are the responsibility of the nonprevailing party. A
provider may not use an independent external review under this section unless the
provider first has exhausted all internal appeal processes offered by the insurance:
company, nonprofit health service corporation, or health maintenance organization.

SECTION 4. Chapter 26.1-36.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-01. Definitions.,

For purposes of this chapter:

1. "Adverse determination" means:

a. Adetermination by a health carrier or its designee utilization review
organization that, based upon the information provided, a request for
a benefit under the health carrier's health benefit plan upon
application of any utilization review technique does not meet the

- health carrier's requirements for medical necessity. appropriateness,
health care setting, level of care or effectiveness or is determined to
be experimenta| or investigational and the requested benefit is

therefore denied, reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or
made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;

The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or make

payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a determination by

a health carrier or its designee utilization review organization of a

covered person's eligibility to participate in the heaith carrier's health
benefit plan:

Any prospective review or retrospective review determination that
denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or make payment, in
whole or in part, for a benefit; or

d. Aprescission of coverage determination.

"Ambulatory review" means utilization review of health care services
performed or provided in an outpatient setting.

Page No. 2 11.8111.03002

=

o

o



o

|+~

o

[

[~

oo

j©

'‘Authorized representative” means;

a. A person to whom a covered person has given express written
consent to represent the covered person in an external review;

b. Aperson authorized by law to provide substituted consent fora
covered person; or .

c. Afamily member of the covered person or the covered person's
treating health care professional only when the covered person is

unable to provide consent.

"Best evidence" means evidence based on:

a, Randomized clinical trials;
b. I randomized clinical trials are not available, cohort studies or

case-control studies;

c. If subdivisions a and b are not available, case-series; or

d. H subdivisions a, b, and ¢ are not available, expert opinion.

"Case-control study" means a retrospective evaluation of two ;:roups of
patients with different outcomes to determine which specific interventions
the patients received.

"Case management” means a coordinated set of activities conducted for

individual patient management of serious, complicated, protracted, or other
heaith conditions.

"Case-series" means an evaluation of a series of patients with a particular
outcome without the use of a control group.

"Certification” means a determination by a health carrier or its designee
utilization_review organization that an admission, avaitability of care,
continued stay, or other health care service has been reviewed and based
on the information provided satisfies the health carrier's requirements for
medical necessity, appropriateness, heaith care setting, ievel of care, and
effectiveness.

"Clinical review criteria”" means the written screening procedures, decisign
abstracts. clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used by a health
carrier to determine the necessity and appropriateness of health care
services.

"Cohort study" means a prospective evaluation of two groups of patients
with only one group of patients receiving specific interventions.

"Commissioner’ means the insurance commissioner.

"Concurrent review' means utilization review conducted during a Datlents
hospital stay or course of treatment.

"Covered benefits" or "benefits” means those health care services to which
a covered person is entitled under the terms of a heaith bengfit plan.

Page No. 3 11.8111.03002



"Covered person” means a policyholder, subscriber, enroliee, or other
individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge planning" means the formal process for determining prior to
discharge from a facility the coordination and management of the care that
a patient receives following discharge from a facility.

"Disclose" means to release, transfer, or otherwise divulge protected

health information to any person other than the individual who is the
subject of the protected health information.

'‘Emergency medical condition” means the sudden and, at the time,
unexpected onset of a health condition or illness that requires immediate

medical attention if failure to provide medical attention would result in a
serious impairment to bodily functions, serious dysfunction of a bodily
organ or part, or would place the person's health in serious jegpardy.

"Emergency services" means health care items and services furnished or
required to evaluate and treat an emergency medical condition.

"Evidence-based standard" means the conscientious, explicit, and
judicious use of the current best evidence based on the overall systematic
review of the research in making decisions about the care of individual
patients.

"Expert opinion" means a belief or an interpretation by specialists with

experience in a specific area about the scientific evidence pertaining to a
particular service, intervention, or therapy.

"Facility" means an institution providing health care services or a heaith
care setting, including hospitals and other licensed inpatient centers,
ambulatory surgical or treatment centers, skilled nursing centers,

residential treatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and imaging centers,
and rehabilitation and other therapeutic health _settings.

"Final adverse determination" means an adverse determination involving a
covered benefit that has been upheid by a health carrier or its designee
utilization review organization at the completion of the health carrier's
internal grievance process procedures as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

"Health benefit plan” means a policy, contract, certificate, or agreement
offered or issued by a health carrier to provide, deliver, arrange for, pay for.

or reimburse any of the costs of heaith care services.

"Health care professional” means a physician or other health care

practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified health
care services consistent with state law.

"Health care provider" or "provider” means a health care professional or a
facility.

"Health care services" means services for the diagnosis, prevention,
treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, illness, injury, or disease.
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'Health carrier" means an entity subject to the insurance laws and
requlations of this state or subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner
that contracts or offers to contract to provide, deliver, arrange for, pay for,
or reimburse any of the costs of health care services, including a sickness
and accident insurance conigany, a_health maintenance crganization, a

nonprofit hospital and health service corporation, or any other entity
providing a plan of health insurance, heaith benefits, or health care
services.

"Health information” means information or data whether oral or recorded in
any form or medium and personal facts or information about events or
relationships that relates to:

a. The past present, or future physical, mental, or behavioral health or
condition of an individual or a member of the individual's family;
b. The provision of health care services to an individual: or

c. Payment for the provision of health care services to an individual.

"Independent review organization" means an entity that conducts
independent external reviews of adverse determinations and final adverse
determinations.

"Medical or scientific evidence" means evidence found in the following
sources:

a. Peer-reviewed scientific studies published in_or accepted for
publication by medical journals that meet nationally recognized
requirements for scientific manuscripts and that submit most of their
published articles for review by experts who are not part of the
editorial_staff;

=

Peer-reviewed medical literature, including literature relating to
therapies reviewed and approved by a gualified institutional review
board, biomedical compendia, and other medical literature that meet
the criteria of the national institutes of health's library of medicine for
indexing in index medicus (MEDLINE) and elsevier science Itd. for
indexing in excerpta medicus (EMBASE);

o

Medical journais recognized by the secretary of health and human
services under section 1861(t)(2) of the Social Security Act;

=3

The following standard reference compendia;
(1) The American hospital formulary service-drug information;

(2) Drug facts and comparisons;

(3) The American dental association accepted dental therapeutics;
and

(4) The United States pharmacopoeia-drug information;

Findings, studies, or research conducted by or under the auspices of
federal government agencies and nationally recognized federal
research institutes. including:

jo
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The federal agency for health care research and quality:

The national institutes of health;

The national cancer institute;

The national academy of sciences;

The centers for medicare and medicaid services:

The federal food and drug administration; and

BekREBRRE

Any national board recognized by the national institutes of
health for the purpose of evaluating the medical value of health
care services; or

f. Any other medical or scientific evidence that is comparable to the

sources listed in subdivisions a through e.

"Person” means an individual, a corporation. a partnership, an association,
a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an_unincorporated

organization, any similar entity, or any combination of the foregoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an
admission or a course of treatment.

"Protected_health information” means health information:

a. That identifies an individual who is the subject of the information; or

b. With respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used to identify an individual.

"Randomized clinical trial" means a ¢ontrolled, prospective study of

patients that have been randomized into an experimental group and a
control group at the beginning of the study with only the experimental

group of patients receiving a specific intervention which includes study of
the groups for variables and anticipated outcomes over time.

"Retrospective review" means a review of medical necessity conducted
after services have been provided io a patient but does not inciude the
review of a claim that is limited to_an evaluation of reimbursement levels
veracity of documentation, accuracy of coding, or adjudication for payment.

"Second opinion” means an opportunity or requirement to obtain a clinical

evaluation by a provider other than the one originally making a

recommendation for a proposed health care service to assess the clinical
necessity and appropriateness of the initial proposed health care service.

"Utilization review" means a set of formal technigues designed to monitor
the use of, or evaluate the clinical necessity, appropriateness, efficacy, or
efficiency of, health care services, procedures, or settings. Technigues may
inciude ambulatory review, prospective review, second opinion

certification, concurrent review, case management, discharge planning, or
retrospective review.
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38.

"Utilization review grganization” means_an entity that conducts utilization
review other than a health carrier performing a review for its own health
benefit plans.

26.1-36.6-02. Applicability and scope.

1

2,

Except as provided in subsection 2, this chapter applies to all
nongrandfathered health benefit pians. "Nongrandfathered health benefit
pian" means a heaith benefit plan that is not exempt from the requirements
of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148] and the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152}
because it failed to achieve or lost grandfathered health plan status.
"Grandfathered health plan" has the meaning stated in the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148],_as amended by the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub, L. 111-152].

The provisions of this chapter do not apply to a policy or certificate that
provides coverage only for a specified disease, specified accident or
accident-only coverage, credit, dental, disability income, hospital
indemnity, long-term care insurance, vision care or any other limited
supplemental benefit. a medicare suppiement policy of insurance,
coverage under a plan through medicare, medicaid, or the federal
employees health benefits program. any coverage issued under chapter 55
of title 10, United States Code. and any coverage issued as supplement to
that coverage. any coverage issued as supplemental to liability insurance,
workers' compensation or similar insurance, automobile medical-payment
insurance, or any insurance under which benefits are payable with or

without regard to faulf, whether written on a group blanket or individual
basis.

26.1-36.6-03. Notice of right to external review.

1

a. Ahealth carrier shall notify a covered person in writing of the covered
person's right to request an external review to be conducted pursuant
to section 26.1-36.6-086, 26.1-36.6-07, or 26.1-36.6-08 and include the
appropriate statements and information set forth in subdivision b at
the same time the heaith carrier sends written notice of;

{1) An adverse determination upon completion of the health

carrier's utilization review process set forth in chapter 26.1-36.7;
and

(2) Afinal adverse determination.

As part of the written notice required under subdivision a, a health
carrier shall include the following or substantially equivalent language:
"We have denied your request for the provision of or payment for a
health care service or course of treatment. You may have the right to
have our decision reviewed by health care professionals who have no
association with us if our decision involved making a judgment as to
the medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level of
care, or effectiveness of the health care service or treatment you
requested by submitting_a request for external review to the North

Dakota Insurance Commissioner, 600 East Boulevard Avenue, State
Capitol, Bismarck, ND 58505."

=
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The commissioner may prescribe the form and content of the notice
reguired under this section.

The health carrier shall include in the notice required under subsection
1:

(1) For a notice related to an adverse determination, a statement
informing the covered person that:

{a) Ifthe covered person has a medical condition and the

timeframe for completion of an expedited review of a

grievance involving an adverse determination set forth in
section 26.1-36.8-08 would seriously jeopardize the life or

health of the covered person or would jeopardize the
covered person's ability to regain maximum function, the

covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may file a request for an expedited external

review to be conducted pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-07
or 26.1-36.6-08 if the adverse determination involves a

denial of coverage based on a determination that the
recommended or requested health care service or
treatment is experimental or investigational and the
covered person's treating physician certifies in writing that
the recommended or requested health care service or
treatment that is the subject of the adverse determination
woulid be significantly less effective if not promptly
initiated. at the same time the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative files a request
for an expedited review of a grievance involving an
adverse determination as set forth in section 26.1-36.8-08,
but that the independent review organization assigned to
conduct the expedited external review will determine
whether the covered person shall be required to complete
the expedited review of the grievance prior to conducting
the expedited external review; and

(b} The covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may file a grievance under the health

carrier's internal grievance process as set forth in section
26.1-36.8-05, but if the health carrier has not issued a
written decision to the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative within thirty days
following the date the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative files the grievance with
the health carrier and the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative has not requested or
agreed to a delay, the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may file a request for
external review pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-04 and shall
be considered to have exhausted the health carrier's

internal grievance process for purposes of section 26.1-
36.6-05; and

(2) FEor a notice reiated to a final adverse determination. a
statement informing the covered person that:

Page No. 8 11.8111.03002



=

o

{a) If the covered person has a medical condition and the
timeframe for completion of a standard external review

pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-06 would seriously
jeopardize the life or health of the covered person or

would jeopardize the covered person's ability to regain
maximum function, the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may file a request for
an expedited external review pursuant to section 26.1-
36.6-07; or

(b) [f the final adverse determination concerns:

[1] An admission, availability of care. continued stay or
health care service for which the covered person
received emergency services, but has not been
discharged from a facility, the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative may
request an expedited external review pursuant to
section 26.1-36.6-07; or

[2] Adenial of coverage based on a determination that
the recommended or requested health care service
or treatment is experimental or investigational, the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may file a request for a standard
external review to be conducted pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-06 or if the covered person's treating
physician certifies in writing that the recommended
or requested health care service or treatment that is
the subject of the request would be significantly less
effective if not promptly initiated, the covered person
or the covered person's authorized representative

may request an expedited external review to be
conducted under section 26.1-36.6-07.

in addition to the information to be provided pursuant to subdivision a,
the health carrier shall include a copy of the description of both the
standard and expedited external review procedures the health carrier
is required to provide pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-15, highlighting
the provisions in the external review procedures that give the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative the

opportunity to submit additional information and including any forms
used to process an external review.

As part of any forms provided under subdivision b, the health carrier
shall include _an authorization form, or other document approved by
the commissioner that complies with the requirements of 45 CFR
164.508, by which the covered person. for purposes of conducting an
external review under this chapter, authorizes the health carrier and
the covered person's treating_health care provider to disclose
protected health information, including medical records concerning
the covered person that are pertinent to the external review, as
provided in section 26.1-36-12.4.
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26.1-36.6-04. Request for external review.

. 1. a. Exceptfor a request for an expedited external review as set forth in

section 26.1-36.6-07, ail requests for external review shall be made in
writing to the commissioner.

b. The commissioner may prescribe by the form and content of external
review requests required to be submitted under this section.

o

A covered person or the covered person's authorized representative may
make a request for an external review of an adverse determination or final
adverse determination.

26.1-36.6-05. Exhaustion of internal grievance process.

1. a. Except as provided in subsection 2, a request for an externat review
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-06, 26.1-36.6-07, or 26.1-36.6-08 shall

not be made until the covered person_has exhausted the health
carrier's internal grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

(=]

A covered person shall be considered to have exhausted the heaith

. carrier's internal grievance process for purposes of this section, if the
covered person or the covered person's authorized representative:

(1) Has filed a grievance involving an adverse determination
pursuant to section 26.1-38.8-05; and

I {2) Except to the extent the covered person or the covered person's

authorized representative requested or agreed {o a delay, has

not received a written decision on the grievance from the health
carrier within thirty days following the date the covered person or

the covered person's authorized representative filed the
grievance with the health carrier.

[

Notwithstanding subdivision b, a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may not make a request for an

external review of an adverse determination involving a retrospective
review determination made pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.7 until the
covered person has exhausted the health carrier's internal grievance
process,

2. a. (1) Atthe same time a covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative files a request for an expedited review
of a grievance involving an adverse determination as set forth in

section 26.1-36.8-08, the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may file a request for an

expedited external review of the adverse determination:

{a) Under section 26.1-36.6-07 if the covered person has a
medical condition and the timeframe for completion of an

expedited review of the grievance involving an adverse
determination set forth in section 26.1-36.8-08 would
seriously jeopardize the life or health of the covered

- person or would jeopardize the covered person's ability to
: . regain maximum function; or
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(o)  Under section 26.1-36.6-08 if the adverse determination
involves a denial of coverage based on a determination
that the recommended or requested health care service or
treatment is experimental or investigational and the
covered person's treating physician cerdifies in writing that
the recommended or requested health care service or
treatment that is the subject of the adverse determination

would be significantly less effective if not promptly
initiated.

{2) Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external review under
paragraph 1, the independent review organization conducting
the external review in accordance with the provisions of section
26.1-36.6-07 or 26.1-36.6-08 shall determine whether the
covered person shall be required to complete the expedited
review process set forth in section 26.1-36.8-08 before it
conducts the expedited external review.

(3) Upon a determination made pursuant to paragraph 2 that the
covered person must first complete the expedited grievance
review process set forth in section 26.1-36.8-08, the
independent review orqanization immediately shall notify the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative of this determination and that it will not proceed
with the expedited external review set forth in section 26.1-36.6-
07 until compietion of the expedited grievance review process
and the covered person's grievance at the completion of the
expedited grievance review process remains unresolved.

A request for an external review of an adverse determination may be
made before the covered person has exhausted the health carrier's
internal grievance procedures as set forth in section 26.1-36.8-05
whenever the health carrier agrees to waive the exhaustion

requirement.

If the reguirement to exhaust the health carrier's internal grievance
procedures is waived under subdivision a of subsection 2, the covered
person of the covered person's authorized representative may file a

request in writing for a standard external review as_set forth in section

26.1-36.6-06 or 26.1-36.6-08.

a.

b.

W

26.1-36.6-06. Standard external review.

Within four months after the date of receipt of a notice of an adverse
determination or final adverse determination pursuant to section 26.1-
36.6-03, a covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative may file a request for an external review with the
commissioner.

Within one business day after the date of receipt of a request for
external review pursuant to subdivision a, the commissioner shall

send a copy of the request to the health carrier.

ithin five business days following the date of receipt of the copy of the

external review request from the commissioner under subdivision b of
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subsection 1, the health carrier shall complete a preliminary review of the
request to determine whether:

a. The individual is or was a covered person in the health benefit plan at
the time the health care service was requested or_in the case of a

retrospective review, was a covered person in the health_benefit plan
at the time the health care service was provided:

=3

The health care service that is the subject of the adverse
determination or the final adverse determination is a covered service

under the covered person's health benefit plan, but for a determination
by the health carrier that the health care service is not covered
because it does not meet the health carrier's requirements for medical

necessity, appropriateness, health care setting. level of care. or
effectiveness:

o

The covered person has exhausted the health carrier's internaj
grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8 unless the
covered person is not required to exhaust the health carrier's internal
grievance process pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-05: and

The covered person has provided all the information and forms

required to process an external review, including the release form
provided under section 26.1-36.6-03,

Within one business day after completion of the preliminary review,
the health carrier shall notify the commissioner and covered person

and the covered person's authorized representative in writing whether:
(1) The.request is complete: and

=2

[

{2) The request is eligible for external review.
If the request:

(1) s not complete, the health carrier shall inform_the covered

person and the covered person's authorized representative and
the commissioner in writing and include in the_notice what
information or materials are needed fo make the request

complete; or

(2} s not eligible for external review, the health carrier shall inform
the covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative and the commissioner in writing and inctude in
the notice the reasons for its ineligibility.

The commissioner may specify the form for the health carrier's
notice of initial determination under this subsection and any
supporting information to be included in the notice.

(2) The notice of initial determination shall include a statement
informing the covered person and the covered person's
authorized representative that a health carrier's initial

determination that the external review request is ineiigible for
review may be appealed to the commissioner.

{1) The commissioner may determine that a request is eligible for
external review under section 26.1-36.6-06 notwithstanding a

=
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a.

b.

c.

heaith carrier's initial determination that the request is_ineligible
and require that it be referred for external review.

(2) In making a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in accordance with the
terms of the covered person’'s health benefit plan and shall be
subject to all applicable provisions of this chapter.

Whenever the commissioner receives a notice that a request is
eligible for external review following the preliminary review conducted
pursuant to subsection 3, within one business day after the date of
receipt of the notice, the commissioner shall:

(1) Assign an independent review organization from the list of -
approved independent review organizations compiled and
maintained by the commissioner pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-10 to conduct the external review and notify the health
carrier of the name of the assigned independent review
organization; and

{2) Notify in writing the covered person and the covered person's
authorized representative of the request's eligibility and
acceptance for external review.

In reaching a decision, the assigned independent review organization
is not bound by any decisions or conclusions reached during the
health_carrier's utilization review process as set forth in chapter 26.1-
36.7 or the health carrier's internal grievance process as set forth in
chapter 26.1-36.8.

The commissioner shall include in the notice provided to the covered
person and the covered person's authorized representative a
statement that the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may submit in writing to the assigned independent
review organization within five business days following the date of
receipt of the notice provided pursuant to subdivision a additional
information that the independent review organization shall consider
when conducting the external review. The independent review
grganization is not required to, but may, accept and consider
additional information submitted after five business days.

Within five business days after the date of receipt of the notice
provided pursuant to subdivision_a of subsection 4, the health carrier
or its designee utilization review organization shall provide to the
assigned independent review organization the documents and any

information considered in making_the adverse determination or final
adverse determination.

Except as provided in subdivision c, failure by the health carrier or its
utilization review organization to provide the documents and
information within the time specified in subdivision a shali not delay
the conduct of the external review.

(1) i the health carrier or its utilization review organization fails to
provide the documents and information within the time specified
in subdivision a. the assigned independent review organization
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may terminate the external review and make a decision to
. reverse the adverse determination or final adverse

determination.

(2) Within one business day after making the decision under

paragraph 1. the independent review organization shall notify
the covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative, the health carrier, and the commissioner.,

The assigned independent review organization shall review alt of the
information and documents received pursuant to subsection 5 and any
other information submitted in writing to the independent review
organization by the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative pursuant to subdivision ¢ of subsection 4.

Upon receipt of any information submitted by the covered person or

the covered person's authorized representative pursuant to
subdivision ¢ of subsection 4. the assigned independent review

organization shall within one business day forward the information to
the health carrier,

Upon receipt of the ihformation, if any, required to be forwarded
pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 6, the health carrier may

reconsider its adverse determination or final adverse determination
that is the subject of the external review.

Reconsideration by the heaith carrier of its adverse determination or
. final adverse determination pursuant to subdivision a shall not delay

|
o
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or terminate the external review.

(3

The external review may only be terminated if the health carrier
decides, upon completion of its reconsideration, to reverse its adverse
determination or final adverse determination and provide coverage or

payment for the health care service that is the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

{2

{1) Within one business day after making the decision to reverse its
adverse determination or final adverse determination, as
provided in subdivision ¢, the heaith carrier shall notify the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative, the assigned independent review organization.,
and the commissioner in writing of its decision.

(2) The assigned independent review organization shall terminate

the external review upon receipt of the notice from the heailth
carrier sent pursuant to paragraph 1.

ey

In addition to the documents and information provided pursuant to
subsection 5, the assigned independent review organization, to the extent
the information or documents are available and the independent review
organization considers them appropriate, shall consider the following in
reaching a decision:

. a. The covered person's medical records;
b. The attending health care professional's recommendation:
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Consuilting reports from appropriate health care professionals and
other documents submitted by the health carrier, covered person, the
covered person's authorized representative, or the covered person's
treating provider;

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health benefit plan
with the health carrier to ensure that the independent review
organization's decision is not contrary to the terms of coverage under
the covered person's health benefit plan with the health carrier;

The most appropriate practice guidelines. which shall include
applicable evidehce-based standards and may include any other
practice guidelines developed by the federal government, national or
professional medical societies, boards, and associations:

Any applicable clinical review criteria developed and used by the
health carrier or its designee utilization review organization; and

The opinion of the independent review organization's clinical reviewer
or reviewers after considering subdivisions a through f to the extent
the information or documents are available and the clinical reviewer or
reviewers_consider appropriate.

Within forty-five days _after the date of receipt of the request for an
external review, the assigned independent review organization shall

provide written notice of its decision to uphold or reverse the adverse
determination or the_ final adverse determination to;

(1) The covered person;

(2) If applicable, the covered person's authorized representative;

{3) The health carrier: and

(4) The commissioner.

The independent review organization shall include in the notice sent
pursuant to subdivision a:

{1) Ageneral description of the reason for the request for external
review.

(2) The date the independent review grganization received the
assignment from the commissioner to conduct the external
review,;

The date the external review was conducted:

The date of its decision;

B ER

The principal-reason or reasons for its decision, including what

applicable, if any, evidence-based standards were a basis for its
decision;

The raiionale for its decision; and

References to the evidence or documentation. inciuding the
evidence-based standards, considered in reaching its decision.
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c. Upon receipt of a notice of a decision pursuant to subdivision a
reversing the adverse determination or final adverse determination,

the health carrier immediately shall approve the coverage that was the
subject of the adverse determination or final adverse determination.

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent review
organization to conduct an external review in accordance with this section
shall be done on a random basis among those approved independent
review organizations qualified to conduct the particular external review
based on the nature of the health care service that is the subject of the
adverse determination or final adverse determination and other

circumstances. including conflict of interest concerns_pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-11.

26.1-36.6-07. Expedited external review.

1

o

Except as provided in subsection 5. a covered person or the covered

person's authorized representative may make a request for an expedited
external review with the commissioner at the time the covered person
recejves:

a. An adverse determination if: )

{1) The adverse determination involves a medical condition of the

covered person for which the timeframe for completion_of an
expedited internal review of a grievance involving an adverse
determination set forth in section 26.1-36.8-08 would seriously
jeopardize the life or health of the covered person or would

jeopardize the covered person's ability to regain maximum
function; and

{2} The covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative has filed a request for an expedited review of a
grievance inveolving an adverse determination as set forth in
section 26.1-36.8-08: or

=

Afinal adverse determination:

(1) Ilfthe covered person has a medical condition and the timeframe
for completion of a standard external review pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-06 would seriously jeopardize the life or health of the

covered person or would jeopardize the covered person's ability
fo regain maximum function; or

(2} M the final adverse determination concerns an admission
availability of care, continued stay, or health care service for

which the covered person received emergency services, but has
not been discharged from a facility.

a. Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external review, the

commissioner immediately shall send a copy of the request to the
health carrier.

b. Immediately upon receipt of the request pursuant to subdivision a, the

health carrier shall determine whether the request meets the
reviewability requirements set forth in section 26.1-36.6-06. The
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health carrier shall immediately notify the commissioner and the
covered person and the covered person's authorized representative of
its eligibility determination.

o

(1) The commissioner may specify the form for the health carrier's
notice of initial determination under this subsection and any
supporting information to be included in the notice.

(2) The notice of initial determination shall include a statement
informing the covered person and, if applicable, the covered
person's authorized representative that a health carrier's initial
determination that an external review request is ineligible for
review may be appealed to the commissioner.

1=
=

The commissioner may determine that a request is eligible for
external review under section 26.1-36.6-06 notwithstanding a
health carrier's initial determination that the request is ineligible
and require that it be referred for external review.

(2) In making a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shail be made in accordance with the

terms_of the covered person's health benefit plan and shall be
subject to all applicable provisions of this chapter.

@

Upon receipt of the notice that the request meets the reviewability
requirements. the commissioner immediately shall assign an
independent review organization to conduct the expedited external
review from the list of approved independent review organizations
compiled and maintained by the commissioner pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-10. The commissioner shall immediately notify the health
carrier of the name of the assigned independent review organization.

f. In_reaching a decision in accordance with subsection 5, the assigned
independent review organization is not bound by any decisions or
conclusions reached during the health carrier's utilization review
process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.7 or the health carrier's internal
grievance process as set forth in 26.1-36.8.

Upon receipt of the notice from the commissioner of the name of the
independent review organization assigned to conduct the expedited
external review pursuant to subdivision e of subsection 2, the health carrier
or its designee utilization review organization shall provide or transmit all
necessary documents and information considered in making the adverse
determination or final adverse determination to the assigned independent
review organization electronically or by telephone or facsimile or any other
available expeditious method.

In addition to the documents and information provided or transmitted
pursuant to subsection 3. the assigned independent review organization, to
the extent the information or documents are available and the independent
review organization considers them appropriate, shall consider the
following in reaching a decision:

a. The covered person's pertinent medical records;

b. The attending health care professional's recommendation;
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A description of any additional materiat or information necessary
for the covered person to complete the request, including an

explanation of why the material or information is necessary to
complete the request;

A description of the health carrier's internal review procedures
established pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8, including any time
limits applicable to those procedures:

A deécrigtion of the health carrier's expedited review procedures
established pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-08;

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule, guideiine,
protocol, or other similar criterion to make the adverse
determination. either the specific rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion or a statement that a specific rule,
quideline. protocol, or other similar griterion was relied upon to
make the adverse determination and that a copy of the rule,
quideline, protocol, or other similar criterion will be provided free
of charge to the covered person upon request;

If the adverse determination is based on a medical necessity or
experimental or investigational treatment or similar exclusion or
limit, either an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment
for making the determination applying the terms of the health
benefit plan to the covered person's medical circumstances or a
statement that an explanation will be provided to the covered
person free of charge upon reguest;

If applicable, instructions for requesting:

(@) Acopy of the rule, guideline, protocol. or other similar
criterion relied upon in_making the adverse determination
in accordance with paragraph 7; or

{b) The written statement of the scientific or ciinical rationale
for the adverse determination in accordance with

paragraph 8; and
A statement explaining the availability of and right of the covered

person to contact the commissicner's office or ombudsman's
office at any time for assistance or. upon compietion of the
health carrier's grievance procedure process as provided under
chapter 26.1-36.8, to file a civil suit in a court of competent

jurisdiction. The statement shall include contact information for
the commissioner's office or ombudsman's office.

A health carrier shall provide the notice required under this
section in a culturally and linquistically appropriate manner if

required in accordance with federal regulations.

If a heaith carrier is required to provide the notice required under
this section in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner
in accordance with federal requlations, the health carrier shalt:

{a) Include a statement in the English version of the notice,
prominently displayed in the non-English language,
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offering the provision of the notice in the non-English
language;

(b) Once a utilization review or benefit determination request

has been made by a covered person. provide all
subseqguent notices to the covered person in the non-

English l[anguage; and

(c) Tothe extent the health carrier maintains a consumer
assistance process, such as a telephone hotline that
answers questions or provides assistance with filing
claims and appeals, the health carrier shall provide this
assistance in the non-English language,

c. lfthe adverse determination is a rescission, the health carrier shall
provide, in addition to any applicable disclosures required:
{1) Clear identification of the alleged fraudulent act, practice, or
omission or the intentional misrepresentation of material fact;
{2) An explanation as to why the act. practice, or omission was
. fraudulent or was an intentional misrepresentation of a material
fact;
{3) The date the health carrier made the decision to rescind the
coverage; and
(4} The date when the advance notice of the health carrier's
decision to rescind the coverage ends.
d. (1) Ahealth carrier may provide the notice required under this
section orally, in writing, or electronically.
{(2) If notice of the adverse determination is provided orally, the

health carrier shall provide written or electronic notice of the

adverse determination within three days following the oral
notification.

26.1-36.7-09. Emergency services.

1. When conducting utilization review or making a benefit determination for
emergency services, a health carrier that provides benefits for services in
an emergency department of a hospitat shall follow the provisions of this
section.

o

A health carrier shall cover emergency services to screen and stabilize a
covered person in the following manner:

a.  Without the need for prior authorization of such services if a prudent
layperson would have reasonably believed that an emergency medical

condition_existed even if the emergency services are provided on an
out-of-network basis;

b. Shall cover emergency services whether the health care provider

furnishing the services is a participating provider with respect to such
services;
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If the emergency services are provided out of network, without
imposing any administrative requirement or limitation on coverage that
is more restrictive than the requirements or limitations that apply to

emergency services received from network providers;

If the emergency services are provided out of network, by complying
with the cost-sharing requirements of subsection 3; and

Without regard to any other term or condition of coverage, other than:
{1} The exclusion of or coordination of benefits:

(2) An affiliation or waiting period as permitted under section 2704
of the Public Health Service Act; or

(3) Applicable cost-sharing, as provided in subsection three.

For in-network emergency services, coverage of emergency services
shall be subject to applicable copayments, coinsurance, and
deductibles.

{1) For out-of-network emergency services, any cost-sharing

requirement expressed as a copayment amount or coinsurance
rate imposed with respect to a covered person cannot exceed
the cost-sharing requirement imposed with respect to a covered
person if the services were provided in network.

{2) Notwithstanding paragraph 1. a covered person may be required

to pay. in addition to the in-network cost-sharing, the excess of
the amount the out-of-network provider charges over the amount

the heaith carrier is required to pay under this subparagraph.

(3) A health carmrier complies with the requirements of this paragraph

if it provides payment of emergency services provided by an out-
of-network provider in an amount not less than the greatest of

the following:

{a) The amount negotiated with in-network providers for
emergency services, excluding any in-network copayment
or coinsurance impesed with respect to the covered
person;

(b) The amount of the emergency service calculated using the

same method the pian uses to determine payments for
out-of-network services, but using the in-network cost-

sharing provisions_instead of the out-of-town network cost-
sharing provisions; or

{€} The amount that would be paid under medicare for the
emergency services, excluding any in-network copayment

or coinsurance reguirements.

(4) (a) For capitated or other health benefit plans that do not have

a neqgotiated per service amount for in-network providers,
subparagraph a of paragraph 3 does not apply.

(b) If a heath benefit plan has more than one negotiated
amount for in-network providers for a particular emergency
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service, the amount in subparagraph a of paragraph 3 is
the median of these neqotiated amounts.

i©

(1} Any cost-sharing requirement other than a copayment or
coinsurance requirement, such as a deductible or out-of-pocket
maximum, may be imposed with respect to emergency services
provided out of network if the cost-sharing requirement generaily
applies to out of network benefits.

(2) Adeductible hway be imposed with respect to out of network
emergency services only as part of a deductibie that generally
applies to out of network benefits.

(3) If an out-of-pocket maximum generally applies to out of network

benefits, that out-of-network maximum must apply to out of
network emergency services.

For immediately required postevaluation or poststabilization services, a
health carrier shall provide access to a designated representative

twenty-four hours a day seven days a week to facilitate review.

26.1-36.7-10. Confidentiality requirements.

A health carrier shall annually certify in writing to the commissioner that the

utilization review program of the health carrier or its designee complies with all

applicable state and federal law establishing confidentiality and reporting requirements.

26.1-36.7-11. Disclosure requirements.

1

ro

3.

In the certificate of coverage or member handbook provided to covered
persons, a health carrier shall include a clear and comprehensive
description of its utilization review procedures, including the procedures for
obtaining review of adverse determinations and a statement of rights and
responsibilities of covered persons with_respect to those procedures.

A health carrier shall include a summary of its_utilization review and benefit
determination procedures in materials intended for prospective covered

persons.

A health carrier shall print on its membership cards a toll-free telephone
number to call for utilization review and benefit decisions.

26.1-36.7-12. Rules.

The commissioner may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.7-13. Penalties.

The commissioner may assess a penalty against a health carrier that violates

this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars for each violation. The fine may be

recovered in an action brought in the name of the state. In addition to imposing a
monetary penalty, the commissioner may also cancel, revoke, or refuse to renew the
cerificate of authority of a health carrier that has violated this chapter.

SECTION 6. Chapter 26.1-36.8 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:
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26.1-36.8-01. Definitions.

As used in this chapter:

1.

i~

jw

R

[on

"Adverse determination” means:

a. Adetermination by a health carrier or its designee utilization review
organization that, based upon the information provided. a request for
a_benefit under the health carrier's heaith benefit plan upon
application of any utilization review technique does not meet the
health carrier's requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness.
health care setting, level of care, or effectiveness or is determined to
be experimental or investigational and the requested benefit is
therefore denied, reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or

made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;

The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or make
payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a determination by
a heaith carrier or its designee utilization review organization of a
covered person's eligibility to participate in the health carrier's health
benefit plan;

i3

©

Any prospective review or retrospective review determination that
denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or make payment, in
whole or in part, for a benefit: or

d. Arescission of coverage determination,

"Ambulatory review" means utilization review of health care services
performed or provided in an outpatient setting.

‘Authorized representative" means:

a.  Aperson to whom a covered person has given express written
consent to represent the covered person for purposes of this chapter:

b. Aperson authorized by law to provide substituted consent for a
covered person;

o

A family member of the covered person or the covered person's
treating heaith care professionai when the covered person is unable o
provide consent;

(=

A health care professional when the covered person's_health benefit
plan requires that a request for a benefit under the plan be initiated by
the health care professional: or

e. Inthe case of an urgent care request, a health care professional with
knowtedge of the covered person's medical condition.

'‘Case management” means a coordinated set of activities conducted for

individual patient management of serious, complicated, protracted, or other
health conditions.

"Certification" means a determination by a health carrier or its designee

utilization review organization that a request for a benefit under the health
carrier's_health benefit plan has been reviewed and based on the
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information provided satisfies the health carrier's requirements for medical
necessity, appropriateness. health_care setting, level of care, and
effectiveness.

“Clinical peer" means a physician or other health care professional who
holds a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States and in the
same or similar specialty as typically manages the medical condition,
procedure. or treatment under review.

"Clinical review criteria” means the written screening procedures, decision

abstracts, clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used by the health
carmrier to determine the medical necessity and appropriateness of health
care services.

"Closed pian" means a managed care plan that requires covered persons
to use participating providers under the terms of the managed care plan.

"Commissioner" means the insurance commissioner.

"Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a patient's
stay or course of treatment in a facility, the office of a health care
professional, or other inpatient or outpatient health care setting.

"Covered benefits" or "benefits" means those health care services to which
a covered person is entitled under the terms of a health benefit plan.

"Covered person" means a policyholder, subscriber, enrollee, or other
individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge planning" means the formal process for determining, prior to
discharge from a facility_the coordination and management of the care that
a patient receives following discharge from a facility.

'Emergency medical condition” means a medical condition manifesting
itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, inciuding severe pain. such
that a prudent layperson, who possesses an average knowledge of health
and medicine, could reasonably expect that the absence of immediate
medical attention would result in serious impairment to bodily functions,
serious dysfunction of a bodily organ or part, or would place the person's
health or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or
her unborn child, in serious jeopardy.

"Emergency services" means, with respect to an emergency medical
condition:

a. A medical screening examination that is within the capability of the
emergency department of a hospital, including ancillary services
routinely available to the emergency department to evaluate such
emergency medical condition; and

b.  Such further medical examination and treatment, to the extent they
are within the_capability of the staff and facilities available at a

hospital, to stabilize a patient.
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"Facility" means an institution providing health care services or a health

care setting, including hospitals and other licensed inpatient centers,
ambuiatory surgical or treatment centers, skilled nursing centers,
residential treatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and imaging centers.
and rehabilitation and other therapeutic health settings.

"Final adverse determination" means an adverse determination that has

been_upheld by the health carrier at the completion of the internal appeals
process applicable under section 26.1-36.8-05 or 26.1-35.8-08 or an

adverse determination that with respect to which the internal appeals
process has been deemed exhausted in accordance with section

26.1-36.8-04.

¥

'Grievance" means a written complaint or oral complaint if the complaint
involves an urgent care request submitted by or on behalf of a covered

person regarding:

a. Availability, delivery, or guality of health care services. including a

complaint regarding an adverse determination made pursuant to
utilization review;

b, Claims payment, handling, or reimbursement for health care services:
or

Matters pertaining to the contractual reiationship between a_covered
person and a health carrier.

"Health benefit plan" means a policy, contract, certificate, or
agreement offered or issued by a health carrier to provide. deliver,

arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care
services.

"Heaith benefit plan” includes short-term and catastrophic health
insurance policies, and a policy that pays on a cost-incurred basis.

except as otherwise specifically exempted in this definition.

[©

|
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'Health benefit plan" does not include:

(1) Coverage only for accident or disability income insurance, or
any combination thereof;

o

{2) Coverage issued as a supplement to liability insurance;

(3) Liability insurance, including general liabiiity insurance and
automobile liability insurance:

(4) Workers' compensation or similar insurance:;

{5) Automobile medical payment insurance:;

(8) Credit-only insurance:

(7} Coverage for onsite medical clinics; and

(8) Other similar insurance coverage. specified in federal

regulations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub. L. 104-191]. under which
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benefits for medical care are_secondary or incidental {o other
insurance benefits.

‘Health benefit plan” does not include the following benefits if they are
provided under a separate policy,_certificate, or contract of insurance
or are otherwise not an integral part of the plan:

[

(1) Limited scope dental or vision benefits;

(2) Benefits for long-term care, nursing home care, home health
care, community-based care, or any combination thereof: or

(3) Qther similar, limited benefits specified in federal reguiations
issued pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub. L. 104-191].

e. I Health benefit plan” does not include the following benefits if the
benefits are provided under a separate policy, cettificate, or contract
of insurance, there is no coordination between the provision of the
benefits and any exclusion of benefits under any group heaith plan
maintained by the same plan sponsor, and the benefits are paid with
respect to an event without regard to whether benefits are provided

with respect to such an event under any group health plan maintained
by the same plan sponsor:

(1) Coverage only for a specified disease or illness; or

(2) Hospital indemnity or other fixed indemnity insurance.

f. "Health_bengfit plan" does not include the following if offered as a
separate policy. certificate, or contract of ingsurance;

(1) Medicare supplemental health insurance as defined under
section 1882(qg)(1) of the Social Security Act:

{2) Coverage supplemental to the coverage provided under chapter
55 of title 10, United States Code (civilian health and medical
program of the uniformed services (CHAMPUS)): or

(3) Similar supplemental coverage provided to coverage under a
group health pfan.

"Health care professional” means a physician or other health care

practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified_heaith
care services consistent with_state faw.

"Health care provider" or "provider' means a health care professional or a
facility.

'Health care services" means services for the diagnosis, prevention,
treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, illness. injury, or disease.

"Heaith carrier" means an entity subject to the insurance laws and
administrative rules of this_state, or subject to the jurisdiction of the
commissioner, that contracts or offers to contract to_provide, deliver,
arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care services,

including a sickness and accident insurance company, a heaith
maintenance organization, a nonprofit hospital and health service
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corporation, or any other entity providing a plan of heaith insurance, health
benefits, or health care services.

"Health indemnity plan” means a health benefit plan that is not a managed
care pian.

a. "Managed care plan" means a health benefit plan that requires a

covered person to use, or creates incentives, including financial

incentives, for a covered person to use health care providers
managed. owned, under contract with, or emploved by the health
carrier.

b. "Managed care plan” includes:
(1) Aclosed plan, as defined in subsection 8; and

(2) An open plan, as defined in subsection 27.

"Network" means the group of participating providers providing services to
a managed care plan.

"Open plan" means a managed care pian other than a closed plan that
provides incentives, including financial incentives, for covered persons to

use participating providers under the terms of the managed care plan.

"Participating provider" means a provider who under a contract with_the
heailth carrier or with its contractor or subcontractor has agreed to provide

health care services to covered persons with an expectation of receiving
payment, other than coinsurance, copayments or deductibles, directly or
indirectly from the health carrier,

"Person” means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association,

a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an unincorporated
organization. any similar entity, or any combination of the foregoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an
admission or the provision of a health care service or a course of freatment
in accordance with a health carrier's requirement that the health care
service or course of tfreatment, in whole or in part, be approved prior to its
provision,

‘Rescission” means a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage under a
heaith benefit plan that has a retroactive effect. Rescission does not
include a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage under a health benefit

plan if;

a. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage has only a prospective
effect: or

b. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage is effective
retroactively to the extent it is attributable to a failure to timely pay

required premiums or contributions toward the cost of coverage.

"Retrospective review" means any review of a request for a benefit
that is not a prospective review request.

[
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b. "Retrospective review'" does not include the review of a claim that is
. limited to veracity of decumentation or accuracy of coding.

33. "Second opinion" means an opportunity or requirement to obtain a clinical
evaluation by a provider other than the one criginally making a
recommendation for a proposed health care service to assess the medical
necessity and appropriateness of the initial proposed health care service,

34. "Stabilized" means, with respect to an emergency medical condition, that -
no material deterioration of the condition is likely, within reasonable
medical probability, to result from or occur during the transfer of the
individual from a facility or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the woman
has delivered, including the placenta.

35. a. "Urgent care request" means a request for a health care service or
course of treatment with respect to which the time periods for making
nonurgent care request determination:

(1) Could seriously jeopardize the life or health of the covered
person or the ability of the covered person {0 regain maximum
function; or

(2) Inthe opinion of a physician with knowledge of the covered
person's medical condition, would subject the covered person to
severe pain that cannot be adequately managed without the
health care service or treatment that is the subject of the
request,

Except as provided in paragraph 2, in determining whether a
request is to be treated as an urgent care request, an individual
acting on behalf of the health carrier shall apply the judgment of
a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of
health and medicine.

@
o
S

{2) Any request that a physician with knowledge of the covered
person's medical condition determines is an urgent care request
within the meaning of subdivision a must be treated as an urgent
care request.

36, "Utilization review" means a set of formal techniques designed to monitor
the use of or evaluate the medical necessity, appropriateness, efficacy, or
efficiency of health care services, procedures, providers, or facilities.
Techniques may include ambulatory review, prospective review, second
opinion, certification, concurrent review, case management, discharge
planning, or retrospective review.

37. "Utilization review organization" means an entity that conducts utilization
review,_other than a health carrier performing utilization review for its own
health benefit plans.

26.1-36.8-02. Applicability and scope.

a nongrandfathered health benefit plan. "Nongrandfathered health benefit plan” means
a heailth benefit plan that is not exempt from the requirements of the Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148] and the Health Care and Education

. Except as otherwise specified. this chapter applies to all health carriers offering
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Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152] because it failed to achieve or lost

grandfathered health plan status. "Grandfathered health plan" has the meaning stated
in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148]. as amended by the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub, L, 111-152].

26.1-36.8-03. Grievance reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

1. a

b.

o

A health carrier shall maintain a written register to document all
grievances received, including the notices and claims associated with
the grievances, during a calendar year.

{1) Notwithstanding the provisions under subsection 8, a health

carrier shall maintain the records required under this section for

at least six years related to the notices provided under sections
26.1-36.8-05 and 26.1-36.8-08.

(2) The health carrier shall make the records available for

examination by covered persons and the commissioner and
appropriate federal oversight agency upon request.

A health carrier shall process a request for a first-level review of a

grievance involving an adverse determination in compliance with section
26.1-36.8-05 shall be included in the register.

A health carrier shall include in its register requests for additional voluntary

review of a grievance involving an adverse determination that may be

conducted pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-07.

For each grievance the register must contain, at a minimum, the following

information:

A general description of the reason for the grievance:

The date received:

~ The date of each review or review meeting:

Resolution at each level of the grievance:

Date of resolution at each level: and

Name of the covered person for whom the grievance was filed.

A heaith carrier shall maintain the reqister in a manner that is reasonably

clear and accessible to the commissioner.

3.

4.
a.
b.
"
d.
e,
f.

5.

6. a
b

Subject to the provisions of subsection 1, a health carrier shall retain

the register compiled for a calendar year for the longer of three years
or until the commissioner has adopted a final report of an examination

that contains a review of the register for that calendar year.

{1) Ahealth carrier shall submit to the commissioner at least
annually a report in the format specified by the commissioner,

{2} The report shall include for each type of health benefit plan
offered by the health carrier:
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The certificate of compliance required by section 26.1-
36.8-04;

The number of covered lives;

The total number of grievances:

EEE

The number of grievances for which a covered person
requested an_additional voluntary grievance review
pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-07:

e

The number of grievances resolved at each level and their
resolution; :

The number of grievances appealed to the commissioner
of which the health carrier has been informed:

g B

The number of grievances referred to alternative dispute
resolution procedures or resulting in litigation; and

(h) A synopsis of actions being taken to correct problems
identified.

26.1-36.8-04. Grievance review procedures.

1. a. Except as specified in section 26.1-36.8-08, a health carrier shall use
written procedures for receiving and resolving grievances from

covered persons, as provided in sections 26.1-36.8-05, 26.1-36.8-06,
and 26.1-36.8-07.

[

(1) Whenever a health carrier fails to strictly adhere to the
requirements of section 26.1-36.8-05 or 26.1-36.8-08 with
respect to receiving and resolving grievances involving an
adverse determination, the covered person shall be deemed to
have exhausted the provisions of this chapter and may take
action under paragraph 2 regardless of whether the health
carrier asserts that #t substantially complied with the
requirements of section 26.1-36.8-05 or 26.1-36.8-08, as
applicable, or that any error it committed was de minimis.

(2) (a) Acovered person may file a request for external review in

accordance with the procedures outlined in chapter 26.1-
36.6.

(b) In addition, a covered person is entitled to pursue any
available remedies under state or federal law on the basis

that the heaith carrier failed to provide a reasonable
internal claims and appeals process that would vield a
decision_on the merits_of the claim.

jpo
fw

A health carrier shall file with the commissioner a copy of the
procedures required under subsection 1, including all forms used to

process requests made pursuant to sections 26.1-36.8-05, 26.1-36.8-
06, and 26.1-36.8-07. A health carrier shall file with the commissigner

any subseguent material modifications to the documents.
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b. The commissioner may disapprove a filing received in accordance

with subdivision a that fails to comply with this chapter or applicable
rules.

In_addition to subsection 2, a health carrier sh'all file annually with the

commissioner as part of its annual report required by section 26.1-36.8-03
a certificate of compliance stating that the health carrier has established
and maintains for each of its health benefit plans grievance procedures
that fully comply with the provisions of this chapter.

A description of the grievance procedures required under this section shall
be set forth in or attached to the policy, certificate, membership booklet,
outline of coverage, or other evidence of coverage provided to covered
persons,

The grievance procedure documents shall include a statement of a
covered person's right to contact the commissioner's office or
ombudsman's office for assistance at any time. The statement shall include
the telephone number and address of the commissioner's or ombudsman's

office,

26.1-36.8-05. First-level reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.

1

o

3.

Within one hundred eighty days after the date of receipt of a notice of an
adverse determination sent pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.7. a covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative may file a

grievance with the health carrier requesting a first-level review of the
adverse determination.

a. The health carrier shall provide the covered person with the name,
address, and telephone number of a person or organizational unit

designated to coordinate the first-level review on behalf of the health
carrier,

=

(1) In providing for a first-level review under this section, the health
carrier shall ensure that the review is conducted in @ manner

under this section to ensure the independence and impartiality

of the individuals involved in making the first-level review
decision,

(2) In ensuring the independence and impartiality of individuals

involved in making the first-level review decision, the health
carrier shall not make decisions related to such individuals
regarding_hiring, compensation, termination. promotion, or other
similar matters based upon the likelihood that the individual will
support the denial of benefits.

a. (1) Inthe case of an adverse determination involving utilization
review, the health carrier shall designate an appropriate clinical
peer or peers of the same or similar specialty as would typically
manage the case being reviewed to review the adverse

determination. The clinical peer may not have been involved in
the initial adverse determination.
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(2} In designating an appropriate clinical peer or peers pursuant to
paragraph 1, the health carrier shall ensure that if more than one
clinical peer is invoived in the review a majority of the individuals
reviewing the adverse detemnination are health care

professionals who have appropriate expertise.

b. Inconducting a review under this section, the reviewer or reviewers
shall take into consideration all comments, documents, records, and

other information reqarding the request for services submitted by the
covered person or the covered person's authorized representative

without regard to whether the information was submitted or
considered in making the initial adverse determination.

a. (1) Acovered person does not have the right to attend or to have a
representative in attendance at the first-level review but the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative is entitled to:

(@) Submit written comments, documents, records, and other
material relating to the request for benefits for the reviewer
or reviewers to consider when conducting the review: and

{b) Receive from the health carrier upon request and free of
charge reasonable access to and copies of all documents,
records, and other information relevant to the covered
person's request for benefits.

(2) For purposes of subparagraph b of paragraph 1, a document,
record, or other information shall be considered relevant to a
covered person's request for benefits if the document, record, or
other information;

{a) Was relied upon in making the benefit determination;

(b) Was submitted, considered, or generated in the course of
making the adverse determination, without regard to
whether the document, record, or other information was
relied upon in making the benefit determination;

(c) Demonstrates that in making the benefit determination the
health carrier or its designated representatives
consistently applied required administrative procedures
and safeguards with respect to the covered person as
other similarly situated covered persons; or

(d) Constitutes a statement of policy or guidance with respect
to the health benefit plan concerning the denied health
care service or treatment for the covered person's
diagnosis without regard to whether the advice or

statement was relied upon in making the benefit
determination.

b. The health carrier shall make the provisions of subdivision a known to
the covered person or the covered person's authorized representative
within three working days after the date of receipt of the grievance.
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For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a determination

is required to be made and notice provided under subsection 6, the time

period shall begin on the date the grievance requesting the review is filed
with the health carrier in accordance with the health carrier's procedures

established pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-04 for filing a request without
regard to whether all of the information necessary to make the

determination accompanies the filing.

a.

=

o

[

i

A health carrier shall notify and issue a decision in writing or
electronically to the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative within the timeframes provided in
subdivision b or c.

With respect to a grievance requesting a first-level review of an
adverse determination involving a prospective review request, the

health carrier shall notify and issue a decision within a reasonable
period of time that is appropriate given the covered person's medical
condition_but no later than thirty days after the date of the health
carrier's receipt of the grievance requesting the first-level review made

pursuant to subsection 1.

With respect to a grievance requesting a first-level review of an

-adverse determination involving a retrospective review request, the

health carrier shall notify and issue a decision within a reasonable
period of time but no later than sixty days after the date of the health

carrier's receipt of the grievance requesting the first-level review made
pursuant to subsection 1.

Prior to issuing a decision in accordance with the timeframes provided

in subsection 6, the health carrier shall provide free of charge to the
covered person, or the covered person's authorized representative,

any new or additional evidence, relied upon or generated by the
health carrier, or at the direction of the health carrier, in connection

with the grievance sufficiently in advance of the date the decision is
required to be provided to permit the covered person, or the covered

person's authorized representative, a reasonable opportunity to
respond prior to that date. .

Before the health carrier issues or provides notice of a final adverse
determination_in accordance with the timeframes provided in
subsection 6 that is based on new or additional rationale, the health
carrier shall provide the new or additional rationale to the covered
person, or the covered person's authorized representative, free of
charge as soon as possible and sufficiently in advance of the date the
notice of final adverse determination is to be provided to permit the
covered persan, or the covered person's authorized representative a
reasonable opportunity to respond prior to that date.

The decision issued pursuant to subsection 6 shall set forth in a manner

calculated to be understood by the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative:

a.

The titles and qualifying credentials of the reviewers participating in

the first-level review process:
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Information sufficient to_identify the claim involved with respect to the
grievance, including the date of service, the health care provider, if
applicable, the claim amount. the diagnosis code and its
corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and its corresponding
meaning:

A statement of the reviewers' understanding of the covered person's
grievance;

The reviewers' decision in clear terms and the contract basis or
medical rationale in sufficient detail for the covered person to respond
further to the health carrier's position;

A reference to the evidence or documentation used as the basis for

- the decision:

For a first-level review decision issued pursuant to subsection 6 that
upholds the grievance:

(1} The specific reason or reasons for the final adverse
determination, including the denial code and its corresponding

meaning, as well as a description of the health carrier's
standard, if any, that was used in reaching the denial;

{2) The reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is based;

(3) Astatement that the covered person is entitled to receive upon

request and free of charge reasonable access to and copies of
all documents, records, and other information_relevant, as the
term relevant is defined in subdivision a of subsection 4 to the

covered person's benefit request;

(4) If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule, guideline,
protocol, or other similar criterion to make the final adverse
determination, either the specific rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion or a statement that a specific rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion was relied upon to
make the final adverse determination and that a copy of the rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion will be provided free
of charge to the covered person upon request;

(5) [f the final adverse determination is based on a medical
necessity or experimental or investigational treatment or similar
exclusion or limit either an explanation of the scientific or clinical
judgment for making the determination applying the terms of the

health benefit plan to the covered person's medical
circumstances or a statement that an explanation will be

provided to the covered person free of charge upon request: and

(8) If applicable, instructions for requesting:.

(@) A.copy of the rule, guideline, protocal, or other similar
criterion relied upon in making the final adverse

determination, as provided in paragraph 4; and
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(b) The written statement of the scientific or clinical rationale
. for the determination, as provided in paragraph 5;

g. Ifapplicable, a statement indicating:

(1) Adescription of the process to obtain an additional voluntary
review of the first-level review decision if the covered person

wishes to request a voluntary review pursuant to section 26.1-
36.8-07;

(2) The written procedures governing the voluntary review, including
any required timeframe for the review;

{3) Adescription of the procedures for obtaining an independent
external review of the final adverse determination pursuant to
chapter 26.1-36.6 if the covered person decides not to file for an
additional voluntary review of the first-leve] review decision
involving an adverse determination; and

{4) The covered person's right to bring a civil action in a court of
competent jurisdiction;

If applicable. the following statement: "You and your plan may have
other voluntary alternative dispute resolution options, such as
mediation. One way to find out what may be available is to contact
your state Insurance Commissioner."; and

Notice of the covered person's right to contact the commissioner's
‘ office or ombudsman's office for assistance with respect to any claim,

=

=

grievance, or appeal at any time, including the telephone number and

address of the commissioner's office or ombudsman's office.

o
i

A health carrier shall provide the notice required under subsection 8 in
a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner if required in
accordance with federal requlations.

If a health carrier is required to provide the notice required under this
subsection in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner in
accordance with federal regulations, the health carrier shall:

(1) Include a statement in the English version of the notice.
prominently displayed in the non-English lanquage, offering the

provision of the notice in the non-English language;

{2) Once a utilization review or benefit determination request has
been made by a covered person, provide all subsequent notices
to the covered person in the non-English language; and

(3} Tothe extent the health carrier maintains a consumer assistance
process, such as a telephone hotline that answers questions or
provides assistance with filing claims and appeals, the health
carrier shall provide this assistance in the non-English language.

26.1-36.8-06. Standard reviews of grievances not involving an adverse

. determination.
1.

A heaith carrier shall establish written procedures for a standard review of
a grievance that does not involve an adverse determination.

=
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The procedures shall permit a covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative to file a grievance that does not involve an
. adverse determination with the heaith carrier under this section.

b. (1) Acovered person does not have the right to attend or to have a
representative in attendance at the standard review but the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative is entitled to submit written material for the
person or persons designated by the carrier pursuant to
subsection 3 to consider when conducting the review.

{2) The health carrier shali make the provisions of paragraph 1
known to the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative within three working days after the date of
receiving the arievance,

3. a. Upon receipt of the grievance, a health carrier shall designate a
person or persons to conduct the standard review of the grievance.

b. The health carrier shail not designate the same person or persons to

conduct the standard review of the grievance that denied the claim or

N handied the matter that is the subject of the grievance.
¢. The health carrier shall provide the covered person or the covered

person's authorized_representative with the name, address, and
telephone number of a person designated to coordinate the standard
review on behalf of the health carrier.

The health carrier shall notify in writing the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative of the decision within

twenty working days after the date of receipt of the request for a
standard review of a grievance filed pursuant to subsection 2.

&~
[

b. (1) Subjectto paragraph 2. if due to circumstances beyond the
carrier's control, the health carrier cannot make a decision and
notify the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative pursuant to subdivision a within twenty working
days. the health carrier may take up to an additional ten working
days to issue a written decision.

{2) Ahealth carrier may extend the time for making and_notifying the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative in accordance with paragraph 1. if on or before
the twentieth working day after the date of receiving the request
for a standard review of a grievance, the health carrier provides
written notice to the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the extension and the reasons for
the delay.

5. The written decision issued pursuant to subsection 4 must contain:

a. The titles and gualifying credentials of the reviewers participating in
the standard review process:.

b. A statement of the reviewers' understanding of the covered person's
grievance;
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The reviewers' decision in clear terms and the contract basis in

sufficient detail for the covered person to respond further to the heaith
carrier's position;

A reference to the evidence or documentation used as the basis for
the decision;

If applicable, a statement indicating:

(1) A description of the process to obtain an additional review of the
standard review decision if the covered person wishes to
request a voluntary review pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-07: and

(2) The written procedures governing the voluntary review, including
any required timeframe for the review; and

Notice of the covered person's right, at any time. to contact the

commissioner's office, including the telephone number and address of
the commissioner's office.

26.1-36.8-07. Voluntary level of reviews of grievances.

1

jpo

a.

=

b.

A health carrier that offers managed care pians shall establish a
voluntary review process for its managed care plans to give those
covered persons who are dissatisfied with the first-level review
decision made pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-05 or who are
dissatisfied with the standard review decision made pursuant to
section 26.1-36.8-06, the option to request an additional voluntary
review, at which the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative has the right to appear in person at the
review meeting before designated representatives of the health

carrier,

This section shall not apply to heaith indemnity plans.

A health carrier required by this section to establish a voluntary review

process shall provide covered persons or their authorized
representatives with notice pursuant to subsection 7 of section 26.1-
36.8-05 or subsection 5 of section 26.1-36.8-06 as appropriate of the
option to file a request with the health carrier for an additional

voluntary review of the first-level review decision received under
section 26.1-36.8-05 or the standard review decision received under

section 26.1-36.8-06.

Upon receipt of a request for an additional voluntary review, the health

carrier shall send notice to the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative of the covered person's right to:

{1) Request within the timeframe specified in paragraph 1 of
subdivision ¢ the opportunity to appear in person before a
review panel of the health carrier's designated representatives:

(2) Receive from the health carrier upon request copies of all

documents, records, and other information that is not

confidential or privileged relevant to the covered person's
reguest for benefits:

(3) Present the covered person's case to the review panel;
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Submit written comments, documents, records, and other
material relating to the request for benefits for the review panel

to consider when conducting the review both before and at a
review meeting;

Ask questions of any representative of the health carrier on the
review panel: and

Be assisted or represented by an individual of the covered
person's choice.

A covered person or the authorized representative of the
covered person wishing to request to appear in person before
the review panel of the health carrier's designated
representatives shall make the request to the heaith carrier
within five working days after the date of receipt of the notice
sent in accordance with subdivision b.

The covered person's right to a fair review shall not be made
conditional on the covered person's appearance at the review.

With respect to a voluntary review of a first-level review decision
made_pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-05, a health carrier shall
appoint a review panel to review the request.

in conducting the review, the review panel shall take into
consideration all comments, documents. records, and other
information_regarding the request for benefits submitted by the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 2, without
regard to whether the information was submitted or considered
in reaching the first-level review decision.

The panel shall have the leqal authority to bind the health carrier
to the panel's decision.

Except as provided in paragraph 2, a maijority of the panel shall
be comprised of individuals who were not involved in the

first-level review decision made pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-
05,

An individual who was involved with the first-level review
decision may be a member of the panel or appear before the
panel to present information or answer questions.

The health carrier shall ensure that a maijority of the individuals
conducting the additional voluntary review of the first-level
review decision made pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-05 are

heaith care professionals who have appropriate expertise.

Except when a reviewing health care professional who has

appropriate expertise is not reasonably available, in cases in
which there has been a denial of a health care service, the

reviewing health care professional may not:

(a) Be a provider in the covered person's health benefit plan;
and
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applicable, the health care provider, the claim
amount, if applicable, the diagnosis code and its

corresponding meaning and the treatment code and
its corresponding meaning;

The specific reasons or reasons for the adverse
determination, including the denial code and its
corresponding meaning, as well as a description of
the health carrier's standard_ if any, that was used in
denying the benefit request or claim;

Reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is based:

A description of any additional material or information
necessary for the covered person to perfect the
benefit request, including an explanation of why the
material or information is necessary to perfect the

request;

A description of the health carrier's grievance

procedures established pursuant to chapter 26.1-
36.8. including any time limits applicable to those

procedures:

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion 1o make
the adverse determination, either the specific rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion or a
statement that a specific rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion was relied upon to make the
adverse determination and that a copy of the rule,

guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion will be
provided free of charge to the covered person upon

request;

If the adverse determination is based on a medical
necessity or experimental or investigational treatment
or similar exclusion_or limit, either an explanation of
the scientific or clinical judgment for making the
determination, applying the terms of the heaith benefit
plan to the covered person's medical circumstances

or a statement that an explanation will be provided to
the covered person free of charge upon request;
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(10)

A copy of the rule, quideline, protocol, or other similar
criterion relied upon in making the adverse
determination; or

The written statement of the scientific or clinical
rationale for the adverse determination; and

A statement explaining the availability of and the right

of the covered person, as appropriate, to contact the
commissioner's office or ombudsman’s office at any
time for assistance or, upon completion of the health
carrier's grievance procedure process as provided
under chapter 26.1-36.8, to file a civil suit in a court of
competent jurisdiction.The statement shall include
contact information for the commissioner's office or
ombudsman's office.

A health carrier shall provide the notice required
under this section in a culturally and linguistically
appropriate manner if required in accordance with
federal requlations.

If a health carrier is required to provide the notice
required under this section in a culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner in accordance with
federal regulations, the health carrier shall:

(a) Include a statement in the English version of
the notice, prominently displayed in the non-
English language, offering the provision of the
notice in the non-English language;

(b)  Once a utilization review or benefit
determination request has been made by a
covered person, provide all subseguent notices
to the covered person in the non-English

language; and

(¢) Tothe extent the health carrier maintains a
consumer assistance process, such as a
telephone hotline that answers questions or
provides assistance with filing claims and
appeals, the health carrier shall provide this
assistance in the non-English language.
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d.

If the adverse determination is a rescission, the health
carrier shall provide in the advance notice of the rescission
determination required to be provided under applicable state
or federal law or requlation related to the advance notice
requirement of a proposed rescission, in addition to any
applicable disclosures required under subdivision a:

(1)  Clear identification of the alleged fraudulent act,
practice, or omission or the intentional
misrepresentation of a material fact;

(2) An explanation as to why the act, practice, or
omission was fraudulent or was an intentional

misrepresentation of a material fact;

(3)  Notice that the covered person or the covered
person's authonzed representative, prior to the date
the advance notice of the proposed rescission ends,
may immediately file a grievance to request a review
of the adverse determination to rescind coverage
pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8;

(4) A description of the health carrier's grievance
procedures established pursuant to chapter 26.1-
36.8, including any time limits applicable to those
procedures: and

(8) The date when the advance notice ends and the date
back to which the coverage will be retroactively
rescinded.

A health carrier may provide the notice required under this
section in writing or electronically.

26.1-36.7-08. Procedures for expedited utilization review and benefit

determinations.

1

a.

A health carrier shall establish written procedures in
accordance with this section for receiving benefit requests
from covered persons or their authorized representatives
and for making and notifying covered persons or their
authorized representatives of expedited utilization review

and benefit determinations with respect to urgent care
requests and concurrent review urgent care requests.

63



[

(=

|

As part of the procedures required under subdivision
a, a health carrier shall provide that in the case of a
failure by a covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative to follow the health carrier's
procedures for filing an urgent care request the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative shall be notified of the failure and the
proper procedures to be following for filing the

request.

A health carrier shall provide the notice required
under paragraph 1:

(a) Tothe covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative as soon as possible
but not later than twenty-four hours after
receipt of the request; and

(b)  Orally unless the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative
requests the notice in writing.

The provisions of this paragraph apply only in the
case of a failure that:

(@) Is a communication by a covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative
that is received by a person or organizational
unit of the health carrier responsible for
handling benefit matters; and

(b) Is a communication that refers to a specific
covered person, a specific medical condition or
symptom, and a specific health care service,
treatment, or provider for which approval is
being requested.

For an urgent care request, unless the covered
person or the covered person's authorized
representative has failed to provide sufficient
information for the health carrier to determine
whether, or to what extent, the benefits requested are
covered benefits or payable under the health carrier's
health benefit plan, the health carrier shall notify the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative of the health carrier's determination
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with respect to the request, whether the determination
is an adverse determination as soon as possible
taking into account the medical condition of the
covered person but in no event later than twenty-four
hours after the receipt of the request by the health
carrier,

If the health carrier's determination is an adverse
determination, the health carrier shall provide notice
of the adverse determination in accordance with
subsection 5.

If the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative has failed to provide
sufficient information for the health carrier to make a
determination, the health carrier shall notify the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative either orally or, if requested by the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative, in writing of this failure and state what
specific information is needed as soon as possible but
in no event later than twenty-four hours after receipt
of the request.

The health carrier shall provide the covered person or
the covered person's authorized representative a
reasonable period of time to submit the necessary
information taking into account the circumstances but
in no event less than forty-eight hours after notifying
the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the failure to submit
sufficient information, as provided in paragraph 1.

The health carrier shall notify the covered person or
the covered person's authorized representative of its
determination with respect to the urgent care request
as soon as possible but in no event more than forty-
eight hours after the earlier of:

(a) The health carrier's receipt of the requested
specified information; or

(b} The end of the period provided for the covered
person or the covered person's authorized
representative to submit the requested
specified information.
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4) If the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative faiis to submit the
information before the end of the period of the
extension, as specified in paragraph 2, the health
carrier may deny the certification of the requested
benefit.

{8) Ifthe health carrier's determination is an adverse
determination, the heaith carrier shall provide notice
of the adverse determination in accordance with
subsection 5.

For concurrent review urgent care requests involving a
request by the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative to extend the course of treatment
beyond the initial period of time or the humber of treatments,
if the request is made at least twenty-four hours prior to the
expiration of the prescribed period of time or number of
treatments, the health carrier shall make a determination
with respect to the request and notify the covered person or
the covered person's authorized representative of the
determination, whether it is an adverse determination or not,
as soon as possible taking into_account the covered person's
medical condition but in no event more than twenty-four
hours after the health carrier's receipt of the request.

If the health carrier's determination is an adverse
determination, the health carrier shall provide notice of the
adverse determination in accordance with subsection 5.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a

determination is required to be made under subsection 2 or 3, the

time period within which the determination is required to be made

shall begin on the date the request is filed with the health carrier in

accordance with the health carrier's procedures established

pursuant to section 26.1-36.7-05 for filing a request without regard

to whether all of the information necessary to make the

determination accompanies the filing.

a.

A notification of an adverse determination under this section

shall in a manner calculated to be understood by the
covered person set forth:

(1) Information sufficient to identify the benefit request or
claim involved, including the date of service, if
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applicable, the health care provider, the claim

amount, if appiicable, the diagnosis code and its
corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and

its corresponding meaning;

The specific reasons or reasons for the adverse
determination, including the denial code and its
corresponding meaning, as well as a description of
the health carrier's standard, if any, that was used in
denying the benefit request or claim;

Reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is based;

A description of any additional material or information
necessary for the covered person to complete the
request, including an explanation of why the material
or information is necessary to complete the request;

A description of the health carrier's internal review
procedures established pursuant to chapter 26.1-
36.8_including any time limits applicable to those

procedures:

A description of the health carrier's expedited review
procedures established pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-
06;

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule,
quideline, protocol, or other similar criterion to make
the adverse determination, either the specific rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion or a
statement that a specific rule, gquideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion was relied upon to make the
adverse determination and that a copy of the rule,
quideline, protocol, or other similar criterion will be
provided free of charge to the covered person upon

request;

If the adverse determination is based on a medical
necessity or experimental or investigational treatment
or similar exclusion or limit, either an explanation of
the scientific or clinical judgment for making the
determination applving the terms of the health benefit
plan to the covered person's medical circumstances
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or a statement that an explanation will be provided to
the covered person free of charge upon request;

if applicable. instructions for requesting:

(a) Acopy of the rule, guideline, protocol, or other
similar criterion relied upon in making the
adverse determination in accordance with
paragraph 7: or

(b) The written statement of the scientific or clinical
rationale for the adverse determination in
accordance with paragraph 8; and

A statement explaining the availability of and right of

the covered person to contact the commissioner's
office or ombudsman's office at any time for
assistance or, upon completion of the health carrier's
grievance procedure process as provided under
chapter 26.1-36.8, to file a civil suit in a court of
competent jurisdiction. The statement shall include
contact information for the commissioner's office or
ombudsman's office.

A health carrier shall provide the notice required
under this section in a culturally and linguistically
appropriate manner if required in accordance with
federal regulations.

if a health carrier is required to provide the notice
required under this section in a culturally and
lingquistically appropriate manner in accordance with
federal requlations, the health carrier shall;

(a) Include a statement in the English version of
the notice. prominently displayed in the non-
English language, offering the provision of the
notice in the non-English language;

(b} Once a utilization review or benefit
determination request has been made by a
covered person, provide all subsequent notices
to the covered person in the non-English
language; and
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() Tothe extent the heaith carrier maintains a
consumer assistance process, such as a
telephone hotline that answers questions or
provides assistance with filing claims and
appeals, the health carrier shall provide this
assistance in the non-English language.

c. If the adverse determination is a rescission, the health
carrier shall provide, in addition to any applicable disclosures
required:

{1) Clear identification of the alleged fraudulent act,
practice, or omission or the intentional
misrepresentation of material fact;

{2) Anexplanation as to why the act, practice, or
omission was fraudulent or was an intentionai
misrepresentation of a material fact;

(3) The date the health carrier made the decision to
rescind the coverage; and

(4) The date when the advance notice of the health
carrier's decision to rescind the coverage ends.

d. {1) A health carrier may provide the notice required under

this section orally, in writing, or electronically.

(2) If notice of the adverse determination is provided

orally, the health carrier shall provide written or
electronic notice of the adverse determination within
three days following the oral notification.

26.1-36.7-09. Emergency services.

1.

o

When conducting utilization review or making a benefit
determination for emergency services, a health carrier that provides
benefits for services in an emergency department of a hospital shall
follow the provisions of this section.

A health carrier shall cover emergency services to screen and
stabilize a covered person in the following manner:

a. Without the need for prior authorization of such services if a
prudent layperson would have reasonably believed that an
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emergency medical condition existed even if the emergency

services are provided on an out-of-network basis;

Shall cover emergency services whether the health care
provider furnishing the services is a participating provider
with respect to such services;

If the emergency services are provided out of network,
without imposing any administrative requirement or limitation
on coverage that is more restrictive than the requirements or
limitations that apply to emergency services received from
network providers;

If the emergency services are provided out of network, by

complying with the cost-sharing requirements of subsection
3. and

Without regard to any other term or condition of coverage,
other than:

(1)  The exclusion of or coordination of benefits;

(2)  An affiliation or waiting period as permitted under
section 2704 of the Public Health Service Act; or

(3) Applicable cost-sharing, as provided in subsection
three.

For in-network emergency services, coverage of emergency

services shall be subject to applicable copayments,
coinsurance, and deductibles.

(1)  For out-of-network emergency services, any cost-
sharing requirement expressed as a copayment
amount or coinsurance rate imposed with respect to a
covered person cannot exceed the cost-sharing
requirement imposed with respect to a covered
person if the services were provided in network.

{2)  Notwithstanding paragraph 1, a covered person may
be required to pay, in addition to the in-network cost-

sharing, the excess of the amount the out-of-network
provider charges over the amount the health carrier is

required to pay under this subparagraph.

70



|©

A health carrier complies with the requirements of this
paragraph if it provides payment of emergency
services provided by an out-of-network provider in an
amount not less than the greatest of the following:

{a) The amount negotiated with in-network
providers for emergency services, excluding
any in-network copayment or coinsurance
imposed with respect to the covered person;

(b) The amount of the emergency service
calculated using the same method the plan
uses to determine payments for out-of-network
services, but using the in-network cost-sharing
provisions instead of the out-of-town network
cost-sharing provisions: or

(¢) The amount that would be paid under medicare
for the emergency services, excluding any in-
network copayment or coinsurance
requirements.

(@) For capitated or other health benefit plans that
do not have a negotiated per service amount
for in-network providers, subparagraph a of
paragraph 3 does not apply.

(b)  If a heath benefit plan has more than one
negotiated amount for in-network providers for
a particular emergency service, the amount in

subparagraph a of paragraph 3 is the median
of these negotiated amounts.

Any cost-sharing requirement other than a copayment
or coinsurance requirement, such as a deductible or
out-o f-pocket maximum, may be imposed with
respect to emergency services provided out of
network if the cost-sharing requirement generally
applies to out of network benefits.

A deductible may be imposed with respect to out of
network emergency services only as part of a
deductible that generally applies to out of network
benefits.
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(3) If an out-of-pocket maximum generally applies to out
of network benefits, that out-of-network maximum
must apply to out of network emergency services.

For immediately required postevaluation or poststabilization

services, a health carrier shall provide access to a designated

representative twenty-four hours a day seven days a week to

facilitate review or otherwise provide coverage with no financial

penalty to the covered person.

26.1-36.7-10. Confidentiality requirements. A health carrier shall

annually certify in writing to the commissioner that the utilization review program

of the health carrier or its designee complies with all applicable state and federal

law establishing confidentiality and reporting requirements.

26.1-36.7-11. Disclosure requirements.

1.

|

3.

In the certificate of coverage or member handbook provided to
covered persons, a health carrier shall include a clear and
comprehensive description of its utilization review procedures,
including the procedures for obtaining review of adverse
determinations and a statement of rights and responsibilities of
covered persons with respect to those procedures.

A health carrier shall include a summary of its utilization review and
benefit determination procedures in materials intended for

prospective covered persons.
A health carrier shall print on its membership cards a toll-free

telephone number to call for utilization review and benefit decisions.

26.1-36.7-12. Rules.The commissioner may adopt rules to carry out the

provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.7-13. Penalties.The commissioner may assess a penalty against

a health carrier that violates this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars

for each violation.The fine may be recovered in an action brought in the name of

the state.in addition to imposing a monetary penalty, the commissioner may also

cancel, revoke, or refuse to renew the certificate of authority of a health carrier

that has violated this chapter.

SECTION 6. Chapter 26.1-36.8 of the North Dakota Century Code is

created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.8-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:
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"Adverse determination” means:

a.

=

o

d.

A determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization that, based upon the information
provided, a request for a benefit under the health carrier's
health benefit plan upon application of any utilization review
technique does not meet the health carrier's requirements for
medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level
of care, or effectiveness or is determined to be experimental
or investigational and the requested benefit is therefore
denied, reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or
made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;

The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a
determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization of a covered person's eligibility to
participate in the health carrier's health benefit plan;

Any prospective review or retrospective review determination
that denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit; or

A rescission of coverage determination.

"Ambulatory review" means utilization review of health care

services performed or provided in an outpatient setting.

"Authorized representative” means:

a.

|

o

=

A person to whom a covered person has given express
written consent to represent the covered person for
purposes of this chapter;

A person authorized by law to provide substituted consent
for a covered person;

A family member of the covered person or the covered
person's treating health care professional when the covered
person is unable to provide consent;

A health care professional when the covered person's health
benefit plan requires that a request for a benefit under the
plan be initiated by the health care professional; or
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e. In the case of an urgent care request, a health care

professional with knowledge of the covered person's medical
condition.

"Case management” means a coordinated set of activities
conducted for individual patient management of serious,
complicated, protracted, or other heaith conditions.

‘Certification” means a determination by a health carrier or its
designee utilization review organization that a request for a benefit

under the health carrier's health benefit plan has been reviewed
and based on the information provided satisfies the health carrier's

requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness, health care
setting, level of care, and effectiveness.

"Clinical peer" means a physician or other health care professional
who holds a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States
and in the same or similar specialty as typically manages the
medical condition, procedure, or treatment under review.

"Clinical review criteria” means the written screening procedures.
decision abstracts, clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used

by the health carrier to determine the medical necessity and
appropriateness of health care services.

"Closed plan" means a managed care plan that requires covered
persons to use participating providers under the terms of the

manaqged care plan.

"Commissioner" means the insurance commissioner.

'‘Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a
patient's stay or course of treatment in a facility, the office of a

health care professional, or other inpatient or outpatient health care
setting.

"Covered benefits" or "benefits" means those health care services
to which a covered person is entitled under the terms of a health

benefit plan.

"Covered person” means a policyholder, subscriber, enrollee, or
other individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge planning" means the formal process for determining.
rior to discharge from a facility, the coordination and management

74



of the care that a patient receives following discharge from a
facility.

"Emergency medical condition” means a medical condition
manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including

severe pain, such that a prudent layperson, who possesses an
average knowledge of health and medicine, could reasonably
expect that the absence of immediate medical attention would
result in serious impairment to bodily functions, serious dysfunction
of a bodily organ or part, or would place the person's health or, with
respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her
unborn child, in serious jeopardy.

"Emergency services" means, with respect to an emergency
medical condition:

a. A medical screening examination that is within the capability
of the emergency department of a hospital, including
ancillary services routinely available to the emergency
department to evaluate such emergency medical condition;
and

Such further medical examination and treatment, to the

extent they are within the capability of the staff and facilities
available at a hospital, to stabilize a patient.

=

"Facility” means an institution providing health care services or a
health care setting, including hospitals and other licensed inpatient
centers, ambulatory surgical or treatment centers, skilled nursing
centers, residential treatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and
imaging centers, and rebabilitation and other therapeutic health

settings.

"Final adverse determination” means an adverse determination that
has been upheld by the heaith carrier at the completion of the
internal appeals process applicable under section 26.1-36.8-05 or
26.1-36.8-06 or an adverse determination that with respect to which
the internal appeals process has been deemed exhausted in
acceordance with section 26.1-36.8-04.

"Grievance" means a written complaint or oral complaint if the
complaint involves an urgent care request submitted by or on

bebhalf of a covered person regarding:
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Availability, delivery, or quality of health care services,
including a compiaint regarding an adverse determination
made pursuant to utilization review:

Claims payment, handling, or reimbursement for health care
services; or

Matters pertaining to the contractual relationship between a
covered person and a health carrier.

"Health benefit plan” means a policy, contract, cedificate, or
agreement offered or issued by a health carrier to provide,

deliver, arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of
health care services.

"Health benefit plan" includes short-term and catastrophic
health insurance policies, and a policy that pays on a cost-
incurred basis, except as otherwise specifically exempted in
this definition.

"Health benefit plan" does not include:

(1)  Coverage only for accident or disability income
insurance, or any combination thereof;

(2) _Coverage issued as a supplement to liability
insurance;

(3) Liability insurance, including general liability insurance
and automobile liability insurance:

(4) Workers' compensation or similar insurance;

{6) Automobile medical payment insurance;

{8) Credit-only insurance;

(7)  Coverage for onsite medical clinics; and

{8)  Other similar insurance coverage, specified in federal

requlations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub.L.104-
191], under which benefits for medical care are

secondary or incidental to other insurance benefits.
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"Health benefit plan” does not include the following benefits

if they are provided under a separate policy, certificate, or
contract of insurance or are otherwise not an integral part of

the plan;

(1) Limited scope dental or vision benefits;

(2)  Benefits for long-term care, nursing home care, home
health care, community-based care, or any
combination thereof; or

(3)  Other similar, limited benefits specified in federal
requlations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub.L.104-

191].

"Health benefit plan" does not include the following benefits
if the benefits are provided under a separate policy,
certificate, or contract of insurance, there is no coordination
between the provision of the benefits and any exclusion of
benefits under any group health plan maintained by the
same plan sponsor, and the benefits are paid with respect to
an event without regard to whether benefits are provided

with respect to such an event under any group heaith plan
maintained by the same plan sponsor:

(1)  Coverage only for a specified disease or iliness; or

{2) Hospital indemnity or other fixed indemnity insurance.

"Health benefit plan" does not include the following if offered
as a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance:

{1 Medicare supplemental health insurance as defined
under section 1882(g)(1)of the Social Security Act;

(2) Coverage supplemental to the coverage provided

under chapter 55 of title 10, United States Code
(civilian health and medical program of the uniformed

services (CHAMPUSY): or

(3) Similar supplemental coverage provided to coverage
under a group health plan.
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"Health care professional” means a physician or other health care
practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified
health care services consistent with state law.

"Health care provider" or "provider” means a heaith care
professional or a facility.

"Health care services" means services for the diagnosis,

prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, iliness,
injury, or disease.

"Health carrier” means an entity subject to the insurance laws and
administrative rules of this state, or subject to the jurisdiction of the
commissioner, that contracts or offers to contract to provide,
deliver, arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health
care services, including a sickness and accident insurance
company, a health maintenance organization,_a nonprofit hospital
and health service corporation, or any other entity providing a plan
of health insurance, health benefits, or health care services.

"Health indemnity plan” means a health benefit plan that is not a
managed care plan.

a. "Managed care plan" means a health benefit plan that
requires a covered person to use,_ or creates incentives,
including financial incentives, for a covered person to use
health care providers managed, owned, under contract with,
or employed by the health carrier,

1=

"Managed care plan" includes:

(1)  Aclosed plan, as defined in subsection 8; and

(2)  Anopen plan, as defined in subsection 27.

‘Network" means the group of participating providers providing
services to a managed care plan.

"Open plan" means a managed care plan other than a closed plan
that provides incentives, including financial incentives, for covered

persons to use participating providers under the terms of the
managed care plan.

"Participating provider" means a provider who under a contract with

the health carrier or with its contractor or subcontractor has agreed
to provide health care services to covered persons with an
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expectation of receiving payment, other than coinsurance,
copayments or deductibles, directly or indirectly from the health
carrier.

"Person” means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an

association, a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an
unincorporated organization, any similar entity, or any combination

of the foregoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an
admission or the provision of a health care service or a course of
treatment in accordance with a health carrier's requirement that the
health care service or course of treatment, in whole or in part, be
approved prior to its provision.

"Rescission" means a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage
under a health benefit plan that has a retroactive effect.Rescission
does not include a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage
under a health benefit plan if:

a. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage has only a
prospective effect; or

b. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage is effective
retroactively to the extent it is attributable to a failure to

timely pay required premiums or contributions toward the
cost of coverage.

a. "Retrospective review" means any review of a request for a
benefit that is not a prospective review request.
b. "Retrospective review" does not include the review of a claim

that is limited to veracity of documentation or accuracy of
coding.

"Second opinion" means an opportunity or requirement to obtain a
clinical evaluation by a provider other than the one originaily
making a recommendation for a proposed health care service to
assess the medical necessity and appropriateness of the initial
proposed health care service.

"Stabilized" means, with respect to an emergency medical
condition, that no material deterioration of the condition is likely,
within reasonable medical probability, to result from or occur during
the transfer of the individual from a facility or, with respect to a
pregnant woman, the woman has delivered, including the placenta.
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35 a "Urgent care request” means a request for a health care
service or course of treatment with respect to which the time
periods for making nonurgent care request determination:

(1)  Could seriously jeopardize the life or health of the
covered person or the ability of the covered person to
regain maximum function; or

(2) Inthe opinion of a physician with knowledge of the
covered person's medical condition, would subject the
covered person to severe pain that cannot be
adequately managed without the health care service
or treatment that is the subject of the request.

Except as provided in paragraph 2, in determining

whether a request is to be treated as an urgent care

request, an individual acting on behalf of the health
carrier shall apply the judgment of a prudent

layperson who possesses an average knowledge of
health and medicine,

=2
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(2)  Any request that a physician with knowledge of the
covered person's medical condition determines is an
urgent care request within the meaning of subdivision

a must be treated as an urgent care request.

36. "Utilization review" means a set of formal techniques designed to
monitor the use of or evaluate the medical necessity,
appropriateness, efficacy, or efficiency of health care services,
procedures, providers, or facilities. Techniques may include

ambulatory review, prospective review, second opinion,

certification, concurrent review, case management, discharge
planning, or retrospective review.

37. "Utilization review organization" means an entity that conducts

utilization review, other than a health carrier performing utilization
review for its own health benefit plans.

26.1-36.8-02. Applicability and scope. Except as otherwise specified,

this chapter applies to all health carriers offering a nongrandfathered health
benefit plan."Nongrandfathered health benefit plan" means a health benefit plan

that is not exempt from the requirements of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act [Pub.L.111-148] and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act
of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152] because it failed to achieve or lost grandfathered health
plan status."Grandfathered health plan" has the meaning stated in the Patient
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Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152].

. Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub.L.111-148], as amended by the Health

26.1-36.8-03. Grievance reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

1. a. A health carrier shall maintain a written register to document
all grievances received, including the notices and claims
associated with the grievances, during a calendar vear.

b. (1)  Notwithstanding the provisions under subsection 6, a
health carrier shall maintain the records required
under this section for at least six years related to the
notices provided under sections 26.1-36.8-05 and
26.1-36.8-06.

(2)  The health carrier shail make the records available for
examination by covered persons_and the
commissioner and appropriate federal oversight
agency upon request.

2. A health carrier shall process a request for a firs t-level review of a
grievance involving an adverse determination in compliance with
. section 26.1-36.8-05 shall be included in the register.
3. For each grievance the register must contain, at a minimum, the
following information:
a. A general description of the reason for the grievance;
b. The date received:
c. The date of each review or review meeting;
d. Resolution at each level of the grievance;
€. Date of resolution at each level; and
f. Name of the covered person for whom the grievance was
filed.
4. A health carrier shall maintain the register in a manner that is
reasonably clear and accessible to the commissioner.
5. a. Subject to the provisions of subsection 1, a health carrier
' shall retain the register compiled for a calendar year for the
. longer of three years or until the commissioner has adopted
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a final report of an examination that contains a review of the

reqgister for that calendar year.

(6]

A health carrier shall submit to the commissioner at
least annually a report in the format specified by the
commissioner.

The report shall include for each type of health benefit
plan offered by the health carrier:

(a) The certificate of compliance required by
section 26.1-36.8-04;

The number of covered lives;

The total number of grievances;

level and their resolution:

(b)
(c)
{d) The number of grievances resolved at each
(e)

The number of grievances appealed to the
commissioner of which the health carrier has
been informed:;

(f) The number of grievances referred to
alternative dispute resolution procedures or
resulting in litigation: and

(@) A synopsis of actions being taken to correct
problems identified.

26.1-36.8-04. Grievance review procedures.

1 a.

i

Except as specified in section 26.1-36.8-06. a health carrier

shall use written procedures for receiving and resolving

grievances from covered persons, as provided in sections

26.1-36.8-05.

)]

Whenever a health carrier fails to strictly adhere to the
requirements of section 26.1-36.8-05 or 26.1-36.8-06
with respect to receiving and resolving grievances
involving an adverse determination, the covered
person shall be deemed to have exhausted the

provisions of this chapter and may take action under
paragraph 2 regardless of whether the health carrier

asserts that it substantially complied with the
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reguirements of section 26.1-36.8-05 or 26.1-36.8-06,
as applicable, or that any error it committed was de
minimis.

(2) (a) A covered person may file a request for
external review in accordance with the
procedures outlined in chapter 26.1-36.6.(b)In
addition, a covered person is entitled to pursue
any available remedies under state or federal
law on the basis that the health carrier failed to
provide a reasonable interna) claims and
appeals process that would vield a decision on
the merits of the claim.

A health carrier shall file with the commissioner a copy of the
procedures required under subsection 1, including all forms
used to process requests made pursuant to sections 26.1-
36.8-05.A health carrier shall file with the commissioner any
subsequent material modifications to the documents.

I~
|
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The commissioner may disapprove a filing received in
accordance with subdivision a that fails to comply with this

. chapter or applicable rules.

|eo

In_addition to subsection 2, a health carrier shall file annually with
the commissioner as part of its annual report required by section
26.1-36.8-03 a_certificate of compliance stating that the health
carrier has established and maintains for each of its health benefit

plans grievance procedures that fully comply with the provisions of
this chapter.

4. A description of the grievance procedures required under this
section shall be set forth in or attached to the policy, cettificate,
membership booklet, outline of coverage, or other evidence of
coveraqge provided to covered persons.

5. The grievance procedure documents shall include a statement of a

covered person's right to contact the commissioner's office or
ombudsman's office for assistance at any time.The statement shall
include the telephone number and address of the commissioner's
or ombudsman's office.

26.1-36.8-05. First-level reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.
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Within one hundred eighty days after the date of receipt of a notice

of an adverse determination sent pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.7. a

covered person or the covered person's authorized representative

may file a grievance with the health carrier requesting a firs t-level

review of the adverse determination.

a,

o

o

=

The health carrier shall provide the covered person with the

name, address, and telephone number of a person or

orqanizational unit designated to coordinate the first-level

review on behalf of the health carrier.

M

In_providing for a firs t-level review under this section,
the health carrier shall ensure that the review is
conducted in a manner under this section to ensure
the independence and impartiality of the individuals
involved in making the first-level review decision.

In_ensuring the independence and impartiality of
individuals involved in making the first-level review
decision, the health carrier shall not make decisions
related to such individuals reqarding hiring,
compensation, termination, promotion, or other similar
matters based upon the likelihood that the individual
will support the denial of benefits.

In the case of an adverse determination involving
utilization review, the health carrier shall designate an
appropriate clinical peer or peers of the same or
similar specialty as would typically manage the case
being reviewed to review the adverse
determination.The clinical peer may not have been
involved in the initial adverse determination.

In designating an appropriate clinical peer or peers
pursuant to paragraph 1, the health carrier shall
ensure that if more than one clinical peer is involved
in the review a majority of the individuals reviewing
the adverse determination are health care

professionals who have appropriate expertise.

In conducting a review under this section, the reviewer or

reviewers shall take into consideration all comments,

documents, records, and other information regarding the

request for services submitted by the covered person or the

covered person's authorized representative without regard to
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whether the information was submitted or considered in

making the initial adverse determination.

o

A covered person does not have the right to attend or

to have a representative in attendance at the first-

level review but the covered person or the covered

person's authorized representative is entitled to:

(a)

Submit written comments, documents, records,
and other material relating to the request for
benefits for the reviewer or reviewers to
consider when conducting the review; and

Receive from the health carrier upon request
and free of charge reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other

information relevant to the covered person's

request for benefits.

For purposes of subparagraph b of paragraph 1, a

document, record, or other information shall be

considered relevant to a covered person's request for
benefits if the document, record, or other information:

(a)

(b)

d

Was relied upon in making the benefit
determination:

Was submitted, considered, or generated in
the course of making the adverse
determination, without regard to whether the
document, record, or other information was
relied upon in making the benefit
determination;

Demonstrates that in making the benefit
determination the health carrier or its
designated representatives consistently
applied required administrative procedures and
safeguards with respect to the covered person
as other similarly situated covered persons; or

Constitutes a statement of policy or guidance
with respect to the health benefit plan
concerning the denied health care service or
treatment for the covered person's diagnosis
without reqard to whether the advice or
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statement was relied upon in making the
benefit determination.

[

The health carrier shall make the provisions of subdivision a
known to the covered person or the covered person’s
authorized representative within three working days after the
date of receipt of the grievance.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a
determination is required to be made and notice provided under
subsection 6, the time period shall begin on the date the grievance
reguesting the review is filed with the health carrier in accordance
with the health carrier's procedures established pursuant to section
26.1-36.8-04 for filing a request without reqard to whether all of the

information necessary to make the determination accompanies the
filing.

a. A health carrier shall notify and issue a decision in writing or
electronically to the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative within the timeframes provided in
subdivision b or ¢.

(=3

With respect to a grievance requesting a first-level review of
an adverse determination involving a prospective review
request, the health carrier shall notify and issue a decision
within a reasonable period of time that is appropriate given
the covered person's medical condition but no later than
thirty days after the date of the health carrier's receipt of the
grievance requesting the first-level review made pursuant to
subsection 1.

With respect to a grievance requesting a firs t-level review of
an adverse determination involving a retrospective review
request, the health carrier shall notify and issue a decision
within a reasonable period of time but no later than sixty
days after the date of the health carrier's receipt of the
grievance requesting the firs t-level review made pursuant to
subsection 1.

|©

Prior to issuing a decision in accordance with the timeframes

provided in subsection 6, the health carrier shall provide free

of charge to the covered person, or the covered person's
authorized representative, any new or additional evidence,

relied upon or generated by the heaith carrier, or at the
direction of the health carrier. in connection with the
grievance sufficiently in advance of the date the decision is

|2
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required to be provided to permit the covered person. or the

covered person's authorized representative, a reasonable

opportunity to respond prior to that date.

Before the health carrier issues or provides notice of a final

adverse determination in accordance with the timeframes

provided in subsection 6 that is based on new or additional
rationale, the health carrier shail provide the new or
additional rationale to the covered person, or the covered
person's authorized representative, free of charge as soon
as possible and sufficiently in advance of the date the notice
of final adverse determination is to be provided to permit the
covered person, or the covered person's authorized
representative a reasonable opportunity to respond prior to
that date.

The decision issued pursuant to subsection 8 shall set forth in a
manner calculated to be understood by the covered person or the

covered person's authorized representative:

a.

b.

|©
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The titles and qualifying credentials of the reviewers
participating in the first-leve! review process;:

Information sufficient to identify the claim involved with
respect to the grievance, including the date of service, the
health care provider, if applicabie, the claim amount, the

diagnosis code and its corresponding meaning, and the
treatment code and its corresponding meaning;

A statement of the reviewers' understanding of the covered
person's grievance;

The reviewers' decision in clear terms and the contract basis
or medical rationale in sufficient detail for the covered person
to respond further to the health carrier's position:

A reference to the evidence or documentation used as the
basis for the decision;

For a first-level review decision issued pursuant to
subsection 6 that upholds the grievance:

(1)  The specific reason or reasons for the final adverse
determination, including the denial code and its
corresponding meaning, as well as a description of
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the health carrier's standard, if any, that was used in
reaching the denial;

The reference to the specific plan provisions on which
the determination is based;

A statement that the covered person is entitled to
receive upon request and free of charge reasonable
access to and copies of all documents, records, and
other information relevant, as the term relevant is
defined in subdivision a of subsection 4 to the
covered person's benefit request;

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion to make
the final adverse determination_ either the specific
rule, guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion or a
statement that a specific rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion was relied upon to make the
final adverse determination and that a copy of the
ruie, guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion wiil
be provided free of charge to the covered person
upon request;

If the final adverse determination is based on a
medical necessity or experimental or investigational
treatment or similar exclusion or limit either an
explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment for
making the determination applying the terms of the
health benefit plan to the covered person's medical
circumstances or a statement that an explanation will
be provided to the covered person free of charge
upon request; and

If applicable, instructions for requesting:

(a)  A.copy of the rule, guideline, protocol, or other
similar criterion relied upon in making the final

adverse determination, as _provided in
paragraph 4; and

(b)  The written statement of the scientific or clinical
rationale for the determination, as provided in

paragraph 5;

If applicable, a statement indicating:
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(1) A description of the process to obtain an additional
voluntary review of the first-level review decision if a

voluntarv review is offered by the health carrier;

(2) The written procedures governing the voluntary
review, including any required timeframe for the
review:

(3) A description of the procedures for obtaining an
independent external review of the final adverse
determination pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.6 if the
covered person decides not to file for an additional
voluntary review of the first-level review decision
involving an adverse determination; and

{4) The covered person's right to bring a civil action in a
court of competent jurisdiction;

If applicable, the following statement: "You and your plan
may have other voluntary alternative dispute resolution
options, such as mediation.One way to find out what may be
available is to contact your state Insurance Commissioner.";
and

Notice of the covered person's right to contact the
commissioner's office or ombudsman's office for assistance
with respect to any claim, grievance, or appeal at any time,
including the telephone number and address of the
commissioner's office or ombudsman's office.

A health carrier shall provide the notice required under
subsection 8 in a culturally and linguistically appropriate
manner if required in accordance with federal regulations.

If a health carrier is required to provide the notice required
under this subsection in a culturally and linguistically
appropriate manner in accordance with federal requlations,
the health carrier shall:

(1) Include a statement in the English version of the
notice, prominently displayed in the non-English
language, offering the provision of the notice in the
non-English language;
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{(2)  Once a utilization review or benefit determination
request has been made by a covered person, provide
all subsequent notices to the covered person in the
non-English language; and

(3) Tothe extent the heaith carrier maintains a consumer
assistance process, such as a telephone hotline that
answers questions or provides assistance with filing
claims and appeals. the health carrier shall provide
this assistance in the non-English language.

26.1-36.8-06. Expedited reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination. :

1
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A health carrier shall establish written procedures for the expedited
review of urgent care regquests of grievances involving an adverse

determination.

in addition to subsection 1, a health carrier shall provide expedited
review of a grievance involving an adverse determination with
respect to concurrent review urgent care requests involving an
admission, availability of care, continued stay, or health care
service for a covered person who has received emergency services
but has not been discharged from a facility.

The procedures shall allow a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative to request an expedited review
under this section oratly or in writing.

A health carrier shall appoint an appropriate clinical peer or peers in
the same or similar specialty as would typically manage the case
being reviewed to review the adverse determination.The clinical
peer or peers may not have been involved in making the initial
adverse determination.

In an expedited review all necessary information, including the
health carrier's decision shall be transmitted between the health
carrier and the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative by telephone, facsimile, or the most expeditious
method available.

a. An_expedited review decision shall be made and the covered

person or the covered person's authorized representative
shall be notified of the decision in accordance with

subsection 8 as expeditiously as the covered person's
medical condition requires, but in no event more than
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seventy-two hours after the receipt of the request for the
expedited review.

=

If the expedited review is of a grievance involving an adverse
determination with respect to a concurrent review urgent
care request, the service shall be continued without liability
to the covered person until the covered person has been
notified of the determination.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a decision
is required to be made under subsection 6, the time period within

which the decision is required to be made shall begin on the date
the request is filed with the health carrier in accordance with the
health carrier's procedures established pursuant to section 26.1-
36.8-04 for filing a request without reqard to whether all of the

information necessary to make the determination accompanies the
filing.

a. A notification of a decision under this section must set forth
in a manner calculated to be understood by the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative:

(1)  The titles and qualifying credentials of the reviewers
participating in the expedited review process;

(2) Information sufficient to identify the claim involved
with respect to the grievance, including the date of
service, the health care provider if applicable, the
claim amount, the diagnosis code and its
corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and
its_ corresponding meaning;

(3) Astatement of the reviewers' understanding of the
covered person's grievance;

{(4) The reviewers' decision in clear terms and the
contract basis or medical rationale in sufficient detail
for the covered person to respond further to the health
carrier's position;

{8) A reference to the evidence or documentation used
as the basis for the decision; and

(6) If the decision involves a final adverse determination
the notice shall provide:
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The specific reasons or reasons for the final
adverse determination, including the denial
code and its corresponding meaning, as well
as a description of the health carrier's
standard, if any, that was used in reaching the
denial;

Reference to the specific plan provisions on
which the determination is based;

A description of any additional material or
information necessary for the covered person
to complete the request, including an
explanation of why the material or information

is necessary to complete the request:

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule,
quideline, protocol, or other similar criterion to
make the adverse determination, either the
specific rule, guideline, protocol, or other
similar criterion or a statement that a specific
rule, guideline, protocol, or other similar
criterion was relied upon to make the adverse
determination and that a copy of the rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion will
be provided free of charge to the covered
person_upon request;

If the final adverse determination is based on a
medical necessity or experimental or
investigational treatment or similar exclusion or
limit, either an explanation of the scientific or
clinical judgment for making the determination,
applying the terms of the health benefit plan to
the covered person's medical circumstances or
a statement that an explanation will be
provided to the covered person free of charge
upon request;

If applicable, instructions for requesting:

[11 A copy of the rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion relied upon in
making the adverse determination in
accordance with subparagraph d; or
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. [21  The written statement of the scientific or
clinical rationale for the adverse
determination in accordance with
subparagraph e;

(@) A statement describing the procedures for
obtaining an independent external review of
the adverse determination pursuant to chapter
26.1-36.6;

(h) A statement indicating the covered person's
right to bring a civil action in a court of
competent jurisdiction;

(i) The following statement: "You and your plan
may have other voluntary alternative dispute
resolution options such as mediation.One way
to find out what may be available is to contact
your state Insurance Commissioner."; and

()] A notice of the covered person's right to
contact the commissioner's office or
ombudsman's office for assistance with respect

. to any claim, grievance, or appeal at any time,
including the telephone number and address of
the commissioner's office or ombudsman's
office.

b. {1} A health carrier shall provide the notice required
under this section in a culturally and linguistically
appropriate manner if required in accordance with
federal requlations.

(2) If ahealth carrier is required to provide the notice
reqguired under this section in a culturally and

linquistically appropriate manner in accordance with
federal requlations, the health carrier shall:

{a) Include a statement in the English version of
the notice, prominently displayed in the non-

English language, offering the provision of the
notice in the non-English lanquage:

(b) Once a utilization review or benefit
determination request has been made by a
covered person, provide all subsequent notices

03



. to the covered person in the non-English
language; and

(¢} To the extent the health carrier maintains a
consumer assistance process, such as a
teiephone hotline that answers questions or
provides assistance with filing claims and
appeals, the health carrier shall provide this
assistance in the non-English language.

A health carrier may provide the notice required under
this section orally, in writing, or electronicaily.

C.

[h]

(2) If notice of the adverse determination is provided
orally, the health carrier shall provide written or
electronic notice of the adverse determination within
three days following the oral notification.

26.1-36.8-07. Rulemaking. The commissioner may adopt rules to carry
out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.8-08. Penalties. The commissioner may assess a penalty against
a health carrier that violates this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars
. for each violation.The fine may be recovered in an action brought in the name of
the state.ln addition to imposing a monetary penalty, the commissioner may also
cancel, revoke, or refuse to renew the certificate of authority of a health carrier
that has violated this chapter.”

The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the legisiative
management for consideration at a special legislative session if the federat government
adopts standards reqarding internal claims and appeals and external review that are
less stringent than the standards contained in this Act.

Renumber accordingly
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March 22, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, replace “two new sections to chapter 26.1-36" with “chapters 26.1-36.6,
26.1-36.7, and 26.1-26.8"

Page 1, line 2, replace “appeals and internal claims and appeals” with “review,
utilization review, and grievance”

Page 1, line 5, after the first semicolon and before “to” insert “and” and replace “for
application; and to declare an” with “a penalty”

Page 1, line 6, remove “emergency”

Page 2, line 30, remove “The insurance commissioner shall take steps”

Page 2, remove line 31

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 9
Page 4, after line 9, insert the following:

“SECTION 4. Chapter 26.1-36.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-01. Definitions. For purposes of this chapter:

26.1-36.6-02. Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.6-03. Notice of right to external review.

26.1-36.6-04. Request for external review.
26.1-36.6-05. Exhaustion of internal grievance process.

26.1-36.6-07. Expedited external feview.




26.1-36.6-08. External review of experimental or investigational
treatment adverse determinations.

26.1-36.6-09. Binding nature of external review decision.

26.1-36.6-10. Approval of independent review organizations.

26.1-36.6-11. Minimum qualifications for independent review
organizations.

26.1-36.6-12. Hold harmless for independent review organizations.No
26.1-36.6-13. External review reporting requirements.

26.1-36.6-14. Funding of external review.
26.

1-36.6-15. Disclosure reguirements.

26.1-36.6-16. Rulemaking.The commissioner may adopt rules to carry
out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.6-17. Confidentiality.Any protected health information that the
commissioner receives pursuant to this chapter is confidential.

SECTION 5. Chapter 26.1-36.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows;

26.1-36.7-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:




a

26.1-36.7-02. Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.7-03. Corporate oversight of utilization review program.
26.1-36.7-04. Contracting.

26.1-36.7-05. Scope and content of utilization review program.

26.1-36.7-06.

Operational requirements.

26.1-36.7-07.

Procedures for standard utilization review and benefit

determinations.

26.1-36.7-08.

Procedures for expedited utilization review and benefit

determinations.

26.1-36.7-09.

Emergency services.

26.1-36.7-10.

Confidentiality requirements. 26.1-36.7-11. Disclosure

requirements.

26.1-36.7-12.

Rules.

26.1-36.7-13.

Penalties.

SECTION 6.
26.1-36.8-01

. Definitions. As used in this chapter:

26.1-36.8-02.

Applicability and scope.

26.1-36.8-03.

Grievance reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

26.1-36.8-04.

Grievance review procedures.

26.1-36.8-05.

First-level reviews of grievances involving an adverse

determination.




26.1-36.8-06. Expedited reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.

26.1-36.8-07. Rulemaking. The commissioner may adopt rules to carry
out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.8-08. Penalties. The commissioner may assess a penalty against
a health carrier that violates this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars
for each violation.The fine may be recovered in an action brought in the name of
the state.ln addition to imposing a monetary penalty, the commissioner may also
cancel. revoke. or refuse to renew the certificate of authority of a health carrier
that has violated this chapter.”

The commissioner shall submit proposed legislation to the legislative
management for consideration at a special legislative session if the federal government

adopts standards regarding internal claims and appeals and external review that are

less stringent than the standards contained in this Act.

Renumber accordingly



Mathern, Tim :,tl’g

Hauer, Melissa A.
Wednesday, March 23, 2011 8:45 AM

i0: . Mathern, Tim; Clark, Jennifer S.
Cc: Hamm, Adam W.: Ternes, Rebecca L.; Fix, Michael L.
Subject: : RE: HB 1127 Amendments

Good morning Senator Mathern,
Our proposed amendment would restore HB 1127 to its form as introduced, with the following changes:

1. It keeps the change in the engrossed bill on page 1, line 21 that allows grandfathered plans to use these appeal
processes if they choose to do so.

2. It removes the entire section {26.1-36.8-07) that required insurers to give a voluntary level of review of
grievances and it removes any cross references to this section.

3. It removes the requirement that was in 26.1-36.8-03(3) and {6) which required an insurer to keep certain
records regarding voluntary reviews.

4. It removes the entire section (26.1-36.8-06) that required insurers to establish written procedures for a standard

review of a grievance that does not involve an adverse determination and it removes any cross references to
this section.

| hope th@dﬂeipful I will be at the Committee meeting this morning at 9:00.

iilissa
m: Mathern, Tim

Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2011 7:24 AM

To: Hauer, Melissa A.; Clark, Jennifer S.

Cc: Hamm, Adam W.; Ternes, Rebecca L.; Fix, Michael L.
Subject: RE: HB 1127 Amendments

Thanks Melissa. Something in narrative form like your email below would be helpful to me. if you could get to
me by email by 8:45 that would be great. Thanks.

Senator Tim Mathern

From: Hauer, Melissa A.
Sent: Tuesday, March 22, 2011 7:42 PM
To: Clark, Jennifer S.

Cc: Mathern, Tim; Hamm, Adam W.; Ternes, Rebecca L.; Fix, Michael L,
Subject: RE: HB 1127 Amendments

Jenn,

| am at home right now and | don't have access to our computer network so | can't look at the
documents that detail the amendments. Off the top of my head, the amendments remove the
portion of the bill that required a voluntary level of review. They aliow grandfathered plans to

. use the new appeal process if they choose to. And they remove the portion of the bill that
dealt with appeals not involving adverse determinations. The rest of the amendments
renumber remaining sections due to these two portions being taken out.
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(b) Have a financial interest in the outcome of the review.

With respect to a voluntary review of a standard review decision

made pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-06, a_heaith carrier shall
appoint a review panel to review the request.

The panel shall have the legal authority to bind the health carrier
to the panel's decision.

Except as provided in paragraph 2, a majority of the panel shall
be comprised of employees or representatives of the health
carrier who were not involved in the standard review decision

made pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-06.

An employee or representative of the health carrier who was
involved with the standard review decision may be a member of
the panel or appear before the panel {0 present information or
answer questions.

Whenever a covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative requests within the timeframe specified in
paragraph 1 of subdivision ¢ of subsection 2 the opportunity to
appear in person before the review panel appointed pursuant to
subsection 3 or 4. the procedures for conducting the review shail

include the provisions described in this paragraph.

(@) The review panel shall schedule and hold a review

meeting within forty-five working days after the date of
receipt of the request.

(b) The covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative shall be notified in writing at least fiteen

working days in advance of the date of the review
meeting.

(€) The health carrier shall not unreasonably deny a request
for postponement of the review made by the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative.

The review meeting shall be heid during regular business hours
at a location reasonably accessible to the covered person or the

covered person's authorized representative.

In cases in which a face-to-face meeting is not practical for
geographic reasons, a health carrier shall offer the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative the
opportunity to communicate with the review panel, at the heaith
carrier's expense, by conference call,_videoconferencing, or
other appropriate technology. '

If the health carrier desires to have an attorney present to
represent the interests of the health carrier, the health carrier
shall notify the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative at least fifteen working days in
advance of the date of the review meeting that an attorney will
be present and that the covered person may wish to obtain legal
representation of the covered person's own.
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(6) The review panel shall issue a written decision, as provided in
subsection 6, to the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative within five working days of completing
the review meeting.

Whenever the covered person or the covered person’s authorized
representative does not request the opportunity to appear in person
before the review panel within the specified timeframe provided under
paragraph 1 of subdivision ¢ of subsection 2, the review panel shall
issue a decision and notify the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative of the decision, as provided in

subsection 6. in writing or electronically, within forty-five working days
after the earlier of:

(1) The date the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative notifies the health carrier of the covered person's
decision not to request the opportunity to appear in person
hefore the review panel; or

{2) The date on which the covered person's or the covered person's
authorized representative's opportunity to request to appear in
person before the review panel expires pursuant to paragraph 1
of subdivision ¢ of subsection 2.

(3) For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a
decision is required to be made and notice provided under
subdivisions a and b, the time period shall begin on the date the
request for an additional voluntary review is filed with the health
carrier in accordance with the health carrier's procedures
established pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-04 for filing a request

without regard to whether all of the information necessary to
make the determination accompanies the filing.

A decision issued pursuant to subsection 5 shall include:

a

=

o
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The titles and qualifying credentials_of the members of the review
panel;

A statement of the review panel's understanding of the nature of the
grievance and all pertinent facts;

The rationaie for the review panel's decision;

A reference to evidence_or documentation considered by the review
panel in making that decision;

In cases concerning a grievance involving an adverse determination:

(1) The instructions for requesting a written statement of the clinical

rationale, inciuding the clinical review criteria used to make the
determination; and

{2) If applicable. a statement describing the procedures for
obtaining an independent external review of the adverse
determination pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.6; and

Notice of the coverad person's right to contact the commissioner's
office or ombudsman's office for assistance with respect to any claim
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grievance, or appeal at any time, including the telephone number and
address of the commissioner's office or ombudsman's office.

. 26.1-36.8-08. Expedited reviews of grievances involving an adverse
determination.

1

2.

oo

>

jon

o

|~

oo

A health carrier shall establish written procedures for the expedited review
of urgent care requests of grievances involving an adverse determination.

In addition to subsection 1, a health carrier shall provide expedited review
of a grievance involving an adverse determination with respect to
concurrent review urgent care requests involving an admission, availability
of care, continued stay, or health care service for a covered person who
has received emergency services but has not been discharged from_a

facility,

The procedures shall allow a covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative to request an expedited review under this
section orally or in writing.

A health carrier shall appoint an appropriate clinical peer or peers in the
same or similar specialty as would typically manage the case being
reviewed to review the adverse determination. The clinical peer or peers

may not have been involved in making the initial adverse determination.

In_an expedited review all necessary information. including the health
carrier's decision shall be transmitted between the health carrier and the
covered person or the covered person's authorized representative by
telephone, facsimile, or the most expeditious method available.

a. An expedited review decision shall be made and the covered person

. or the covered person's authorized representative shall be notified of

the decision in accordance with subsection 8 as expeditiously as the
covered person's medical condition requires, but in no event more

than seventy-two hours after the receipt of the request for the
expedited review.

=3

If the expedited review is of a grievance involving an adverse
determination with respect to a concurrent review urgent care request,
the service shail be continued without liability to the covered person
until the covered person has been notified of the determination.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a decision is
required to be made under subsection 6, the time period within which the
decision is required to be made shall begin on the date the request is filed
with the health carrier in accordance with the health carrier's procedures
established pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-04 for filing a request without

regard to whether all of the information necessary to make the
determination accompanies_the filing.

a. Anotification of a decision under this section must set forth in a
manner calculated to be understood by the covered person_orthe
covered person's authorized representative:

{1} The titles and qualifying credentials of the reviewers
participating in the expedited review process:
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information sufficient to identify the claim involved with respect
to the grievance, including the date of service, the health care

provider if applicable, the claim amount, the diagnosis code and
its_corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and its
corresponding meaning;

A statement of the reviewers' understanding of the covered
person's grievance;

The reviewers' decision in clear terms and the contract basis or
medical rationale in sufficient detail for the covered person to

respond further to the health carrier's position;

A reference to the evidence or documentation used as the basis
for the decision; and

If the decision involves a final adverse determination, the notice
shall provide:

{a} The specific reasons or reasons for the final adverse
determination, including the denial code and its
corresponding meaning, as well as a description of the
health carrier's standard, if any, that was used in reaching
the denial;

() Reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is based;

(¢) Adescription of any additional material or information
necessary for the covered person to complete the request,
including an explanation of why the materiat or information
is necessary to complete the request;

(d) If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule, guideline,
protocol, or other similar criterion to make the adverse
determination, either the specific rule, guideline, protocol,
ot other similar criterion or a statement that a specific rule,
guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion was relied
upon to make the adverse determination and that a copy
of the rule, guideline, protocol.or other similar criterion will
be provided free of charge to the covered persgn upon
request;

(e) If the final adverse determination is based on a medical
necessity or experimental or investigational treatment or
similar exclusion or limit. either an expianation of the
scientific or clinical judgment for making the determination,
applying the terms of the heaith benefit plan to the
covered person's medical circumstances or a statement
that an éxplanation will be provided to the covered person
free of charge upon request;

(f) If applicable, instructions for requesting:

[11 Acopy of the rule, quideline, protocol, or other
similar criterion relied upon in_making the adverse

determination in accordance with subparagraph d: or
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[2] The written statement of the scientific or clinical
rationale for the adverse determination in
. accordance with subparagraph e;

(g) A statement describing the procedures for obtaining an
independent external review of the adverse determination

pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.6;

(h} A statement indicating the covered person's right to bring a
civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction:;

() The following statement: "You and your plan may have

other voluntary alternative dispute resolution options such
as_mediation. One way to find out what may be available
is to contact your state Insurance Commissioner.": and

(i) Anotice of the covered person's right to contact the
commissioner's office or ombhudsman's office for

assistance with respect to any claim, grievance, or appeal

at any time, including the telephone number and address
of the commissioner's office or ombudsman's office,

b. (1) Ahealth carrier shall provide the notice required undér this

section in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner if
required in accordance with federal regulations.

(2) If a health carrier is required to provide the notice required under
. this section in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner

in accordance with federal regulations, the health carrier shall:

(@) Include a statement in the English version of the notice,
prominently displayed in the non-English language.,
offering the provision of the notice in the non-English
language;

(b) Once a utilization review or benefit determination request
has been made by a covered person, provide all
subsequent notices to the covered person in the non-
English language; and

(c) Tothe extent the health carrier maintains a consumer
assistance process, such as a telephone hotline that
answers guestions or provides assjstance with filing
claims and appeals, the health carrier shall provide this
assistance in the non-English language.

C.

A health carrier may provide the notice required under this
section orally, in writing, or electronically.

)
(2) I notice of the adverse determination is provided orally, the
health carrier shall provide written or electronic notice of the

adverse determination within three days following the oral
notification.

. 26.1-36.8-09. Rulemaking,

The commissioner may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this chapter.
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26.1-36.8-10. Penalties.

. The commissioner may assess a penalty against a health carrier that violates
this chapter of not more than ten thousand dollars for each violation. The fine may be

recovered in an action brought in the name of the state. In addition to imposing a
monetary penalty, the commissioner may also cancel, revoke, or refuse to renew the

certificate of authority of a health carrier that has violated this chapter.”

Renumber accordingly
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March 22, 2011
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1127

Page 1, line 1, replace “two new sections to chapter 26.1-36" with “chapters 26.1-36.6,
26.1-36.7, and 26.1-26.8"

Page 1, line 2, replace “appeals and internal claims and appeals” with “review,
utilization review, and grievance”

Page 1, line 5, after the first semicolon and before “to” insert “and” and replace “for
application; and to declare an” with “a penalty”

Page 1, line 6, remove “emergency”

Page 2, line 30, remove “The insurance commissioner shall take steps”

Page 2, remove line 31

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 8
Page 4, after line 9, insert the following:

“SECTION 4. Chapter 26.1-36.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-01. Definitions. For purposes of this chapter:

1. "Adverse determination” means:

a. A determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization that, based upon the information
provided, a request for a benefit under the health carrier's
health benefit plan upon application of any utilization review
technique does not meet the health carrier's requirements for
medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level
of care or effectiveness or is determined to be experimental
or investigational and the requested benefit is therefore
denied, reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or
made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;




The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a
determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization of a covered person's eligibility to
participate in the health carrier's health benefit plan:;

=2

C. Any prospective review or retrospective review determination
that denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit: or

d. A rescission of coverage determination.

2. "Ambulatory review" means utilization review of health care
services performed or provided in an outpatient setting.
3. "Authorized representative"” means:

a. A person to whom a covered person has given express
written consent to represent the covered person in an
external review;

=

A person authorized by law to provide substituted consent

. for a covered person; or

A family member of the covered person or the covered
person's treating health care professional only when the
covered person is unable to provide consent.

13

b

"Best evidence" means evidence based on:

Randomized clinical trials:

|

=

If randomized clinical trials are not available, cohort studies
or case-control studies;

If subdivisions a and b are not available, case-series; or

[©

d. If subdivisions a, b, and ¢ are not available, expert opinion.

|

"Case-control study" means a retrospective evaluation of two
groups of patients with different outcomes to determine which
specific interventions the patients received.

‘Case management” means a coordinated set of activities

conducted for individual patient management of serious,
complicated, protracted. or other health conditions.

|




[~

joo

|<©

"Case-series” means an evaluation of a series of patients with a
particular outcome without the use of a control group.

'Certification" means a determination by a health carrier or its
designee utilization review organization that an admission,

availability of care, continued stay, or other health care service has
been reviewed and based on the information provided satisfies the
health carrier's requirements for medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care setting, level of care, and
effectiveness.

"Clinical review criteria" means the written screening procedures,
decision abstracts, clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used
by a health carrier to determine the necessity and appropriateness
of health care services.

"Cohortt study" means a prospective evaluation of two groups of
patients with only one group of patients receiving specific
interventions.

"Commissioner’ means the insurance commissioner.\

"Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a
patient's hospital stay or course of treatment.

"Covered benefits” or "benefits” means those health care services
to which a covered person is entitled under the terms of a health

benefit plan.

"Covered person" means a policvhoider, subscriber, enrollee,or
other individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge pianning" means the formal process for determining
prior to discharge from a facility the coordination and management
of the care that a patient receives following discharge from a

facility.

"Disclose" means to release, transfer, or otherwise divulge
protected health information to any person other than the individual
who is the subject of the protected health information.

"Emergency medical condition” means the sudden and, at the time,
unexpected onset of a health condition or illness that requires
immediate medical attention if failure to provide medical attention
would result in a serious impairment to bodily functions, serious




dysfunction of a bodily organ or part, or would place the person's
health in serious jeopardy.

"Emergency services" means health care items and services
furnished or required to evaluate and treat an emergency medical
condition,

"Evidence-based standard" means the conscientious, explicit, and
judicious use of the current best evidence based on the overali

systematic review of the research in making decisions about the
care of individual patients.

"Expert opinion" means a belief or an interpretation by specialists
with experience in a specific area about the scientific evidence
pertaining to a particular service, intervention, or therapy.

"Facility" means an institution providing health care services or a
health care setting, including hospitals and other licensed inpatient
centers, ambulatory surgical or treatment centers, skilled nursing
centers, residential tfreatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and
imaging centers, and rehabilitation and other therapeutic health

settings.

"Final adverse determination" means an adverse determination
involving a covered benefit that has been upheld by a health carrier
or its designee utilization review organization at the completion of

the health carrier's internal grievance process procedures as set
forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

"Health benefit plan" means a policy, contract, certificate, or

agreement offered or issued by a health carrier to provide, deliver,

arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care
services.

"Health care professional' means a physician or other health care

practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified
health care services consistent with state law.

"Health care provider" or "provider" means a health care
professional or a facility.

"Health care services" means services for the diagnosis,

prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, illness,
injury, or disease.




"Health carrier'' means an entity subject to the insurance laws and

regulations of this state or subject to the jurisdiction of the

commissioner that contracts or offers to contract to provide, deliver,

arrange for,_pay for_or reimburse any of the costs of health care

services, including a sickness and accident insurance company, a

health maintenance organization, a nonprofit hospital and health

service corporation, or any other entity providing a plan of health

insurance, health benefits, or health care services.

"Health information" means information or data whether oral or

recorded in any form or medium and personal facts or information

about events or relationships that relates to:

a.

b.

c.

The past, present, or future physical, mental, or behavioral
health or condition of an individual or a member of the
individual's family;

The provision of health care services to an individual: or

Payment for the provision of health care services to an
individual.

"Independent review organization” means an entity that conducts

independent external reviews of adverse determinations and final
adverse determinations.

"Medical or scientific evidence" means evidence found in the

following sources:

a.

=
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Peer-reviewed scientific studies published in or accepted for
publication by medical journals that meet nationally
recognized requirements for scientific manuscripts and that
submit most of their published articles for review by experts
who are not part of the editorial staff;

Peer-reviewed medical literature, including literature relating
to therapies reviewed and approved by a qualified
institutional review board, biomedical compendia, and other
medical literature that meet the criteria of the national
institutes of health's library of medicine for indexing in index
medicus (MEDLINE) and elsevier science Itd.for indexing in
excerpta medicus (EMBASE);

Medical journals recognized by the secretary of heaith and
human services under section 1861(t)}(2) of the Social

Security Act;
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The following standard reference compendia:

1

(2)
3)

4
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The American hospital formulary service-drug
information;

Drug facts and comparisons;

The American dental association accepted dental
therapeutics; and

The United States pharmacopoeia-drug information;

Findings, studies, or research conducted by or under the

auspices of federal government agencies and nationally

recognized federal research institutes, including:

(1
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The federal agency for health care research and
quality:

The national institutes of health;

The national cancer institute;

The national academy of sciences;

The centers for medicare and medicaid services;

The federal food and drug administration; and

Any national board recognized by the national
institutes of health for the purpose of evaluating the
medical value of health care services; or

Any other medical or scientific evidence that is comparable

to the sources listed in subdivisions a through e.

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an

association, a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an

unincorporated organization, any similar_entity, or any combination
of the foreqoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an

admission or a course of treatment.

"Protected health information” means health information:




a. That identifies an individual who is the subject of the
information; or
b. With respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe

that the information could be used to identify an individual.

"Randomized clinical trial” means a controlled, prospective study of
patients that have been randomized into an experimental group and
a control group at the beginning of the study with only the
experimental group of patients receiving a specific intervention
which includes study of the groups for variables and anticipated
outcomes over time.

"Retrospective review" means a_review of medical necessity
conducted after services have been provided to a patient but does

not include the review of a claim that is limited to an evaluation of
reimbursement levels, veracity of documentation, accuracy of
coding, or adjudication for payment.

"Second opinion" means an opportunity or requirement to obtain a
clinical evaluation by a provider other than the one originally
making a recommendation for a proposed health care service to
assess the clinical necessity and appropriateness of the initial
proposed health care service.

"Utilization review" means a set of formal technigues designed to
monitor the use of, or evaluate the clinical necessity,
appropriateness, efficacy, or efficiency of _health care services,
procedures, or settings.Techniques may include ambulatory review,

prospective review, second opinion, certification, concurrent review,
case management, discharge planning, or retrospective review.

"Utilization review organization" means an entity that conducts
utilization review other than a health carrier performing a review for
its own health benefit plans.

26.1-36.6-02. Applicability and scope.

L

Except as provided in subsection 2, this chapter applies to all
nongrandfathered health benefit plans."Nongrandfathered health
benefit plan” means a health benefit plan that is not exempt from
the requirements of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act
[Pub.L.111-148] and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation
Act of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152] because it failed to achieve or lost
grandfathered health plan status."Grandfathered health plan" has
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the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act [Pub.L.111-148], as amended by the Health Care and
Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152].

The provisions of this chapter do not apply to a policy or certificate
that provides coverage only for a specified disease, specified
accident or accident-only coverage, credit, dental, disability income,
hospital indemnity, long-term care insurance, vision care or any
other limited supplemental benefit, a medicare supplement policy of
insurance, coverage under a plan through medicare, medicaid, or
the federal employees heaith benefits program, any coverage
issued under chapter 55 of title 10, United States Code, and any
coverage issued as supplement to that coverage, any coverage
issued as supplemental to liability insurance, workers'
compensation or similar insurance, automobile medical-payment
insurance, or any insurance under which benefits are payable with
or without reqard to fault, whether written on a group blanket or
individual basis.

26.1-36.6-03. Notice of right to external review.

1.

a. A health carrier shall notify a covered person in writing of the
covered person's right to request an external review to be
conducted pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-06, 26.1-36.6-07_or
26.1-36.6-08 and include the appropriate statements and
information set forth in subdivision b at the same time the
health carrier sends written notice of:

(1) An adverse determination upon completion of the
health carrier's utilization review process set forth in
chapter 26.1-36.7; and

{2) Afinal adverse determination.

=

As part of the written notice required under subdivision a, a
health carrier shall include the following or substantially
equivalent language: "We have denied your request for the
provision of or payment for a health care service or course of
treatment.You may have the right to have our decision
reviewed by health care professionals who have no

association with us if our decision involved making a

judgment as to the medical necessity, appropriateness,
health care setting, level of care, or effectiveness of the

health care service or treatment you requested by submitting
a request for external review to the North Dakota Insurance
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Commissioner, 600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol,
Bismarck, ND 58505."

The commissioner may prescribe the form and content of the

notice required under this section.

The health carrier shall include in the notice required under

subsection 1:

(1)  For a notice related to an adverse determination, a

statement informing the covered person that:

(a)

If the covered person has a medical condition

and the timeframe for completion of an
expedited review of a grievance involving an
adverse determination set forth in section 26.1-
36.8-06 would seriously jeopardize the life or
health of the covered person or would
jeopardize the covered person's ability to
regain maximum function, the covered person
or the covered person's authorized
representative may file a request for an
expedited external review to be conducted
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-07 or 26.1-36.6-
08 if the adverse determination involves a
denial of coverage based on a determination
that the recommended or requested health
care service or treatment is experimental or
investigational and the covered person's
treating physician certifies in writing that the
recommended or requested health care service
or treatment that is the subject of the adverse
determination would be significantly less
effective if not promptly initiated, at the same
time the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative files a
request for an expedited review of a grievance
involving an adverse determination as set forth
in_section 26.1-36.8-08, but that the
independent review organization assigned to
conduct the expedited external review will
determine whether the covered person shall be
required to complete the expedited review of
the grievance prior to conducting the expedited
external review; and




{b} The covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative may file a grievance

under the health carrier's internal grievance
process as set forth in section 26.1-36.8-05,
but if the health carrier has not issued a written
decision to the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative within thirty
days following the date the covered person or
the covered person's authorized representative
files the grievance with the health carrier and
the covered person or the covered person’s
authorized representative has not requested or
agreed to a delay, the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative
may file a request for external review pursuant
to section 26.1-36.6-04 and shall be
considered to have exhausted the health
carrier's internal grievance process for
purposes of section 26.1-36.6-05: and

(2) For a ngtice related to a final adverse determination, a
statement informing the covered person that:

(@) If the covered person has a medical condition
and the timeframe for completion of a standard
external review pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-
06 would seriously jeopardize the life or health
of the covered person or would jeopardize the
covered person's ability to regain maximum
function, the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may file a
request for an expedited external review
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-07; or

(b) Ifthe final adverse determination concerns:

[11  An admission, availability of care,
continued stay or health care service for
which the covered person received
emergency services, but has not been
discharged from a facility, the covered
person or the covered person's
authorized representative may request

an expedited external review pursuant
to section 26.1-36.6-07; or

10
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Consulting reports from appropriate health care professionals and
other documents submitted by the health carrier, covered person, the

covered person's authorized representative, or the covered person's
treating provider;

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health benefit plan
with the health carrier to ensure that the independent review
organization’s decision is not contrary to the terms of coverage under
the covered person's health benefit plan with the health carrier:

The most appropriate practice guidelines. which shall include
gvidence-based standards, and may include any other practice
guidelines developed by the federal government, national or
professional medical societies, boards. and associations:

Any applicable clinical review criteria developed and used by the
health carrier or its designee utilization review organization in making

adverse determinations: and

The opinion of the independent review organization's clinical reviewer

or reviewers after considering subdivisions a through f to the extent
the information and documents are available and the clinical reviewer

or reviewers consider appropriate.

As expeditiously as the covered person's medical condition or
circumstances requires, but in no event more than seventy-two hours
after the date of receipt of the request for an expedited external review
that meets the reviewability requirements set forth in section 26.1-
36.6-06. the assigned independent review organization shall:

{1) Make a decision to uphold or reverse the adverse determination
or final adverse determination; and

{2) Notify the covered person and the covered person's authorized

representative, the health carrier_and the commissioner of the
decision.

If the notice provided pursuant to subdivision a was not in writing,
within forty-eight hours after the date of providing that notice, the
assigned independent review organization shall:

(1) Provide written confirmation of the decision to the covered

person, if applicable, the covered person's authorized
representative the heaith carrier, and the commissioner: and

(2) Include the information set forth in subdivision b of subsection 9
of section 26.1-36.6-06.

Upon receipt of the notice of a decision pursuant to paragraph 1
reversing the adverse determination or final adverse determination,

the health carrier immediately shall approve the coverage that was the
subject of the adverse determination or final adverse determination.

An expedited external review may not be provided for retrospective
adverse or final adverse determinations.

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent review
organization to conduct an external review in accordance with this section
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shall be done on a random basis among those approved independent
. review organizations gualified to conduct the particular external review

based on the nature of the health care service that is the subject of the
adverse determination or final adverse determination and other

circumstances. including conflict of interest concerns pursuant to
subsection 4 of section 26.1-36.6-11.

26.1-36.6-08. External review of experimental or investigational treatment
adverse determinations. :

1. a. Within four months after the date of receipt of a notice of an adverse
determination or final adverse determination pursuant to section 26.1-
36.6-03 that involves a denial of coverage based on a determination
that the health care service or treatment recommended or requested
is experimental or investigational, a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative may file a request for external
review with the commissioner

o

(1) A covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative may make an oral request for an expedited
external review of the adverse determination or final adverse
determination pursuant to subdivision a if the covered person's
treating physician certifies, in writing, that the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment that is the subject of

the request would be significantly less effective if not promptly
initiated.

. (2) Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external review, the
commissioner immediately shall notify the health carrier.

(3} (@ Upon notice of the request for expedited external review,
the health carrier immediately shall determine whether the
request meets the reviewability requirements of
subsection 2. The health carrier shall immediately notify
the commissioner and the covered person and the

covered person's authorized representative of its eligibility
determination.

(b) The commissioner may specify the form for the health
carrier's notice of initial determination under subparagraph

a and_any supporting information to be included in the
notice.

{¢) The notice of initial determination under subparagraph a
‘ shall include a statement informing the covered person
and the covered person's authorized representative that a
health carrier's initial determination that the external

review request is ineligible for review may be appealed to
the commissioner.

(4) (a) The commissioner may determine that a request is eligtble
for external review under subdivision b of subsection 2
notwithstanding a health carrier's initial determination the

request is ineligible and require that it be referred for
axternal review.
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(b) In making a determination under subparagraph a, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in_accordance with
the terms of the covered person's health benefit plan and
shall be subject to all applicabie provisions of this chapter.

Upon receipt of the notice that the expedited external review
request meets the reviewability requirements of subdivision b of
subsection 2. the commissioner immediately shall assign an
independent review organization to review the expedited request
from the list of approved independent review organizations
compiled and maintained by the commissioner pursuant to
section 26.1-36.6-10 and notify the health carrier of the name of

the assigned independent review organization.

At the time the health carrier receives the notice of the assigned
independent review organization pursuant to paragraph 5, the
health carrier or its designee utilization review organization shall
provide or transmit all necessary documents and information
considered in making the adverse determination or final adverse
determination to the assigned independent review organization
electronically or by telephone or facsimile or any other avaiiable
expeditious method.

Except for a request for an expedited external review made pursuant

to subdivision b of subsection 1, within one business day after the
date of receipt of the request, the commissioner receives a request for

an external review, the commissioner shall notify the health carrier.

Within five business days following the date of receipt of the notice
sent pursuant to subdivision a, the health carrier shall conduct and

complete a preliminary review of the request to determine whether:

(6]

The individual is or was a covered person in the health benefit
plan at the time the health care service or treatment was
recommended or requested or, in the case of a retrospective

review, was a covered person in the health benefit plan at the
time_the health care service or treatment was provided:

The recommended or requested health care service or
treatment that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination;

(a) Is a covered benefit under the covered person's health
benefit plan except for the health carrier's determination
that the service or treatment is experimentat or
investigational for a particular medical condition. and

(b) s not explicitly listed as an excluded benefit under the
covered person's heaith benefit plan with the health
carrier;

The covered person's treating physician has certified that one of
the following situations is applicabie:

{a) Standard health care services or treatments have not

been effective in improving the condition of the covered
person;
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(4)

{b) Standard heaith care services or treatments are not
medically appropriate for the covered person; or

{€) There is no available standard health care service or
treatment covered by the health carrier that is more
beneficial than the recommended or requested health care
service or treatment described in paragraph 4;

The covered person's treating physician:

(a) Has recommended a health care service or treatment that
the physician certifies, in writing, is likely to be more
beneficial to the covered person, in the physician's
opinion, than any available standard health care services
or treatments:; or

(b) Whe is alicensed, board-cedtified or board-eligible
physician gualified to practice in the area of medicine
appropriate to treat the covered person's condition, has
certified in writing that scientifically valid studies using
accepted protocols demonstrate that the health care
service or treatment requested by the covered person that
is the subject of the adverse determination or final adverse
determination is likely to be more beneficial to the covered
person than any available standard health care services or
treatments;

The covered person has exhausted the health carrier's internal
grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8 unless the
covered person is not required to exhaust the heaith carrier's
internal grievance process pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-05; and

The covered person has provided all the information and forms
reguired by the commissioner that are necessary to process an
external review, including the release form provided under
subsection 2 of section 26.1-36.6-03.

Within one business day after completion of the preliminary review,

the health carrier shall notify the commissioner and the covered

person and the covered person's authorized representative in writing
whether:

)
(2)

The reguest is complete: and

The request is eligible for external review.

If the request;

1)

@

Is not complete, the health carrier shall inform in writing the
commissioner and the covered person and the covered person's
authorized representative and include in the notice what
information or materials are needed to make the request
complete; or

ls not eligible for external review, the health carrier shall inform
the covered person, the covered person's authorized
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representative, and the commissioner in writing_and include in
the notice the reasons for its ineligibility.

{1) The commissioner may specify the form for the health carrier's

notice of initial determination under subdivision b and any
supporting information to be included in the notice.

{2) The notice of initial determination provided under subdivision b

shall include_a statement informing the covered person and the
covered person's authorized representative that a health

carrier's initial determination that the external review request is
ineligible for review may be appealed to the commissioner.

(1) The commissioner may determine that a request is eligible for
gxternal review under subdivision b of subsection 2
notwithstanding a health carrier's initial determination that the

request is ineligible and require that it be referred for external
review.

(2} Inmaking a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in accordance with the
terms_of the covered person's health benefit plan and shall be
subject to all applicable provisions of this chapter.

Whenever a request for external review is determined eligible for
external review, the health carrier shall notify the commissioner and
the covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative.

Within one business day after the receipt of the notice from the health

carrier that the external review request is eligible for external review
pursuant to paragraph 4 of subdivision b of subsection 1 or

subdivision e of subsection 3, the commissioner shall:

(1) Assign an independent review organization to conduct the
external review from the list of approved independent review
organizations compiled and maintained by the commissioner
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10 and notify the health carrier of

the name of the assigned independent review organization: and

(2) Notify in writing the covered person and the covered person's
authorized representative of the request's eligibility and
acceptance for external review.

The commissioner shall include in the notice provided to the covered
person and the covered person's authorized representative a
statement that the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may submit in writing to the assigned independent
review organization within five business days following the date of
receipt of the notice provided pursuant to subdivision a additional
information that the independent review organization shall consider
when conducting the external review. The independent review

organization is not required to. but may. accept and consider
additional information submitted after five business days.
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Within one business day after the receipt of the_notice_of assignment
fo conduct the external review pursuant to subdivision a, the assigned
independent review organization shall:

(1) Select one or more clinical reviewers, as it determines is

appropriate, pursuant to subdivision d to conduct the external
review; and

{2) Based on the opinion of the clinical reviewer, or opinions if more
than one clinical reviewer has been selected to conduct the
external review, make a decision to uphold or reverse the
adverse determination or final adverse determination.

(1) In selecting clinical reviewers pursuant to paragraph 1 of
subdivision ¢, the assigned independent review organization
shall select physicians or other health care professionals who
meet the minimum qualifications described in section
26.1-36.6-11 and, through clinical experience in the past three
years, are experts in the treatment of the covered person's

condition and knowledgeable about the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment.

{(2) Neither the covered person, the covered person's authorized
representative, nor the health carrier may choose or control the
choice of the physicians or other health care professionals to be
selected to conduct the external review.

In accordance with subsection 8. each clinical reviewer shali provide a
written opinion to the assigned independent review organization on
whether the recommended or requested health care service or
treatment should be covered.

In reaching an opinion. clinical reviewers are not bound by any
decisions or conclusions reached during the health carrier's utilization
review process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.7 or the health carrier's
internal grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

- Within five business days after the date of receipt of the notice

provided pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 4. the health carrier
or its designee utilization review organization shall provide to the
assigned independent review organization the documents and any

information considered in making the adverse determination or the
final adverse determination.

Except as provided in subdivision ¢, failure by the heaith carrier or its
designee utilization review organization to provide the documents and

information within the time specified in subdivision a shall not delay
the conduct of the external review.

(1) I the health carrier or its designee utilization review organization
has failed to provide the documents and information within the
time specified in subdivision a, the assigned independent review
organization may terminate the external review and make a
decision to reverse the adverse determination or final adverse
determination.
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(2) Immediately upon making the decision under paragraph 1, the
independent review organization shall notify the covered person,
the covered person's authorized representative, if applicabie,

the health carrier, and the commissioner.

Each clinical reviewer selected pursuant 1o subsection 4 shall review
all of the information and documents received pursuant to subsection

5 and any other information submitted in writing by the covered

person or the covered person's authorized representative pursuant to
subdivision b of subsection 4.

Upon receipt of any information submitted by the covered person or

the covered person's authorized representative pursuant to
subdivision b of subsection 4, within one business day after the

receipt of the information, the assigned independent review
organization shall forward the information to the health carrier.

Upon receipt of the information required to be forwarded pursuant to

subdivision b of subsection 6, the health carrier may reconsider its
adverse determination or final adverse determination that is the

subject of the external review.

Reconsideration by the health carrier of its adverse determination or

final adverse determination pursuant to subdivision a shall not delay
or terminate the external review.

The external review may be terminated only if the health carrier
decides, upon completion of its reconsideration, to reverse its adverse
determination or final adverse determination and provide coverage or
payment for the recommended or requested heaith care service or

treatment that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination.

(1) |mmediately upon making the decision to reverse its adverse
determination or final adverse determination, as provided in
subdivision c. the health carrier shall notify the covered person,
the covered person's authorized representative, the assigned
independent review organization, and the commissioner in
writing of its decision.

{2) The assigned independent review organization shall terminate
the external review upon receipt of the notice from the health
carrier sent pursuant to paragraph 1.

Except as provided in subdivision c, within twenty days after being

selected in accordance with subsection 4 to conduct the external
review, each clinical reviewer shall provide an opinion to the assigned
independent review organization pursuant to subsection 9 on whether
the recommended or requested health care service or treatment
should be covered.

Except for an opinion provided pursuant to subdivision ¢, each clinical
reviewer's opinion shall be in writing and include the following

information:

(1) Adescription of the covered person's medical condition;
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{2) A description of the indicators relevant to determining whether
there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the

recommended or requested health care service or treatment is
more likely than not to be beneficial to the covered person than
any available standard health care services or treatments and
the adverse risks of the recommended or requested health care
service or treatment would not be substantially increased over
those of available standard heaith care services or treatments:

{3) Adescription and analysis of any medical or scientific evidence
as that term is defined in subsection 30 of section 26.1-36.6-01,
considered in reaching the opinion:

(4) A description and analysis of any evidence-based standard, as
that term is defined in subsection 19 of section 26.1-36.6-01;
and

(5) Information on whether the reviewer's rationale for the opinion is
based on paragraph 1 or 2 of subdivision e of subsection 9.

(1) For an expedited external review, each clinical reviewer shall
provide an opinion orally or in writing to the assigned
independent review organization as expeditiously as the
covered person's medical condition or circumstances requires,
but in no event more than five calendar days after being
selected in accordance with subsection 4.

(2) If the opinion provided pursuant to paragraph 1 was not in
writing, within forty-eight hours following the date the opinion
was provided, the clinical reviewer shall provide written
confirmation of the opinion to the assigned independent review
organization and include the information required under
subdivision b.

In_addition to the documents and information provided pursuant to

subsection 1 or 5, each clinical reviewer selected pursuant to subsection 4,

to the extent the information or documents are available and the reviewer

considers appropriate, shall consider the following in reaching an opinion

pursuant to subsection 8:

|

b.
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The covered person's pertinent medical records:

The attending physician or health care professional's
recommendation:

Consulting reports from appropriate health care professionals and
other documents submitted by the health carrier, covered person, the
covered person's authorized representative, or the covered person's
treating physician or health care professional;

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health benefit ptan
with the health carrier to ensure that, but for the health carrier's
determination that the recommended or requested health care service
or treatment that is the subject of the opinion is experimental or

investigational, the reviewer's opinion is hot contrary to the terms of
coverage under the covered person's health benefit plan with the
health carrier; and
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Whether:

1

(2)

(2)

The recommended or requested health care service or
treatment has been approved by the federal food and drug
administration, if applicable, for the condition; or

Medical or scientific evidence or evidence-based standards
demonstrate that the expected benefits of the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment is more likely than
not to be beneficial to the covered person than any available
standard health care service or treatment and the adverse risks
of the recommended or requested health care service or

tfreatment would not be substantially increased over those of
available standard health care services or treatments.

Except as provided in paragraph 2. within twenty days after the
date it receives the opinion of each clinica! reviewer pursuant to
subsection 9, the assigned independent review organization, in
accordance with subdivision b, shall make a decision and

provide written notice of the decision to:

{a) The covered person:;

(b} If applicable, the covered person's authorized
representative;

(c) The heaith carrier. and

{d} The commissioner.

{a) FEor an expedited external review, within forty-eight hours

after the date it receives the opinion of each clinical

reviewer pursuant to subsection 9. the assigned
independent review organization, in accordance with

subdivision b, shall make a decision and provide notice of
the decision orally or in writing to the persons listed in
paragraph 1.

(b) If the notice provided under subparagraph b was not in
writing, within forty-eight hours after the date of providing
that notice, the assigned independent review organization
shall provide written confirmation of the decision to the
persons listed in paragraph 1 and include the information
set forth in subdivision c.

If a majority of the clinical reviewers recommend that the
recommended or requested health care service or treatment

should be covered, the independent review organization shalil
make a decision to reverse the health carrier's adverse

determination or final adverse determination.

lf a majority of the clinicai reviewers recommend that the
recommended or requested health care service or treatment
should not be covered, the independent review organization
shall make a decision to uphold the health carrier's adverse
determination or final adverse determination.
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(a) If the clinical reviewers are evenly split as to whether the
recommended or requested health care service or
treatment should be covered, the independent review
organization shall obtain the opinion of an additional

clinical reviewer in order for the independent review
organization to make a decision based on the opinions_of

a majority of the clinical reviewers pursuant to paragraph 1
or 2.

{b) The additional clinical reviewer selected under
subparagraph a shall use the same information to reach
an opinion as the clinical reviewers who have already
submitted their opinions pursuant to subsection 9.

{c) The selection of the additional clinical reviewer under this
subparagraph shall not extend the time within which the
assiqned independent review organization is required to
make a decision based on the opinions of the clinical
reviewers selected under subsection 4 pursuant to
subdivision a.

The independent review organization shali include in the notice

provided pursuant to subdivision a:

()]

(2)

®
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A general description of the reason for the request for external
review:

The written opinion of each clinical reviewer, including the
recommendation of each clinical reviewer as to whether the
recommended or requested health care service or treatment
should be covered and the rationale for the reviewer's
recommendation;

The date the independent review organization was assigned by
the commissioner to conduct the external review;

The date the external review was conducted;

The date of its decision;

The principal reason or reasons for its decision: and

The rationale for its decision.

Upon receipt of a notice of a decision pursuant to subdivision a

reversing the adverse determination or final adverse determination,
the health carrier immediately shall approve coverage of the
recommended or reguested health care service or treatment that was

the subject of the adverse determination or final adverse
determination.

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent review
organization to conduct an external review in accordance with this section
shall be done on a random basis among those approved independent
review organizations qualified to conduct the particular externai review

based on the nature of the health care service that is the subject of the
adverse determination or final adverse determination and other
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circumstances, including conflict of interest concerns pursuant to
subsection 4 of section 26.1-36.6-11,
. 26.1-36.6-09. Binding nature of external review decision.
1. An_external review decision is binding on the heaith carrier except to the

extent the health carrier has other remedies available under applicable
state taw.

I~

An external review decision is binding on the covered person except to the
extent the covered person has other remedies available Uunder applicable
federal or state law.

3. A covered person or the covered person’s authorized representative may
not file a subsequent request for external review involving the same
adverse determination or final adverse determination for which the covered
person has already received an external review decision pursuant to this
chapter,

26.1-36.6-10. Approval of independent review organizations.

1. The commissioner shall approve independent review organizations eligible
to be assigned to conduct external reviews under this chapter.

2. Inorder to be eligible for approval by the commissioner under this section
to conduct external reviews under this chapter an independent review

arganization;

. a. Except as otherwise provided in this section, shall be accredited by a
nationally recognized private accrediting entity that the commissioner
has determined has independent review organization accreditation
standards that are equivalent to or exceed the minimum qualifications

for independent review organizations established under section 26.1-
36.6-11; and

b. Shall submit an application for approval in accordance with subsection
4.

3. The commissioner shall develop an application form for initiaily approving

and for reapproving independent review organizations to conduct externat
reviews.

4. a. Anyindependent review organization wishing to be approved to
conduct external reviews shall submit the application form and include
with the form all documentation and information necessary for the
commissioner to determine if the independent review organization
satisfies the minimum qualifications established under section 26.1-
36.6-11.

b. (1} Subijectto paragraph 2. an independent review organization is

eligible for approval under this section only if it is accredited by a
nationally recognized private accrediting entity that the

commissioner has determined has independent review
organization accreditation standards that are equivalent to or
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exceed the minimum qualifications for independent review
. organizations under section 26.1-36.6-11.

(2) The commissioner may approve independent review
organizations that are not accredited by a nationalty recognized
private accrediting entity if there are no acceptable nationally

recognized private accrediting entities providing independent
review organization accreditation.

|©

The commissioner shall charge a fee of one hundred dollars that
independent review organizations must submit to the commissioner
with_an application for initial approval. The commissioner shall charge
a fee of twenty-five dollars for each reapproval.

|on
o

An approval is effective for two years, unless the commissioner
determines before its expiration that the independent review

organization is not satisfying the minimum qualifications established
under section 26.1-36.6-11.

b. Whenever the commissioner determines that an independent review

organization has lost its accreditation or no longer satisfies the

. minimum requirements established under section 26.1-36.6-11, the
commissioner shall terminate the approval of the independent review
organization and remove the independent review organization from
the list of independent review orqganizations approved to conduct
external reviews under this chapter that is maintained by the
commissioner pursuant to subsection 6.

. 8. The commissioner shall maintain and periodically update a list of approved
independent review organizations.

26.1-36.6-11. Minimum qualifications for independent review organizations.

1. To be approved under section 26.1-36.6-10 to conduct external reviews, an
independent review organization shall have and maintain written policies
and procedures that govern all aspects of both the standard external
review process and the expedited external review process set forth in this
chapter that include, at a minimum:

a. A quality assurance mechanism in place that:

(1) Ensures that external reviews are conducted within the specified

timeframes and required notices are provided in a timely
manner;

(2) Ensures the selection of qualified and impartial clinicai reviewers
to conduct external reviews on behalf of the independent review
organization and suitable matching of reviewers to specific
cases and that the independent review organization employs or
contracts with an adequate number of clinical reviewers to meet
this objective:

(3) Ensures the confidentiality of medical and treatment records and
. clinical review criteria; and
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2,

3.

4.

b.

c.

{(4) Ensures that any person empioyed by or under contract with the

independent review organization adheres to the requirements of
this chapter;

A toll-free telephone service to receive information on a
twenty-four-hour-day seven-day-a-week basis related to external
reviews that is capable of accepting, recording, or providing

appropriate instruction to incoming telephone callers during other than
normal business hours; and

Maintain and provide to the commissioner the information set out in
section 26.1-36.6-13.

All clinical reviewers assigned by an independent review organization to
conduct external reviews must be physicians or other appropriate health
care providers who meet the following minimum qualifications:

a.

b.

c.

d

Be an expert in the treatment of the covered person's medical
condition that is the subject of the external review:

Be knowledgeable about the recommended health care service or
treatment through recent or current actual clinical experience treating
patients with the same or similar medical condition of the covered
person;

Hold a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States and, for
physicians, a current certification by a recognized American medical
specialty board in the area or areas appropriate to the subject of the
external review; and

Have no history of disciplinary actions or sanctions. including loss of
staff privileges or participation_restrictions, that have been taken or are
pending by any hospital, governmentai agency or unit, or regulatory
body that raise a substantial question as to the clinical reviewer's
physical, mental, or professional competence or moral character.

In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1, an_independent
review organization may not own or control, be a subsidiary of or in any
way be owned or controlled by, or exercise control with a_health benefit
plan, a national, state. or local trade association of health benefit plans or a

national, state, or local trade association of health care providers.

a

In addition to the requirements set forth in subsections 1, 2. and 3, to
be approved pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10 to conduct an external
review of a specified case, neither the independent review
organization selected to conduct the external review nor any cfinical
reviewer assigned by the independent organization to conduct the

external review may have a material professional, familial, or financial
conflict of interest with any of the following:

(1) The health carrier that is the subject of the external review:

(2) The covered person whose treatment is the subject of the
external review or the covered person's authorized
representative;
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(3) Any officer, director, or management employee of the health
carrier that is the subject of the external review;

(4) The health care provider, the health care provider's medical
group or independent practice association recommending_the

heaith care service or treatment that is the subject of the
external review:

(8) The facility at which the recommended health care service ot
treatment would be provided; or

(8) The developer or manufacturer of the principal drug, device,
procedure, or other therapy being recommended for the covered
person whose treatment’is the subject of the external review.

In determining whether an independent review organization or a
clinical reviewer of the independent review organization has a material
professional, familial, or financial conflict of interest for purposes of
subdivision a, the commissioner shall take into consideration
situations in which the independent review organization to be
assigned to conduct an external review of a specified case or a clinical
reviewer to be assigned by the independent review organization to
conduct an external review of a specified case may have an apparent
professional, familial, or financial relationship or connection with a
person described in subdivision a. but that the characteristics of that
relationship or connection are such that they are not a material
professional, famiiial, ‘or financial conflict of interest that resuits in the
disapproval of the independent review organization or the clinical
reviewer from conducting the external review.

An independent review organization that is accredited by a nationally
recognized private accrediting entity that has independent review
accreditation standards that the commissioner has determined are
equivalent to or exceed the minimum qualifications of this section shall
be presumed in compliance with this section to be eligible for approval
under section 26.1-36.6-10.

The commissioner shall initially review and periodically review the
independent review organization accreditation standards of a
nationally recognized private accrediting entity to determine whether
the entity's standards are, and continue to be, equivalent to or exceed
the minimum qualifications established under this section. The
commissioner may accept a review conducted by the national
association for insurance commissioners for the purpose of the
determination under this subdivision.

Upon request, a nationally recognized private accrediting entity shall
make its current independent review organization accreditation
standards available to the commissioner or the national association of
insurance commissioners in_order for the commissioner to determine if
the entity's standards are equivalent to or exceed the minimum
gualifications established under this section. The commissioner may
exclude any private accrediting entity that is not reviewed by the
national association of insurance commissioners.
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6. Anindependent review organization shall be unbiased. An independent
review organization shall establish and maintain written procedures to
. ensure that it is unbiased in addition to any other procedures required
under this section,

26.1-36.6-12. Hold harmless for independent review organizations,

No independent review organization or clinical reviewer working on behalf of an
independent review organization or an employee, agent, or contractor of an
independent review organization shall be liable in damages to any persen for any
opinions rendered or acts or omissions performed within the scope of the
organization's or person's duties under the law during or upon completion of an
external review conducted pursuant to this chapter unless the opinion was rendered or
act or omission performed in bad faith or involved gross negligence,

26.1-36.6-13. External review reporting requirements.

1. a. Anindependent review organization assigned pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-06, 26.1-36.6-07. or 26.1-36.6-08 to conduct an external
review shall maintain written records in the aggregate by state and by
health carrier on all requests for external review for which it conducted
an external review during a calendar year and upon reguest submit a
report to the commissioner as required under subdivision b.

i

Each independent review organization required to_maintain written
records on all requests for external review pursuant to subdivision a
. for which it was assigned to conduct an external review shall submit to

the commissioner, upon reguest, a report in the format specified by
the commissioner.

o

The report shall include in the agaregate by state and for each health
carrier:

The total number of requests for external review:

BE

The number of requests for external review resolved and, of
those resolved, the number resolved upholding the adverse

determination or final adverse determination and the number
resolved reversing the adverse determination or final adverse
determination;

The average length of time for resolution;

BB

A summary of the types of coverages or cases for which an
external review was sought, as provided in the format required
by the commissioner;

{5) The number of external reviews pursuant to subsection 7 of
section 26.1-36.6-06 that were terminated as the resuit of a
reconsideration by the health carrier of its adverse determination
or final adverse determination after the receipt of additional
information from the covered person or the covered person's

authorized representative; and
. {6) Any other information the commissioner may request or require.
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The independent review organization shall retain the written records
required pursuant to this subsection for at least three years.

[©

Each health carrier shall maintain written records in the aggregate, by
state and for each type of health benefit pian offered by the health
carrier on all requests for external review that the heaith carrier
receives notice of from the commissioner pursuant to this chapter.

=3

Each health carrier required to maintain written records on all request
for external review pursuant to subdivision a shall submit to the

commissioner. upon request, a report in the format specified by the
commissioner.

]

o

The report shall include in the aggregate, by state, and by type of
health benefit plan:

(1) The total number of requests for external review:

(2) From the total number of requests for external review reported

under paragraph 1, the number of requests determined eligible
for a full external review; and

(3) Any other information the commissioner may request or require.

d, The health carrier shall retain the written records required pursuant to
this subsection for at least three years.

26.1-36.6-14. Funding of external review.

e health carrier against which a reguest for a standard external review or an

Th
. expedited external review is filed shall pay the cost of the independent review

organization for conducting the external review.

26.1-36.6-15. Disclosure requirements.

1

(g

I(..\J

a. Each health carrier shall include a description of the external review
procedures in or attached to the policy, certificate, membership
booklet, outline of coverage, or other evidence of coverage it provides
to covered persons.

b. The disclosure required by subdivision a shall be in_a format
prescribed by the commissioner.

The description required under subsection 1 shall include a statement that
informs the covered person of the right of the covered person to file a
request for an external review of an adverse determination or final adverse
determination with the commissioner. The statement may explain that
axternal review is available when the adverse determination or final
adverse determination involves an issue of medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care _setting, level of care, or effectiveness. The
statement shall include the telephone number and address of the
commissioner.

In addition to subsection 2, the statement shall inform the covered person
that when filing a_request for an external review the covered person will be
required to authorize the release of any medical records of the covered
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person that may be required to be reviewed for the purpose of reaching a
decision on the external review.
. _ 26.1-36.6-16. Rulemaking.
The commissioner may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this chapter.
26.1-36.6-17. Confidentiality.

Any protected health information that the commissioner receives pursuant to
this chapter is confidential.

SECTION 5. Chapter 26.1-36.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.7-01. Definitions.

As used in this chapter:

1. "Adverse determination” means:

a.  Adetermination by a health ¢arrier or its designee utilization review
organization that, based upon the information provided. a request for
a benefit under the health carrier's health benefit plan upon
application of any utilization review technique does not meet the
health carrier's requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness,
health care setting, level of care, or effectiveness or is determined to
. be experimental or investigational and the requested benefit is

therefore denied. reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or
made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;

The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or make

payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a determination by
a heatth carrier or its designee utilization review organization of a
covered person's eligibility to participate in the heaith carrier's health
benefit plan;

Any prospective review or retrospective review determination that

denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or make payment, in
whole or in part. for a benefit; or

d. Arescission of coverage determination.

"Ambulatory review" means utilization review of heaith care services

performed or provided in an outpatient setting.

‘Authorized representative” means:
a. Apersonto whom a covered person has given express written
consent to represent the covered person for purposes of this chapter:

b. Aperson authorized by |aw to provide substituted consent for a
covered person;

. c. _Afamily member of the covered person or the covered person's

treating health care professicnal when the covered person is unable 10
provide consent;
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A health care professional when the covered person's health benefit
plan requires that a request for a benefit under the plan be initiated by

the health care professional; or

e. Inthe case of an urgent care request, a health care professional with
knowledge of the covered person's medical condition.

"Case management” means a coordinated set of activities conducted for

individual patient management of serious, complicated, protracted, or other
health conditions.

"Certification” means a determination by a health carrier or its designee
utifization review organization that a request for a benefit under the health
carrier's health benefit plan has been reviewed and based on the
information provided satisfies the health carrier's requirements for medical

necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level of care, and
effeciiveness,

"Clinical peer" means a physician or other health care professional who
holds a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States and in the
same or similar specialty as typically manages the medical condition,
procedure, or treatment uUnder review.

"Clinical review criteria" means the written screening procedures, decision
abstracts, clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used by the health
carrier to determine the medical necessity and appropriateness of health
care services.

"Commissioner" means the insurance commissioner.

‘Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a patient's
stay or course of treatment in a facility, the office of a health care

professional, or other inpatient or outpatient health care setting,

"Covered benefits" or "benefits” means those health care services to which
a_covered person is entitled under the terms of a health benefit plan.

'Covered person” means a policyholder, subscriber, enroliee, or other
individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge planning" means the formal process for determining prior to
discharge from a facility the coordination and management of the care that
a patient receives following discharge from a facility.

‘Emergency medical condition" means a medical condition manifesting
itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including severe pain, such
that a prudent layperson, who possesses an average knowledge of health
and medicine, could reasonably expect that the absence of immediate
medical attention would result in serious impairment to bodily functions or
serious dysfunction of a bodily organ or part or would ptace the person's
health or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or

her unborn child, in serious jeopardy.

"Emergency services" means, with respect to an emergency medical
condition:
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a. A medical screening examination that is within the capability of the

emergency department of a hospital, including ancillary services
routinely available to the emergency department to evaluate such
emergency medical condition: and

b.  Such further medical examination and treatment, to the extent they
are within the capability of the staff and fac_ilities available at a

hospital, to stabilize a patient.

"Facility” means an institution providing health care services or a heaith
care setting. including hospitals and other licensed inpatient centers,
ambulatory surgical, or treatment centers, skilled nursing centers,

residential treatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and imaging centers.
and rehabilitation_and other therapeutic health settinas.

a. Health benefit plan” means a policy, contract, ceriificate, or
agreement entered into, offered, or issued by a health carrier to
provide, deliver. arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of

health care services.

"Health benefit plan" jncludes short-term and catastrophic health
insurance policies and a policy that pays on a cost-incurred basis,
except as otherwise specifically exempted in this definition.

'Health benefit plan" does not include:

(1) Coverage only for accident or disability income insurance. or
any combination thereof;

Coverage issued as a supplement to liability insurance:;

Liability insurance, including general liability insurance and
automobile liability insurance;

Workers' compensation or similar insurance:
Automobile medical payment insurance:
Credit-only insurance;

Coverage for onsite medicai clinics: and

Other similar insurance coverage, specified in federal
regulations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub. L. 104-1981]. under which

benefits for medical care are secondary or incidental to other
insurance benefits.

d. "Health benefit plan" does not include the following benefits if they are
provided under a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance
or are otherwise not an integral part of the plan:

(1) Limited scope dental or vision benefits:

{2) Benefits for long-term care, nursing home care, home heaith
care, community-based care, or any combination thereof; or

o

[o
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(3) Other similar, limited benefits specified in federal requiations
issued pursuant to the Heaith Insurance Portability and

Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub. L. 104-191].

|

"Health benefit plan” does not include the following benefits if the
benefits are provided under a separate policy, cerlificate, or contract
of insurance, there is no coordination between the provision of the
benefits and any exclusion of benefits under any group health plan
maintained by the same plan sponsor. and the benefits are paid with
respect to an event without regard to whether benefits are provided

with respect to such an event under any group health plan maintained
by the same plan sponsor:

(1) Coverage only for a specified disease or iliness: or

(2) Hospital indemnity or other fixed indemnity insurance.

'Health benefit plan" does not include the following if offered as a
separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance:

™

(1) Medicare supplemental health insurance as defined under
section 1882(q)(1) of the Social Security Act;

(2) Coverage supplemental to the coverage provided under chapter
55 of title 10, United States Code (civilian health and medical

program of the uniformed services (CHAMPUS)Y: or

(3) Similar supplemental coverage provided to coverage under a
group health plan.

"Health care professional" means a physician or other health care

practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified health
care services consistent with state law.

'Health care provider" or "provider” means a health care professignal or a
facility.

"Health care services" means services for the diagnosis, prevention,
treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, iliness, injury, or disease.

"Health carrier" means an entity subject to the insurance laws and
regulations of this state, or subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner
that contracts or offers to contract to provide, deliver. arrange for, pay for,
or reimburse any of the costs of health care services, including a_sickness
and accident insurance company. a health maintenance organization. a
nonprofit hospital and health service corporation, or any other entity

providing a plan of health insurance, health benefits, or health care
services.

"Managed care plan" means a health benefit plan that either requires a
covered person to use, or creates incentives, including financial incentives,
for a covered person to use health care providers managed, owned, under
contract with, or employed by the health carrier.

"Network" means the group of participating providers providing services to
a managed care plan.
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"Participating provider" means a provider who under a contract with the
health carrier or with its contractor or subcontractor has agreed to provide

health_care services to covered persons with an expectation of receiving
payment other than coinsurance, copayments, or deductibles, directly or

indirectly from the health carrier.

"Person” means an individual, a corporation. a partnership, an association,
a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an unincorporated
organization, any similar entity, or any combination of the foreqgoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an

admission or the provision of a health care service or a course of treatment

in accordance with a health carrier's requirement that the health_care
service or course of treatment, in whole or in part, be approved prior to its

provision.

"Rescission" means a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage under a
health benefit plan that has a retroactive effect. Rescission does not
include a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage under a health benefit
plan if:

a. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage has only a prospective
effect: or

b. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage is effective
retroactively to the extent it is attributable to a failure to timely pay
required premiums or contributions toward the cost of coverage.

a. "Retrospective review" means any review of a request for a benefit
that is not a prospective review request.

b. "Retrospective review" does not include the review of a claim that is
limited to veracity of documentation or accuracy of coding.

"Second opinion" means an opporiunity or requirement to obtain a clinical

evaluation by a provider other than the one originally making a
recommendation_for a_proposed health care service to assess the medical

‘necessity and appropriateness of the initial proposed health care service.

‘Stabilized" means, with respect to an emergency medical condition, that
no material deterioration of the condition is likely, within reasonabie
medical probability. to result from or occur during the transfer of the
individual from a facility or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the woman
has delivered, including the placenta,

a. "Urgent care request" means a request for a health care service or

course of treatment with respect to which the time periods for making
a nonurgent care request determination;

(1) Could seriously jeopardize the life or health of the covered

person or the ability of the covered person to regain maximum
function; or

{2) Inthe opinion of a physician with knowledge of the covered
person's medical condition, would subject the covered person to

severe pain that cannot be adequately managed without the
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heaith care service or treatment that is the subject of the
request.

b. {1} Except as provided in paragraph 2, in determining whether a
request is to be treated as an urgent care request. an individual
acting on behalf of the health carrier shall apply the judgment of
a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of
health and medicine.

{2) Any reguest that a physician with knowledge of the covered
person's medical condition determines is an urgent care request
within the meaning of subdivision a must be treated as an_urgent
care request.

31. ‘Utilization review" means a set of formal techniques designed to menitor
the use of or evaluate the medical necessity, appropriateness. efficacy, or
efficiency of health care services, procedures, or seftings. Technigues may
include ambulatory review, prospective review, second opinion,
certification, concurrent review,_case management, discharge planning, or
retrospective review.

32. "Utilization review organization" means an entity that conducts utilization

review other than a health carrier performing utilization review for its own
heaith benefit pians.

26.1-36.7-02. Applicability and scope.

This chapter shall apply to a health carrier offering health benefit plans that

rovides or performs utilization review services, to any designee of the health carrier or
utilization review organization that performs utilization review functions on the carrier's
behalf,_and to_a health _carrier or its designee utilization review organization that
provides or performs prospective review or retrospective reyiew benefit determinations
regarding coverage provided under a nongrandfathered health benefit plan. For
purposes of this chapter, "nongrandfathered health benefit plan” means a health
benefit plan that is not exempt from the requirements of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148] and the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152] because it failed to achieve or lost
grandfathered health plan status. For purposes of this chapter, "grandfathered heaith
plan" has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act fPub. L.
111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
[Pub. L. 111-152].

26.1-36.7-03. Corporate oversight of utilization review program.

A health carrier shall be responsible for monitoring all utilization review activities
carried out by or on behalf of the health carrier and for ensuring that all requirements of
this chapter and

applicable rules are met, The health carrier also shall ensure that appropriate

personnel have operational responsibility for the conduct of the health carrier's
utilization review program.
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26.1-36.7-04. Contracting.

Whenever a health carrier contracts to have a utilization review organization or

other entity perform the utilization review functions required by this chapter or

applicable rules, the commissioner shall hold the health carrier responsible for
monitoring the activities of the utilization review organization or entity with which the

heaith _carrier contracts and for ensuring that the requirements of this chapter and
applicable rules are met.

26.1-36.7-05. Scope and content of utilization review program.

1. a. Ahealth carrier that requires a request for benefits under the covered
person’s heaith benefit plan to be subjected to utilization review shall
implement a written utilization review program that describes all
review activities and procedures, both delegated and nondelegated

for:
1)
(2)

(3)

=)
B

BB
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B

(7}

The filing of benefit requests:

The notification of utilization review and benefit determinations:
and

The review of adverse determinations in accordance with
chapter 26.1-36.8.

The program document shall describe the following:

Procedures to evaluate the medical necessity, appropriateness.,
efficacy, or efficiency of health care services;

Data sources and clinical review criteria used in decisionmaking:

Mechanisms to ensure consistent application of clinical review

criteria and compatible decisions:

Data collection processes and analytical methods used in
assessing utilization of health care services:

Provisions for assuring confidentiality of clinical and proprietary
information;

The organizational structure, such as a utilization review
committee, quality assurance, or other committee, that
periodically assesses utilization review activities and reports to

the health carrier's goeverning body; and

The staff position functionally responsible for day-to-day
program management.

2. a. Aheailth carrier shall file an annual summary report of its utilization

review program activities with the commissioner in the format
approved by the commissioner.

b. (1)

In_addition to the summary report, a health carrier shall maintain

records for a minimum of six years of all benefit requests and
claims and notices associated with utilization review and benefit

deferminations made in accordance with_sections 26.1-36.7-07
and 26.1-36.7-08.
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(2)

The health carrier shali make the records available for

examination by covered persons and the commissioner and
appropriate federal oversight agencies upon request.

26.1-36.7-06. Operational requirements.

1
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A utilization review program shall use documented clinical review criteria
that are based on sound clinical evidence and are evaluated periodically to
assure ongoing efficacy. A heaith carrier may develop its own clinical
review criteria or it may purchase or license clinical review criteria from
qualified vendors. A health carrier shall make available its clinical review
criteria upon request to the commissioner.

Qualified health care professionals shall administer the utilization review
program and oversee utilization review decisions. A clinical peer shall

evaluate the clinical appropriateness of adverse determinations.

a.

b.

A health carrier shall issue utilization review and benefit
determinations in a timely manner pursuant to the requirements of

sections 26.1-36.7-07 and 26.1-36.7-08.

(6]

Whenever a health carrier fails to strictly adhere to the
requirements of sections 26.1-36.7-07 or 26.1-36.7-08 with
respect to making utilization review and benefit determinations
of a benefit request or claim, the covered person shall be
deemed to have exhausted the provisions of this chapter and
may take action under paragraph 2 reqardless of whether the
health carrier asserts that it substantially complied with the
requirements of sections 26.1-36.7-07 or 26.1-36.7-08, as

applicable, or that any error it committed was de minimis,

(a) A covered person may file a request for external review in

accordance with the procedures outlined in chapter 26.1-
36.6.

{b) In addition. a covered person is entitled to pursue any
available remedies under state or federal law_on the basis
that the health carrier failed to provide a reascnable
internatl claims and appeals process that would yield a
decision on the merits of the claim.

A health carrier shall have a process to ensure that utilization reviewers

apply clinical review criteria consistently in conducting utilization review.

A health carrier shall routinely assess the effectiveness and efficiency of its

utilization review program.

A health carrier's data systems shall be sufficient to support utilization
review program activities and to generate management reports to enable
the health carrier to_ monitor and manage health care services effectively.

If a health carrier delegates any utilization review activities to a utilization
review organization, the health carrier shall maintain adequate gversight,

which must include:
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a. Awiritten description of the utilization review organization's activities
and responsibilities, including reporting reguirements;

b. Evidence of formal approval of the utilization review organization
program by the health carrier; and

c. Aprocess by which the health carrier evaluates the performance of
the utilization review organization.

The heaith carrier shall coordinate the utilization review program with other

medical management activity conducted by the carrier, such as quality
assurance, credentialing, provider contracting, data reporting, grievance

procedures, processes for assessing member satisfaction, and risk
management.

A health carrier shall provide covered persons and participating providers
with access to its review staff by a toli-free number or collect call telephone

line.

When conducting_utilization review, the heaith carrier shall collect only the

information necessary, including pertinent clinical information, to make the
utilization review or benefit determination.

a. In conducting utilization review, the health carrier shall ensure that the
review is conducted in a manner to ensure the independence and
impartiality of the individuals involved in making the utilization review
or benefit determination.

In ensuring the independence and impartiality of individuals involved
in making_the utilization review or benefit determination, the health
carrier may not make decisions regarding hiring, compensation,
termination, promotion, or other similar matters based upon the
likelihood that the individual will support the denial of benefits.

i=4

26.1-36.7-07. Procedures for standard utilization review and benefit

determinations.

1

A health carrier shall maintain written procedures pursuant to this section

for making standard utilization review and henefit determinations on
requests submitted to the health carrier by covered persons or their

authorized representatives for benefits and for notifying covered persons
and their authorized representatives of its determinations with respect to

these requests within the specified timeframes reguired under this section.

a. (1) Subjectto paragraph 2, for prospective review determinations, a
health carrier shall make the determination and notify the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative of the determination, whether the carrier certifies
the provision of the benefit or not. within a reasonable period of
time appropriate to the covered person's medical condition but
in no event |ater than fifteen days after the date the health
carrier receives the request.

Whenever the determination is an adverse determination
the health carrier shall make the notification of the adverse
determination in accordance with subsection 8.
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The time period for making a determination and natifying the
covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative of the determination pursuant to paragraph 1 may
be extended one time by the health carrier for up to fifteen days,
provided the health carrier:

(@) Determines that an extension is necessary due to matters
beyond the health carrier's control;, and

(b) Notifies the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative, prior to the expiration of the
initial fifteen-day time period, of the circumstances

requiring the extension of time and the date by which the
health carrier expects to make a determination.

If the extension under paragraph 2 is necessary due to the

failure of the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative to submit information necessary to reach a

determination on the request, the notice of extension shall:

(a) Specifically describe the required information necessary to
complete the request: and

(b) Give the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative at least forty-five days from the

date of receipt of the notice to provide the specified
information.

Whenever the heaith carrier receives a prospective review
request from_a covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative that fails to meet the health carrier's
filing procedures, the health carrier shall notify the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative of this
failure and provide in the notice information on the proper
procedures to be followed for filing a request.

(a) The notice required under paragraph 1 shall be provided
as soon as possible but in no event later than five days
foliowing the date of the failure.

{b) The health carrier may provide the netice orally or, if

requested by the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative, in_writing.

The provisions of this paragraph apply only in the case of a
failure that:

(a) Is a communication by a covered person or the covered
person's autharized representative that is received by a
person or organizational unit of the_health carrier

responsible for handiing benefit matters: and

{b) Is a communication that refers to a specific covered
person, a specific medical condition or symptom, and a
specific health care service, treatment, or provider for
which certification_is being requested.
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For concurrent review determinations, if a heaith carrier has certified
an ongoing course of treatment {0 be provided over a period of time or

number of treatments:

(1) Any reduction or termination by the health carrier during the
course of treatment before the end of the period or number

treatments, other than by health benefit plan amendment or
termination of the health benefit plan, shall constitute an adverse

determination; and

(2) The health carrier shall notify the covered person of the adverse
determination in accordance with subsection 6 at a time
sufficiently in advance of the reduction_or termination to ailow

the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative to fite a grievance to request a review of the

adverse determination pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8 and obtain

a determination with respect to that review of the adverse
determination before the benefit is reduced or terminated.

The heaith care service or treatment that is the subject of the adverse
determination shall be continued without liability to the covered person

until the covered person has been notified of the determination by the

heaith carrier with respect to the internal review request made
pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8.

{1) For retrospective review determinations, a heaith carrier shali
make the determination within a reasonable period of time but in
no event [ater than thirty days after the date of receiving the
benefit request.

(2) If the determination is an adverse determination, the heaith

carrier shall provide notice of the adverse determination to the
covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative in accordance with subsection 8.

(1) The time period for making a determination and notifying the
coveted person or the covered person's authorized
representative of the determination pursuant to subdivision a
may be extended one time by the health carrier for up to fifieen

days, provided the health carrier:

{a} Determines that an extension is necessary due to matters
bevond the health carrier's control; and

(b} Notifies the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative prior to the expiration of the

initia) thirty-day time period of the circumstances requiring
the extension of time and the date by which the health
carrier expects to make a determination.

(2) If the extension under paragraph 1 is necessary due to the
failure of the covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative to submit information necessary to reach a
determination on the request, the notice of extension shall:

(a) Specifically describe the required information necessary to
complete the request, and
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(b) Give the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative at least forty-five days from the

date of receipt of the notice to provide the specified
information.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a
determination is required to be made under subsections 2 and 4, the
time period within which the determination is required to be made
shall begin on the date the request is received by the health carrier in
accordance with the health carrier's procedures established pursuant

to section 26.1-36.7-05 for filing a request without regard to whether
all of the information necessary to make the determination

accompanies the filing.

(1) i the time period for making the determination under subsection
2 or 4 is extended due to the covered person's or the covered
person's authorized representative's failure to submit the
information necessary to make the determination, the time
period for making the determination shall be tolled from the date
on which the health carrier sends the notification of the
extension to the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative until the earlier of:

{8} The date on which the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative responds to the

request for additional information; or

{(b) The date on which the specified information was to have
been submitted.

(2) If the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative fails to submit the information before the end of
the period of the extension, as specified in subsection 2 or 4, the
heaith carrier may deny the certification of the requested benefit.

A notification of an adverse determination under this section shall,_in a
manner calculated to be understood by the covered person, set forth:

(1) Information sufficient to identify the benefit request or claim
involved, including the date of service, if applicable, the health
care provider, the claim amount, if applicable, the diagnosis
code and its corresponding meaning and the treatment code
and its corresponding meaning;

(2) The specific reasons or reasons for the adverse determination,
including the denial code and its corresponding meaning, as well
as a description of the health carrier's standard, if any, that was

used in denying the benefit request or claim;

(3) Reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is based;

(4) Adescription of any additional material or information necessary
for the covered person to perfect the benefit request. including
an explanation of why the material or information is necessary to
perfect the request;
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A description of the health carrier's grievance procedures

established pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8, including any time
limits applicable to those procedures;

If the health carrier relied upon an internal rule, quideline
protocol, or other similar criterion to make the adverse
determination_either the specific rule, guideline, protocol, or
other similar criterion or a statement that a specific rule,
quideline, protocol, or other similar criterion was relied upon to
make the adverse determination and that a copy of the rule,
guideline, protocol. or other similar criterion will be provided free
of charge to the covered person upon reguest;

If the adverse determination is based on a medicat necessity or
experimental or investigational treatment or similar exclusion or
limit, either an expianation of the scientific or clinical judgment
for making the determination, applying the terms of the health
benefit plan to the covered person's medical circumsiances or a
statement that an explanation will be provided to the covered
person free of charge upon request;

A copy of the rule, guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion
relied upon in making the adverse determination; or

The written statement of the scientific or clinical rationale for the
adverse determination; and

A statement explaining the availability of and the right of the

covered person, as appropriate, to contact the commissioner's
office_or ombudsman's office at any time for assistance or, upon

completion of the health carrier's grievance procedure process
as provided under chapter 26.1-36.8, to file a civil suit in a court
of competent jurisdiction. The statement shall include contact
information for the commissioner's office or ombudsman's office,

A health carrier shall provide the notice required under this
section in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner if
required in accordance with federal regulations.

If 2 health carrier is required to provide the notice required under

this section in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner
in_accordance with federal requlations, the health carrier shall:

(@) Include a statement in the English version of the notice,

prominently displayed in the non-English language,
offering the provision of the notice in the non-English

language:

(b) Once a utilization review or benefit determination request
has been made by a covered person, provide ali
subseqguent notices to the covered person in the non-
English language; and

(¢} Tothe extent the health carrier maintains a consumer
assistance process, such as a telephone hotline that

answers questions or provides assistance with filing
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claims and appeais, the heaith carrier shall provide this
. assistance in the non-English language.

c. [If the adverse determination is a rescission, the health carrier shall
provide in the advance notice of the rescission determination required

to be provided under applicable state or federal law or requlation
related to the advance notice requirement of a proposed rescission. in

addition to any applicable disclosures required under subdivision a:

{1) Clear identification of the alleged fraudulent act, practice, or
omission or the intentional misrepresentation of a material fact.

(2) An explanation as to why the act, practice, or omission was

fraudulent or was an intentional misrepresentation of a material
fact; :

{3) Notice that the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative, prior to the date the advance notice
of the proposed rescission ends, may immediately file a

grievance to request a review of the adverse determination to
rescind coverage pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8;

{(4) Adescription of the health carrier's grievance procedures
established pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8, inciuding any time
limits applicable to those procedures: and

{8) The date when the advance notice ends and the date back {0
I which the coverage will be retroactively rescinded.

d. Ahealth carrier may provide the notice required under this section in
writing_or electronically.

26.1-36.7-08. Procedures for expedited utilization review and benefit
determinations.

1. a. A health carrier shall establish written procedures in accordance with
this section for receiving benefit requests from covered persons or
their authorized representatives and for making and notifying covered
persons or their authorized representatives of expedited utilization
review and benefit determinations with respect to urgent care requests
and concurrent review urgent care requests.

(=

(1) As part of the procedures required under subdivision a, a health
carrier shall provide that in the case of a failure by a covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative to
follow the health carrier's procedures for filing an urgent care
request the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative shall be notified of the failure and the proper
procedures to be following for filing the request.

(2) Ahealth carrier shall provide the notice required under
Qaragragh_ 1.

. (a} Tothe covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative as soon as possible but not later than
twenty-four hours after receipt of the request: and
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(b) Orally uniess the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative requests the nofice in writing.

The provisions of this paragraph apply only in the case of a
failure that:

(a) Is a communication by a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative that is received by a

person or organizational unit of the health carrier
responsible for handling benefit matters: and

(b) Is a communication that refers to a specific covered
person, a specific medical condition or symptom, and a

specific health care service, treatment, or provider for
which approval is being requested.

For an urgent care request, unless the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative has failed to provide

sufficient information for the health carrier to determine whether,
or to what extent, the benefits requested are covered benefits or
payable under the health carrier's health benefit plan, the heaith
carrier shall notify the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the health carrier's determination
with respect to the request, whether the determination is an
adverse determination as soon as possible taking into account
the medical condition of the covered person but in_no event later

than twenty-four hours after the receipt of the request by the
health carrier.

If the health carrier's determination is an adverse determination,
the health carrier shall provide notice of the adverse
determination in accordance with subsection 5.,

If the covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative has failed to provide sufficient information for the
health carrier to make a determination, the health carrier shall

notify the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative either orally or, if requested by the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative, in

writing of this failure and state what specific information is
needed as soon as possible but in no event later than twenty-

four hours after receipt of the request.

The heaith carrier shall provide the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative a reasonable period

of time to submit the necessary information taking inte account
the circumstances but in no event less than forty-eight hours

after notifying the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the failure to submit sufficient

information, as provided in paragraph 1.

The health carrier shall notify the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative of its determination with
respect to the urgent care request as soon as possible but in no
event more than forty-eight hours after the earlier of:
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(@) The health carrier's receipt of the requested specified

information; or

. (b) The end of the period provided for the covered person or
the covered person's authorized representative to submit
the requested specified information.

{4) If the covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative fails to submit the information before the end of
the period of the extension, as specified in paragraph 2. the
health carrier may deny the certification of the requested benefit.

(8) I the health carrier's determination is an adverse determination
the health carrier shall provide nofice of the adverse
determination in accordance with subsection 5.

|
o

For concurrent review urgent care requests involving_a request by the
covered person or the covered person's authorized representative to
extend the course of treatment beyond the initial period of time or the
number of treatments, if the request is made at least twenty-four hours
prior to the expiration of the prescribed period of time or number of
treatments, the health carrier shall make a determination with respect
fo the request and notify the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the determination, whether it is an
adverse determination or not, as soon as possible taking into account
the covered person's medical condition but in no event more than
twenty-four hours after the health carrier's receipt of the request.

. b. If the health carrier's determination is an adverse determination, the
heaith carrier shall provide notice of the adverse determination in
accordance with subsection 5.

[~

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a determination
is required to be made under subsection 2 or 3, the time period within
which the determination is required to be made shall begin on the date the
request is filed with the health carrier in agccordance with the health
carrier's procedures established pursuant to section 26.1-386.7-05 for filing
a request without regard to whether all of the information necessary to
make the determination accompanies the filing.

5. a. Anadtification_of an adverse determination under this section shall in a
manner calculated to be understood by the covered person set forth;

(1) Information sufficient to identify the benefit request or claim
involved, including the date of service, if applicable, the health
care provider, the claim amount, if applicable, the diagnosis
code and its corresponding meaning, and the treatment code

and its corresponding meaning;

(2) The specific reasons or reasons for the adverse determination,
inctuding the denial code and its corresponding meaning, as well
as a description of the health carrier's standard, if any, that was
used in denying the benefit request or claim;

{3) Reference to the specific plan provisions on which the
determination is hased.

Page No. 49 11.8111.03002



. [2]. A denial of coverage based on a

determination that the recommended or
requested health care service or
treatment is experimental or
investigational, the covered person or
the covered person's authorized
representative may file a request for a
standard external review to be
conducted pursuant to section 26.1-
36.6-06 or if the covered person's
treating physician certifies in writing that
the recommended or requested health
care service or treatment that is the
subject of the request would be
significantly less effective if not promptly
initiated, the covered person or the
covered person's authorized
representative may request an
expedited external review to be
conducted under section 26.1-36.6-07.

=

In_addition to the information to be provided pursuant to

subdivision a, the health carrier shall include a copy of the
. description of both the standard and expedited external
review procedures the health carrier is required to provide
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-15, highlighting the provisions
in the external review procedures that give the covered
person or the covered person's authorized representative the
opportunity to submit additional information and including
any forms used to process an external review.

As part of any forms provided under subdivision_ b, the health
carrier shall include an authorization form, or other document
approved by the commissioner that complies with the
requirements of 45 CFR 164.508, by which the covered
person, for purposes of conducting an external review under
this chapter, authorizes the health carrier and the covered
person's treating health care provider to disclose protected
health information, including medical records, concerning the
covered person that are pertinent to the external review, as
provided in section 26.1-36-12.4.

[©

26.1-36.6-04. Request for external review.
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Except for a request for an expedited external review as set
forth in section 26.1-36.6-07_ all requests for external review
shall be made in writing to the commissioner.

The commissioner may prescribe by the form and content of
external review requests required to be submitted under this

section.

A covered person or the covered person's authorized

representative may make a request for an external review of an

adverse determination or final adverse determination.

26.1-36.6-05. Exhaustion of internal grievance process.

1.

[~

a.
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Except as provided in subsection 2, a request for an external
review pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-06, 26.1-36.6-07, or
26.1-36.6-08 shall not be made until the covered person has
exhausted the health carrier's internal grievance process as
set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

A covered person shall be considered to have exhausted the
health carrier's internal grievance process for purposes of
this section, if the covered person or the covered person's

authorized representative:

(1) Has filed a grievance involving an adverse
determination pursuant to section 26.1-36.8-05; and

(2)  Except to the extent the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative requested
or agreed to a delay, has not received a written
decision on the grievance from the health carrier
within thirty days following the date the covered
person or the covered person's authorized
representative filed the grievance with the health
carrier.

Notwithstanding subdivision b, a covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative may not make a
request for an external review of an adverse determination
involving a retrospective review determination made
pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.7 until the covered person has
exhausted the health carrier's internal grievance process.

(1)  Atthe same time a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative files a request for
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an expedited review of a grievance involving an

adverse determination as set forth in section 26.1-

36.8-06, the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative may file a request for an
expedited external review of the adverse
determination:

(@)  Under section 26.1-36.6-07 if the covered
person has a medical condition and the
timeframe for completion of an expedited
review of the grievance involving an adverse
determination set forth in section 26.1-36.8-06
would seriously jeopardize the life or health of
the covered person or would jeopardize the
covered person's ability to regain maximum
function; or

(b) Under section 26.1-36.6-08 if the adverse
determination involves a denial of coverage
based on a determination that the
recommended or requested health care service
or treatment is experimental or investigational
and the covered person's treating physician
certifies in writing that the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment that
is the subject of the adverse determination
would be significantly less effective if not
promptly initiated.

Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external
review under paragraph 1, the independent review
organization conducting the external review in
accordance with the provisions of section 26.1-36.6-
07 or 26.1-36.6-08 shall determine whether the
covered person shall be required to complete the
expedited review process set forth in section 26.1-

36.8-06 before it conducts the expedited external
review,

Upon a determination made pursuant to paragraph 2
that the covered person must first complete the
expedited grievance review process set forth in
section 26.1-36.8-06, the independent review
organization immediately shall notify the covered

person and the covered person's authorized
representative of this determination and that it will not
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. proceed with the expedited external review set forth in
section 26.1-36.6-07 until completion of the expedited
grievance review process and the covered person's
grievance at the completion of the expedited
grievance review process remains unresolved.

A request for an external review of an adverse determination
may be made before the covered person has exhausted the
health carrier's internal grievance procedures as set forth in
section 26.1-36.8-05 whenever the health carrier agrees to
waive the exhaustion requirement.

IS
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If the requirement to exhaust the health carrier's internal grievance
procedures is waived under subdivision a of subsection 2, the
covered person or the covered person's authorized representative
may file a request in writing for a standard external review as set
forth in section 26.1-36.6-06 or 26.1-36.6-08.

26.1-36.6-06. Standard external review.

1. a. Within four months after the date of receipt of a notice of an
adverse determination or final adverse determination
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-03, a covered person or the

. covered person's authorized representative may file a
request for an external review with the commissioner.

Within one business day after the date of receipt of a request
for external review pursuant to subdivision a, the
commissioner shall send a copy of the request to the health
carrier.

=

Within five business days following the date of receipt of the copy of
the external review request from the commissioner under
subdivision b of subsection 1, the health carrier shall complete a
preliminary review of the request to determine whether:

[h

a. The individual is or was a covered person in the health
benefit plan at the time the health care service was
requested or, in the case of a retrospective review, was a
covered person in the health benefit plan at the time the
heaith care service was provided:;

The health care service that is the subject of the adverse
determination or the final adverse determination is a covered
service under the covered person's health benefit plan, but
for a determination by the health carrier that the health care

[
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service is not covered because it does not meet the health
carrier's requirements for medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care setting, level of care, or
effectiveness;

The covered person has exhausted the health carrier's
internal grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8
unless the covered person is not required to exhaust the

health carrier's internal grievance process pursuant to
section 26.1-36.6-05; and

The covered person has provided all the information and
forms required to process an external review, including the
release form provided under section 26.1-36.6-03.

Within one business day after completion of the preliminary
review, the health carrier shall notify the commissioner and
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative in writing whether:

(1)  The request is complete; and

(2) The request is eligible for external review.

If the request:

(&) Is not complete, the health carrier shall inform the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative and the commissioner in writing and
include in the notice what information or materials are
needed to make the request complete; or

(2) Is not eligible for external review, the health carrier
shall inform the covered person and the covered
person's authorized representative and the
commissioner in writing and include in the notice the
reasons for its ineligibility.

{11  The commissioner may specify the form for the health
carrier's notice of initial determination under this
subsection and any supporting information to be
included in the notice.

{(2)  The notice of initial determination shall include a
statement informing the covered person and the
covered person's authorized representative that a
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. health carrier's initial determination that the external
review request is ineligible for review may be
appealed to the commissioner.

The commissioner may determine that a request is
eligible for external review under section 26.1-36.6-06
notwithstanding a health carrier's initial determination
that the request is ineligible and require that it be
referred for external review.

[
S

(2) In making a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in accordance
with the terms of the covered person's health benefit
plan and shall be subject to all applicable provisions
of this chapter.

Whenever the commissioner receives a notice that a request
is eligible for external review following the preliminary review
conducted pursuant to subsection 3, within one business day
after the date of receipt of the notice, the commissioner
shall:

|
|

(1)  Assign an independent review organization from the
list of approved independent review organizations
compiled and maintained by the commissioner
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10 to conduct the
external review and notify the health carrier of the
name of the assigned independent review

organization; and

{2) Notify in writing the covered person and the covered
person's authorized representative of the request's
eligibility and acceptance for external review.

=

In_reaching a decision, the assigned independent review
organization is not bound by any decisions or conclusions

reached during the health carrier's utilization review process
as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.7 or the health carrier's
internal grievance process as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

The commissioner shall include in the notice provided to the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative a statement that the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative may submit in
writing to the assigned independent review organization
within five business days following the date of receipt of the

[©
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notice provided pursuant to subdivision a additional

information that the independent review organization shali

consider when conducting the external review.The

independent review organization is not required to, but may,

accept and consider additional information submitted after

five business days.

Within five business days after the date of receipt of the

notice provided pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 4,
the health carrier or its designee utilization review

organization shall provide to the assigned independent
review organization the documents and any information

considered in making the adverse determination or final
adverse determination.

Except as provided in subdivision c, failure by the health
carrier or its utilization review organization to provide the
documents and information within the time specified in
subdivision a shall not delay the conduct of the external
review.

(1)  If the health carrier or its utilization review
organization fails to provide the documents and
information within the time specified in subdivision a,
the assigned independent review organization may
terminate the external review and make a decision to
reverse the adverse determination or final adverse
determination.

(2)  Within one business day after making the decision
under paragraph 1, the independent review
organization shall notify the covered person and the
covered person's authorized representative, the
health carrier, and the commissioner.

The assigned independent review organization shall review
all of the information and documents received pursuant to
subsection 5 and any other information submitted in writing
to the independent review organization by the covered

person or the covered person's authorized representative
pursuant to subdivision ¢ of subsection 4.

Upon receipt of any information submitted by the covered

person or the covered person's authorized representative
pursuant to subdivision ¢ of subsection 4, the assigned
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independent review organization shall within one business

day forward the information to the health carrier.

Upon receipt of the information, if any, required to be
forwarded pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 6, the
heaith carrier may reconsider its adverse determination or
final adverse determination that is the subject of the external
review.

Reconsideration by the health carrier of its adverse
determination or final adverse determination pursuant to
subdivision a shall not delay or terminate the external
review.

The external review may only be terminated if the health
carrier decides, upon completion of its reconsideration, to
reverse its adverse determination or final adverse
determination and provide coverage or payment for the
health care service that is the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

(1)  Within one business day after making the decision to
reverse its adverse determination or final adverse
determination, as provided in subdivision ¢, the health
carrier shall notify the covered person and the
covered person's authorized representative, the

assigned independent review organization, and the
commissioner in writing of its decision.

{2) The assigned independent review organization shall
terminate the external review upon receipt of the

notice from the health carrier sent pursuant to
paragraph 1.

In addition to the documents and information provided pursuant to

subsection 5, the assigned independent review organization, to the

extent the information or documents are available and the

independent review organization considers them appropriate, shall

consider the following in reaching a decision:

IS
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The covered person's medical records:

The attending health care professional's recommendation:

Consulting_reports from appropriate health care
professionals and other documents submitted by the health
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carrier, covered person, the covered person's authorized

representative, or the covered person's treating provider;

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health

benefit plan with the health carrier to ensure that the

independent review organization's decision is not contrary to

the terms of coverage under the covered person's health
benefit plan with the health carrier;

The most appropriate practice quidelines, which shall include
applicable evidence-based standards and may include any
other practice guidelines developed by the federal
government, national or professional medical societies,
boards, and associations;

Any applicable clinical review criteria developed and used by
the health carrier or its designee utilization review
Qrganization; and

The opinion of the independent review organization's clinical
reviewer or reviewers after considering subdivisions a
through f to the extent the information or documents are
available and the clinical reviewer or reviewers consider

appropriate.

Within forty-five days after the date of receipt of the request
for an external review, the assigned independent review
organization shall provide written notice of its decision to
uphold or reverse the adverse determination or the final
adverse determination to:

(1) The covered person;

{(2) If applicable, the covered person's authorized
representative;

(3} The health carrier; and

(4) The commissioner.

The independent review organization shall include in the
notice sent pursuant to subdivision a:

(1) A general description of the reason for the request for
external review:;
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(2)  The date the independent review organization
received the assignment from the commissioner to
conduct the external review;

(3) The date the external review was conducted;

(4) The date of its decision;

(8) The principal reason or reasons for its decision,

including what applicable, if any, evidence-based
standards were a basis for its decision;

(6) The rationale for its decision; and

(7) References to the evidence or documentation,
including the evidence-based standards, considered
in reaching its decision.

Upon receipt of a notice of a decision pursuant to subdivision
a reversing the adverse determination or final adverse
determination, the health carrier immediately shall approve
the coverage that was the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

|©

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent
review organization to conduct an external review in accordance
with this section shall be done on a random basis among those
approved independent review organizations qualified to conduct the
particular external review based on the nature of the health care
service that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination and other circumstances, including conflict
of interest concerns pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-11.

26.1-36.6-07. Expedited external review.

1,

Except as provided in subsection 5, a covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative may make a request for
an expedited external review with the commissioner at the time the
covered person receives:

a. An adverse determination if:

(1} The adverse determination involves a medical
condition of the covered person for which the
timeframe for completion of an expedited internal
review of a grievance involving an adverse
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determination set forth in section 26.1-36.8-06 would
seriously jeopardize the life or heaith of the covered
person or would jeopardize the covered person's
ability to regain maximum function: and

(2) The covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative has filed a request for an
expedited review of a grievance involving an adverse
determination as set forth in section 26.1-36.8-06; or

A final adverse determination:

(&) If the covered person has a medical condition and the
timeframe for completion of a standard external
review pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-06 would
seriously jeopardize the life or heaith of the covered
person or would jeopardize the covered person’s
ability to regain maximum function; or

(2)  If the final adverse determination concerns an
admission, availability of care, continued stay, or
health care service for which the covered person

received emergency services, but has not been
discharged from a facility.

Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external review,
the commissioner immediately shall send a copy of the
request to the health carrier.

immediately upon receipt of the request pursuant to
subdivision a, the health carrier shall determine whether the
request meets the reviewability requirements set forth in
section 26.1-36.6-06.The health carrier shall immediately
notify the commissioner and the covered person and the

covered person's authorized representative of its eligibility
determination.

(1)  The commissioner may specify the form for the health
carrier's notice of initial determination under this
subsection and any supporting information to be
included in the notice.

(2) The notice of initial determination shall include a
statement informing the covered person and, if

applicable, the covered person's authorized
representative that a health carrier's initial

21



|

>

determination that an external review request is
ineligible for review may be appealed to the
commissioner.

The commissioner may determine that a request is
eligible for external review under section 26.1-36.6-06
notwithstanding a health carrier's initial determination
that the request is ineligible and require that it be
referred for external review.

(=3
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{2) In making a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in accordance
with the terms of the covered person's health benefit

plan and shall be subject to all applicable provisions
of this chapter.

Upon receipt of the notice that the request meets the
reviewability requirements, the commissioner immediately
shall assign an independent review organization to conduct
the expedited external review from the list of approved

independent review organizations compiled and maintained
by the commissioner pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10.The

commissioner shall immediately notify the health carrier of
the name of the assigned independent review organization.

@

™

In reaching a decision in accordance with subsection §, the
assigned independent review organization is not bound by
any decisions or conclusions reached during the health
carrier's utilization review process as set forth in chapter
26.1-36.7 or the health carrier's internal grievance process
as set forth in 26.1-36.8.

Upon receipt of the notice from the commissioner of the name of
the independent review organization assigned to conduct the
expedited external review pursuant to subdivision e of subsection 2,
the health carrier or its designee utilization review organization shall
provide or transmit all necessary documents and information
considered in making the adverse determination or final adverse
determination to the assigned independent review organization
electronically or by telephone or facsimile or any other available
expeditious method.

In addition to the documents and information provided or
transmitted pursuant to subsection 3, the assigned independent
review organization, to the extent the information or documents are
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available and the independent review organization considers them

appropriate, shall consider the following in reaching a decision:
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The covered person's pertinent medical records;

The attending health care professional's recommendation;

Consulting reports from appropriate health care
professionals and other documents submitted by the health
carrier, covered person, the covered person's authorized
representative, or the covered person's treating provider;

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health
benefit plan with the health carrier to ensure that the
independent review organization's decision is not contrary to
the terms of coverage under the covered person's health
benefit plan with the health carrier;

The most appropriate practice guidelines, which shall include
evidence-based standards, and may include any other
practice guidelines developed by the federal government,
national or professional medical societies, boards, and
associations;

Any applicable clinical review criteria developed and used by
the health carrier or its designee utilization review
organization in making adverse determinations; and

The opinion of the independent review organization's clinical
reviewer or reviewers after considering subdivisions a

through f to the extent the information and documents are
available and the clinical reviewer or reviewers consider

appropriate.

As expeditiously as the covered person's medical condition
or circumstances requires, but in no event more than
seventy-two hours after the date of receipt of the request for
an expedited external review that meets the reviewability
requirements set forth in section 26.1-36.6-06, the assigned
independent review organization shall:

{1)  Make a decision to uphold or reverse the adverse
determination or final adverse determination; and
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. {2)  Notify the covered person and the covered person's
authorized representative, the health carrier, and the
commissioner of the decision.

[©

If the notice provided pursuant to subdivision a was not in
writing, within forty-eight hours after the date of providing
that notice, the assigned independent review organization
shall;

(1)  Provide written confirmation of the decision to the
covered person, if applicable, the covered person's
authorized representative the health carrier, and the
commissioner; and

(2) include the information set forth in subdivision b of
subsection 9 of section 26.1-36.6-06.

Upon receipt of the notice of a decision pursuant to
paragraph 1 reversing the adverse determination or final
adverse determination, the health carrier immediateiy shall
approve the coverage that was the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

[

. 6.  An expedited external review may not be provided for retrospective
adverse or final adverse determinations.

[~

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent
review organization to conduct an external review in accordance
with this section shall be done on a random basis among those
approved independent review organizations qualified to conduct the
particular external review based on the nature of the health care
service that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination and other circumstances, including conflict
of interest concerns pursuant to subsection 4 of section 26.1-36.6-
11.

26.1-36.6-08. External review of experimental or investigational
treatment adverse determinations.

1. a. Within four months after the date of receipt of a notice of an
adverse determination or final adverse determination
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-03 that involves a denial of

coverage based on a determination that the health care
service or treatment recommended or requested is

experimental or investigational, a covered person or the
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. covered person's authorized representative may file a
request for external review with the commissioner.

=

(1)  Acovered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may make an oral request for an
expedited external review of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination pursuant
to subdivision a if the covered person's treating
physician certifies, in writing, that the recommended
or requested health care service or treatment that is
the subject of the request would be significantly less
effective if not promptly initiated.

{(2) Upon receipt of a request for an expedited external
review, t he commissioner immediately shall notify the
health carrier.

{3) (a) Upon notice of the request for expedited
- external review, the health carrier immediately
shall determine whether the request meets the
reviewability requirements of subsection 2. The
health carrier shall immediately notify the
commissioner and the covered person and the
. covered person's authorized representative of

its eligibility determination.

(b)  The commissioner may specify the form for the
health carrier's notice of initial determination
under subparagraph a and any supporting
information to be included in the notice.

{¢) The notice of initial determination under
subparagraph a shall include a statement
informing the covered person and the covered
person's authorized representative that a
health carrier's initial determination that the
external review request is ineligible for review
may be appealed to the commissioner.

(4) (a) The commissioner may determine that a
reguest is eligible for external review under
subdivision b of subsection 2 notwithstanding a
health carrier's initial determination the request
is ineligible and require that it be referred for
external review.
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(b} In_making a determination under subparagraph
a, the commissioner's decision shall be made
in accordance with the terms of the covered
person’s health benefit plan and shall be
subject to all applicable provisions of this

chapter.

Upon receipt of the notice that the expedited external
review request meets the reviewability requirements
of subdivision b of subsection 2, the commissioner
immediately shall assign an independent review
organization to review the expedited request from the
list of approved independent review organizations
compiled and maintained by the commissioner
pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10 and notify the health
carrier of the name of the assigned independent
review organization.

At the time the health carrier receives the notice of the
assigned independent review organization pursuant to
paragraph 5, the health carrier or its designee
utilization review organization shall provide or transmit
all necessary documents and information considered
in making the adverse determination or final adverse
determination to the assigned independent review
organization electronically or by telephone or
facsimile or any other available expeditious method.

Except for a request for an expedited external review made

pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 1, within one

business day after the date of receipt of the request, the

commissioner receives a request for an external review, the

commissioner shall notify the heaith carrier.

Within five business days following the date of receipt of the

notice sent pursuant to subdivision a, the health carrier shall
conduct and complete a preliminary review of the request to

determine whether:

M

The individual is or was a covered person in the
health benefit plan at the time the health care service
or treatment was recommended or requested or, in

the case of a retrospective review, was a covered
person in the health benefit plan at the time the health

care service or treatment was provided;
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. (2) The recommended or requested health care service
or treatment that is the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination:

(a) Is a covered benefit under the covered
person's health benefit plan except for the
health carrier's determination that the service
or treatment is experimental or investigational
for a particular medical condition; and

{(b) Is not explicitly listed as an excluded benefit
under the covered person's health benefit plan
with the health carrier;

(3) The covered person's treating physician has certified
that one of the following situations is applicable:

{(a) Standard health care services or treatments
have not been effective in improving the
condition of the covered person:

{b) Standard heaith care services or treatments
are not medically appropriate for the covered
person; or

{c) There is no available standard health care
service or treatment covered by the healith
carrier that is more beneficial than the
recommended or requested health care service
or treatment described in paragraph 4;

4) The covered person's treating physician:

(a) Has recommended a health care service or
treatment that the physician certifies, in writing,
is likely to be more beneficial to the covered
person, in the physician's opinion, than any
available standard health care services or
treatments; or

{b) Whois a licensed, board-certified or board-
eligible physician qualified to practice in the
area of medicine appropriate to treat the
covered person's condition, has certified in
writing that scientifically valid studies using

accepted protocols demonstrate that the health
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care service or treatment requested by the
covered person that is the subject of the
adverse determination or final adverse
determination is likely to be more beneficiai to
the covered person than any available
standard health care services or treatments;

The covered person has exhausted the heaith
carrier's internal grievance process as set forth in
chapter 26.1-36.8 unless the covered person is not
required to exhaust the health carrier's_internal

grievance process pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-05;
and

The covered person has provided all the information
and forms required by the commissioner that are
necessary to process an external review, including
the release form provided under subsection 2 of
section 26.1-36.6-03.

Within one business day after completion of the preliminary

review, the health carrier shall notify the commissioner and

the covered person and the covered person's authorized

representative in writing whether:

)]
(2)

The request is complete; and

The request is eligible for external review.

If the request:

M

Is not complete, the health carrier shall inform in
writing the commissioner and the covered person and
the covered person's authorized representative and
include in the notice what information or materials are
needed to make the request complete; or

Is not eligible for external review, the health carrier
shall inform the covered person, the covered person's
authorized representative, and the commissioner in
writing and include in the notice the reasons for its

ineligibility.

The commissioner may specify the form for the health
carrier's notice of initial determination under
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. subdivision b and any supporting information to be
included in the notice.

(2)  The notice of initial determination provided under
subdivision b shall include a statement informing the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative that a health carrier's initial
determination that the external review request is
ineligible for review may be appealed to the
commissioner.

The commissioner may determine that a request is
eligible for external review under subdivision b of
subsection 2 notwithstanding a health carrier's initial
determination that the request is ineligible and require
that it be referred for external review.

=3
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{2) In making a determination under paragraph 1, the
commissioner's decision shall be made in accordance
with the terms of the covered person's health benefit
plan and shall be subject to all applicable provisions
of this chapter.

. e. Whenever a request for external review is determined
eligible for external review, the health carrier shall notify the
commissioner and the covered person and the covered
person's authorized representative.

Within one business day after the receipt of the notice from
the health carrier that the external review request is eligible
for external review pursuant to paragraph 4 of subdivision b
of subsection 1 or subdivision e of subsection 3, the
commissioner shall:

|~
|m

{1}  Assign an independent review crganization to conduct
the external review from the list of approved
independent review organizations compiled and
maintained by the commissioner pursuant to section
26.1-36.6-10 and notify the health carrier of the name
of the assighed independent review organization; and

{2) Notify in writing the covered person and the covered
person's authorized representative of the request's
eligibility and acceptance for external review.
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The commissioner shall include in the notice provided to the
covered person and the covered person's authorized
representative a statement that the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative may submit in
writing to the assigned independent review organization
within five business days following the date of receipt of the
notice provided pursuant to subdivision a additional
information that the independent review organization shall
consider when conducting the external review.The
independent review organization is not required_to, but may,
accept and consider additional information submitted after
five business days.

Within one business day after the receipt of the notice of
assignment to conduct the external review pursuant to
subdivision a, the assigned independent review organization
shall:

(1)  Select one or more clinical reviewers, as it determines

is appropriate, pursuant to subdivision d to conduct
the external review; and

(2) Based on the opinion of the clinical reviewer, or
opinions if more than one clinical reviewer has been

selected to conduct the external review, make a
decision to uphold or reverse the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

(1) Inselecting clinical reviewers pursuant to paragraph_1
of subdivision ¢, the assigned independent review
organization shall select physicians or other health
care professionals who meet the minimum
qualifications described in section 26.1-36.6-11 and,
through clinical experience in the past three years,
are experts in the treatment of the covered person's
condition and knowledgeable about the
recommended or requested health care service or
treatment.

{2}  Neither the covered person, the covered person's
authorized representative, nor the health carrier may
choose or control the choice of the physicians or other
health care professionals to be selected to conduct
the external review.
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In accordance with subsection 8, each clinical reviewer shall
provide a written opinion to the assigned independent review
organization on whether the recommended or requested

health care service or treatment should be covered.

In reaching an opinion, clinical reviewers are not bound by
any decisions or conclusions reached during the health
carrier's utilization review process as set forth in chapter
26.1-36.7 or the health carrier's internal grievance process
as set forth in chapter 26.1-36.8.

Within five business days after the date of receipt of the
notice provided pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 4,

the health carrier or its designee utilization review
organization shall provide to the assigned independent
review organization the documents and any information
considered in making the adverse determination or the final
adverse determination.

Except as provided in subdivision ¢, failure by the health
carrier or its designee utilization review organization to
provide the documents and information within the time
specified in subdivision a shall not delay the conduct of the
external review.

{1) lfthe health carrier or its designee utilization review
organization has failed to provide the documents and
information within the time specified in subdivision a,
the assigned independent review organization may
terminate the external review and make a decision_to
reverse the adverse determination or final adverse
determination.

(2) Immediately ug'on making the decision under
paragraph 1, the independent review organization

shall notify the covered person, the covered person's
authorized representative, if applicable, the health
carrier, and the commissioner.

Each clinical reviewer selected pursuant to subsection 4
shall review all of the information and documents received
pursuant to subsection 5 and any other information
submitted in writing by the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative pursuant to subdivision b
of subsection 4.
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Upon receipt of any information submitted by the covered
person_or the covered person's authorized representative
pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 4, within one
business day after the receipt of the information, the

assigned independent review organization shall forward the
information to the health carrier.

Upon receipt of the information required to be forwarded
pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 6, the health carrier
may reconsider its adverse determination or fina!l adverse
determination that is the subject of the external review.

Reconsideration by the health carrier of its adverse
determination or final adverse determination pursuant to
subdivision a shall not delay or terminate the external
review.

The external review may be terminated only if the healith
carrier decides, upon completion of its reconsideration, to
reverse its adverse determination or final adverse
determination and provide coverage or payment for the
recommended or requested health care service or treatment

that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination.

(1) Immediately upon making the decision to reverse its
adverse determination or final adverse determination,
as provided in subdivision ¢, the health carrier shall
notify the covered person, the covered person's
authorized representative, the assigned independent
review organization, and the commissioner in writing
of its decision.

{2) The assigned independent review organization shall
terminate the external review upon receipt of the
notice from the health carrier sent pursuant to

paragraph 1.

Except as provided in subdivision ¢, within twenty days after
being selected in accordance with subsection 4 to conduct
the external review, each clinical reviewer shall provide an
opinion to the assigned independent review orqanization
pursuant to subsection 9 on whether the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment should be
covered.
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Except for an opinion provided pursuant to subdivision ¢,
each clinical reviewer's opinion shall be in writing and
include the following information:

|O'

(1) A description of the covered person's medical
condition;

(2)  Adescription of the indicators relevant to determining
whether there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate
that the recommended or requested health care
service or treatment is more likely than not to be
beneficial to the covered person than any available
standard health care services or treatments and the
adverse risks of the recommended or requested
health care service or treatment would not be

substantially increased over those of available
standard health care services or treatments:

(3)  Adescription and analysis of any medical or scientific
evidence, as that term is defined in subsection 30 of
section 26.1-36.6-01, considered in reaching the

opinion;

. (4) A description and analysis of any evidence-based
standard, as that term is defined in subsection 19 of
section 26.1-36.6-01; and

{(5) Information on whether the reviewer's rationale for the
opinion is based on paraaraph 1 or 2 of subdivision e
of subsection 9.

For an expedited external review, each clinical
reviewer shall provide an opinion orally or in writing to
the assigned independent review organization as
expeditiously as the covered person's medical
condition or circumstances requires, but in no event
more than five calendar days after being selected in
accordance with subsection 4.

jo
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(2) If the opinion provided pursuant to paragraph 1 was
not in writing, within forty-eight hours following the
date the opinion was provided, the clinical reviewer
shall provide written confirmation of the opinion to the

assigned independent review organization and
inctude the information required under subdivision b.
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In_addition to the documents and information_provided pursuant to
subsection 1 or 5, each clinical reviewer selected pursuant to
subsection 4, to the extent the information or documents are
available and the reviewer considers appropriate, shall consider the

following in reaching an opinion pursuant to subsection 8:

|©

The covered person's pertinent medical records;

|

=

The attending physician or health care professional's
recommendation:

14

Consulting reports from appropriate health care
professionals and other documents submitted by the health

carrier, covered person, the covered person's authorized
representative, or the covered person's treating physician or

health care professional:

=

The terms of coverage under the covered person's health
benefit plan with the health carrier to ensure that, but for the
health carrier's determination that the recommended or
requested health care service or treatment that is the subject
of the opinion is experimental or investigational, the

reviewer's opinion is not contrary to the terms of coverage
. under the covered person's health benefit plan with the
health carrier; and

|®

Whether:

(1}  The recommended or requested health care service
or treatment has been approved by the federal food
and drug administration, if applicable, for the
condition: or

{2) Medical or scientific evidence or evidence-based
standards demonstrate that the expected benefits of
the recommended or requested health care service or
treatment is more likely than not to be beneficial to the
covered person than any available standard health
care service or treatment and the adverse risks of the
recommended or requested health care service or
treatment would not be substantially increased over
those of available standard health care services or
treatments.

10. a. (1)  Except as provided in paragraph 2, within twenty days
after the date it receives the opinion of each clinical
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reviewer pursuant to subsection 9, the assigned
independent review organization, in accordance with
subdivision b, shall make a decision and provide
written notice of the decision to:

(a) The covered person;

If applicable, the covered person's authorized
representative:;

The health carrier; and

(b)
()
(d) The commissioner.
(a

For an expedited external review, within forty-
eight hours after the date it receives the
opinion of each clinical reviewer pursuant to
subsection 9, the assigned independent review
organization, in accordance with subdivision b,
shall make a decision and provide notice of the
decision orally or in writing to the persons listed
in paragraph 1.

(b) If the notice provided under subparagraph b
was not in writing, within forty-eight hours after
the date of providing that notice, the assigned
independent review organization shall provide
written confirmation of the decision to the
persons listed in paragraph 1 and include the
information set forth in subdivision c.

If a majority of the clinical reviewers recommend that

the recommended or requested health care service or

treatment should be covered, the independent review

organization shall make a decision to reverse the

health carrier's adverse determination or final adverse

determination.

If a majority of the clinical reviewers recommend that

the recommended or requested health care service or

treatment should not be covered, the independent

review organization shall make a decision to uphold

the health carrier's adverse determination or final

adverse determination.
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{a) Ifthe clinical reviewers are evenly split as to
whether the recommended or requested health
care service or treatment should be covered,
the independent review organization shall
obtain the opinion of an additional clinical
reviewer in order for the independent review
organization to make a decision based on the
opinions of a majority of the clinical reviewers
pursuant to paragraph 1 or 2.

(b) The additional clinical reviewer selected under
subparagraph a shall use the same information
to reach an opinion as the clinical reviewers
who have already submitted their opinions
pursuant to subsection 9.

() The selection of the additional clinical reviewer
under this subparagraph shall not extend the
time within which the assigned independent
review organization is required to make a
decision based on the opinions of the clinical
reviewers selected under subsection 4
pursuant to subdivision a.

The independent review organization shall include in the

notice provided pursuant to subdivision a:

M

(2)

ek B

A general description of the reason for the request for
external review;

The written opinion of each clinical reviewer, including
the recommendation of each clinical reviewer as to
whether the recommended or requested health care
service or treatment should be covered and the
rationale for the reviewer's recommendation;

The date the independent review organization was
assigned by the commissioner to conduct the external
review;

The date the external review was conducted:

The date of its decision;

The principal reason or reasons for its decision; and
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(7}  The rationale for its decision.
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Upon receipt of a notice of a decision pursuant to subdivision
a reversing the adverse determination or final adverse
determination, the health carrier immediately shall approve
coveraqge of the recommended or requested health care
service or treatment that was the subject of the adverse
determination or final adverse determination.

The assignment by the commissioner of an approved independent
review organization to conduct an external review in accordance
with this section shall be done on a random basis among_those
approved independent review organizations gualified to conduct the
particular external review based on the nature of the health care
service that is the subject of the adverse determination or final
adverse determination and other circumstances, including conflict
of interest concerns pursuant to subsection 4 of section 26.1-36.6-
11.

26.1-36.6-09. Binding nature of external review decision.

1

N
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An external review decision is binding on the health carrier except
to the extent the health carrier has other remedies available under
applicable state law.

An external review decision is binding_on the covered person
except to the extent the covered person has other remedies
available under applicable federal or state law.

A covered person or the covered person's authorized
representative may not file a subsequent reguest for external
review involving the same adverse determination or final adverse
determination for which the covered person has already received
an external review decision pursuant to this chapter.

26.1-36.6-10. Approval of independent review organizations.

1,

po

The commissioner shall approve independent review organizations
eligible to be assigned to conduct external reviews under this
chapter.

In order to be eligible for approval by the commissioner under this
section to conduct external reviews under this chapter an
independent review organization:
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a. Except as otherwise provided in this section, shall be
accredited by a nationally recognized private accrediting
entity that the commissioner has determined has
independent review organization accreditation standards that
are equivalent to or exceed the minimum gqualifications for
independent review organizations established under section
26.1-36.6-11; and

b. Shall submit an application for approval in accordance with
subsection 4.

The commissioner shall develop an application form for initially
approving and for reapproving independent review organizations to
conduct external reviews.

a. Any independent review organization wishing to be approved
to conduct external reviews shall submit the application form
and include with the form all documentation and information
necessary for the commissioner to determine if the
independent review organization satisfies the minimum
gualifications established under section 26.1-36.6-11.

=

(1)  Subject to paragraph 2, an independent review
organization is eligible for approval under this section
only if it is accredited by a nationally recognized
private accrediting entity that the commissioner has
determined has independent review organization
accreditation standards that are equivalent to or

exceed the minimum qualifications for independent
review organizations under section 26.1-36.6-11.

(2) The commissioner may approve independent review
orqanizations that are not accredited by a nationally

recognized private accrediting entity if there are no
acceptable nationally recognized private accrediting
entities providing independent review organization
accreditation.

The commisgsioner shall charge a fee of one hundred dollars
that independent review organizations must submit to the
commissioner with an application for initial approval.The
commissioner shall charge a fee of twenty-five dollars for

each reapproval.

134
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An approval is effective for two years, unless the
commissioner determines before its expiration that the
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. independent review organization is not satisfying the
minimum qualifications established under section 26.1-36.6-

11.

b. Whenever the commissioner determines that an
independent review organization has lost its accreditation or
no longer satisfies the minimum reqguirements established
under section 26.1-36.6-11, the commissioner shall
terminate the approval of the independent review
organization and remove the independent review
organization from the list of independent review
organizations approved to conduct external reviews under
this chapter that is maintained by the commissioner pursuant
to subsection 6.

6. The commissioner shall maintain and periodically update a list of

approved independent review organizations.

26.1-36.6-11. Minimum qualifications for independent review
organizations.

1. To be approved under section 26.1-36.6-10 to conduct external
reviews, an independent review organization shall have and
maintain written policies and procedures that govern all aspects of
both the standard external review process and the expedited

external review process set forth in this chapter that include, at a

minimum:;

a. A quality assurance mechanism_in place that:

{1}  Ensures that external reviews are conducted within
the specified timeframes and required notices are
provided in a timely manner;

(2)  Ensures the selection of qualified and impartial clinical
reviewers to conduct external reviews on behalf of the
independent review organization and suitable
matching of reviewers to specific cases and that the
independent review organization employs or contracts
with an adequate number of clinical reviewers to meet

this objective;

(3) Ensures the confidentiality of medical and treatment
records and clinical review criteria; and
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(4)  Ensures that any person employed by or under
contract with the independent review organization
adheres to the requirements of this chapter;

A toll-free telephone service to receive information on a
twenty-four-hour-day seven-day-a-week basis related to
external reviews that is capable of accepting, recording, or
providing appropriate instruction to incoming telephone
callers during other than normal business hours; and

Maintain and provide to the commissioner the information
set out in section 26.1-36.6-13.

All clinical reviewers assigned by an independent review

organization to conduct external reviews must be physicians or

other appropriate health care providers who meet the following

minimum gualifications:

.a

b.
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Be an expert in the treatment of the covered person's
medical condition that is the subject of the external review;

Be knowledgeable about the recommended health care
service or treatment through recent or current actual clinical
experience treating patients with the same or similar medical
condition of the covered person;

Hold a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States
and. for physicians, a current certification by a recognized
American medical specialty board in the area or areas
appropriate to the subject of the external review; and

Have no history of disciplinary actions or sanctions, including
loss of staff privileges or participation restrictions, that have
been taken or are pending by any hospital, governmental
agency or unit, or requlatory body that raise a substantial
question as to the clinical reviewer's physical, mental, or
professional competence or moral character.

In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1, an

independent review organization may not own or control, be a
subsidiary of or in any way be owned or controlled by, or exercise

control with a health benefit plan, a national, state, or local trade

association of health benefit plans or a national, state, or local trade
association of health care providers.
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In addition to the requirements set forth in subsections 1, 2,

and 3, to be approved pursuant to section 26.1-36.6-10 to
conduct an external review of a specified case, neither the

independent review organization selected to conduct the
external review nor any clinical reviewer assigned by the
independent organization to conduct the external review may
have a material professional, familial, or financial conflict of
interest with any of the following:

(1)  The health carrier that is the subject of the external
review;

(2) The covered person whose treatment is the subject of
the external review or the covered person's
authorized representative:

(3)  Any officer, director, or management employee of the
health carrier that is the subject of the external review;

(4) The health care provider, the health care provider's
medical group or independent practice association
recommending the health care service or treatment
that is the subject of the external review;

(8) The facility at which the recommended health care
service or treatment would be provided; or

(6) The developer or manufacturer of the principal drug,
device, procedure, or other therapy being
recommended for the covered person whose
treatment is the subject of the external review.

In determining whether an independent review organization
or a clinical reviewer of the independent review organization
has a material professional, familial, or financial conflict of
interest for purposes of subdivision a, the commissioner
shall take into consideration situations in which the
independent review organization to be assigned to conduct
an external review of a specified case or a clinical reviewer
to be assigned by the independent review organization to
conduct an external review of a specified case may have an
apparent professional, familial, or financial relationship or
connection with a person described in subdivision a, but that
the characteristics of that relationship or connection are such
that they are not a material professional, familial, or financial
conflict of interest that results in the disapproval of the
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independent review organization or the clinical reviewer from
conducting the external review.

An independent review organization that is accredited by a
nationally recognized private accrediting entity that has
independent review accreditation standards that the
commissioner has determined are equivalent to or exceed
the minimum qualifications of this section shall be presumed
in compliance with this section to be eligible for approvai
under section 26.1-38.6-10.

|
|
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The commissioner shall initially review and periodically
review the independent review organization accreditation
standards of a nationally recognized private accrediting
entity to determine whether the entity's standards are, and
continue to be, equivalent to or exceed the minimum
gualifications established under this section.The
commissioner may accept a review conducted by the
national association for insurance commissioners for the
purpose of the determination under this subdivision.

Upon request, a nationally recognized private accrediting
entity shall make its current independent review organization
accreditation standards available to the commissioner or the
national association of insurance commissioners in order for
the commissioner to determine if the entity's standards are
equivalent to or exceed the minimum qualifications
established under this section.The commissioner may

exclude any private accrediting entity that is not reviewed by
the national association of insurance commissioners.

|©
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An independent review organization shall be unbiased.An
independent review organization shall establish and maintain
written procedures to ensure that it is unbiased in_addition to any
other procedures required under this section.

26.1-36.6-12. Hold harmless for independent review organizations.No
independent review organization or clinical reviewer working on behalf of an

independent review organization or an employee, agent, or contractor of an

independent review organization shall be liable in damages to any person for any
opinions rendered or acts or omissions performed within the scope of the

organization's or person's duties under the law during or upon completion of an
external review conducted pursuant to this chapter unless the opinion was

rendered or act or omission performed in bad faith or involved gross negligence.

26.1-36.6-13. External review reporting requirements.
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An independent review organization assigned pursuant to
section 26.1-36.6-06 , 26.1-36.6-07, or 26.1-36.6-08 to
conduct an external review shall maintain written records in
the aggregate by state and by health carrier on all requests
for external review for which it conducted an external review
during a calendar year and upon request submit a report to
the commissioner as required under subdivision b.

Each independent review organization required to maintain
written records on all requests for external review pursuant
to subdivision a for which it was assigned to conduct an
external review shall submit to the commissioner, upon
request, a report in the format specified by the
commissioner.

The report shall include in the agaregate by state and for
each health carrier:

{1}  The total number of requests for external review;

{2) The number of requests for external review resolved
and, of those resolved, the humber resolved
upholding the adverse determination or final adverse
determination and the number resolved reversing the
adverse determination or final adverse determination;

The average length of time for resolution;

[

{(4) A summary of the types of coverages or cases for
which an external review was sought, as provided in

the format required by the commissioner;

(6)  The number of external reviews pursuant to
subsection 7 of section 26.1-36.6-06 that were
terminated as the result of a reconsideration by the
health carrier of its adverse determination or final
adverse determination after the receipt of additional
information from the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative; and

(6)  Any other information the commissioner may request
or require.
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The independent review organization shall retain the written

records required pursuant to this subsection for at least three
years.

IQ.

Each health carrier shall maintain written records in the
aggregate, by state and for each type of health benefit plan
offered by the health carrier on all requests for external
review that the health carrier receives notice of from the
commissioner pursuant to this chapter.

[
[
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Each health carrier required to maintain written records on
all requests for external review pursuant to subdivision a
shall submit to the commissioner, upon request, a report in
the format specified by the commissioner.

The report shall include in the aqgreqgate, by state,and by
type of health benefit plan:

|

(1)  The total number of requests for external review;

(2)  From the total number of requests for external review
reported under paragraph 1, the number of requests
. determined eligible for a full external review: and

(3)  Any other information the commissioner may request
or require.

d. The health carrier shall retain the written records required
pursuant to this subsection for at least three years.

26.1-36.6-14. Funding of external review.The health carrier against
which a request for a standard external review or an expedited external review is
filed shall pay the cost of the independent review organization for conducting the
external review.

26.1-36.6-15. Disclosure requirements.

1. a. Each health carrier shall include a description of the external
review procedures in or attached to the policy, certificate,
membership booklet, outline of coverage, or other evidence
of coverage it provides to covered persons.

=3

The disclosure required by subdivision a shall be in a format
prescribed by the commissioner.
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The description required under subsection 1 shall include a

statement that informs the covered person of the right of the

covered person to file a reguest for an external review of an
adverse determination or final adverse determination with the
commissioner. The statement may explain that external review is

available when the adverse determination or final adverse
determination involves an issue of medical necessity,
appropriateness, health care setting, level of care, or
effectiveness.The statement shall include the telephone number
and address of the commissioner.

In addition to subsection 2, the statement shall inform the covered
person that when filing a request for an external review the covered
person will be required to authorize the release of any medical
records of the covered person that may be required to be reviewed
for the purpose of reaching a decision on the external review.

26.1-36.6-16. Rulemaking.The commissioner may adopt rules to carry

out the provisions of this chapter.

26.1-36.6-17. Confidentiality. Any protected health information that the

commissioner receives pursuant to this chapter is confidential.

SECTION 5. Chapter 26.1-36.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:

26.1-36.7-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter;

1.

"Adverse determination” means:

a. A determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization that, based upon the information
provided, a request for a benefit under the health carrier's
health benefit plan upon application of any utilization review
technique does not meet the health carrier's requirements for
medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level
of care, or effectiveness or is determined to be experimental
or investigational and the requested benefit is therefore
denied, reduced, or terminated or payment is not provided or
made, in whole or in part, for the benefit;

=3

The denial, reduction, termination, or failure to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit based on a
determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization
review organization of a covered person's eligibility to
participate in the health carrier's health benefit plan;
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C. Any prospective review or retrospective review determination
that denies, reduces, or terminates or fails to provide or
make payment, in whole or in part, for a benefit; or

d. A rescission of coverage determination,

"Ambulatory review" means utilization review of health care
services performed or provided in an outpatient setting.

"Authorized representative" means:

a. A person to whom a covered person has given express

written consent to represent the covered person for
purposes of this chapter;

=

A person authorized by iaw to provide substituted consent
for a covered person;

A family member of the covered person or the covered
person's treating health care professional when the covered
person is unable to provide consent;

|©
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A health care professional when the covered person's health
benefit plan requires that a request for a benefit under the
plan be initiated by the health care professional; or

|®

In the case of an urgent care request, a health care
professional with knowledqge of the covered person's medical
condition.

"Case management” means a coordinated set of activities

conducted for individual patient management of serious,
complicated, protracted, or other health conditions.

"Certification" means a determination by a health carrier or its
designee utilization review organization that a request for a benefit
under the health carrier's health benefit plan has been reviewed
and based on the information provided satisfies the health carrier's
requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness, health care
setting, level of care, and effectiveness.

"Clinical peer” means a physician or other health care professional

who holds a nonrestricted license in a state of the United States

and in the same or similar specialty as typically manages the

medical condition, procedure, or treatment under review.
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"Clinical review criteria" means the written screening procedures,
decision abstracts, clinical protocols, and practice guidelines used
by the health carrier to determine the medical necessity and
appropriateness of health care services.

"Commissioner” means the insurance commissioner.

"Concurrent review" means utilization review conducted during a
patient's stay or course of treatment in a facility, the office of a
health care professional, or other inpatient or outpatient health care

setting.

"Covered benefits" or "benefits" means those health care services
to which a covered person is entitled under the terms of a health

benefit plan.

"Covered person” means a policyholder, subscriber, enrollee, or
other individual participating in a health benefit plan.

"Discharge planning” means the formal process for determining
prior to discharge from a facility the coordination and management
of the care that a patient receives following discharge from a
facility.

"Emergency medical condition” means a medical condition
manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including
severe pain, such that a prudent layperson, who possesses an
average knowledge of health and medicine, could reasonably
expect that the absence of immediate medical attention would
result in serious impairment to bodily functions or serious
dysfunction of a bodily organ or part or would place the person's
health or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the
woman or her unborn child, in serious jeopardy.

"Emergency services" means, with respect to an emergency
medical condition:

a. A medical screening examination that is within the capability
of the emergency department of a hospital, including
ancillary services routinely available to the emergency
department to evaluate such emergency medical condition;
and
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. b. Such further medical examination and treatment, to the
extent they are within the capability of the staff and facilities
available at a hospital, to stabilize a patient.

15 "Facility" means an institution providing health care services or a
health care setting, including hospitals and other licensed inpatient
centers,ambulatory surgical, or treatment centers, skilled nursing
centers, residential treatment centers, diagnostic, laboratory and
imaging centers, and rehabilitation and other therapeutic health

settings.

16. a. "Health benefit plan" means a policy, contract, certificate, or
agreement entered into, offered, or issued by a health carrier
to provide, deliver, arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of
the costs of health care services.

I

"Health benefit plan” includes short-term and catastrophic
health insurance policies and a policy that pays on a cost-
incurred basis, except as otherwise specifically exempted in
this definition.

"Health benefit plan" does not include:

[

. (1)  Coverage only for accident or disability income
insurance, or any combination thereof;

2) Qoverage issued as a supplement to liability
insurance;

(3) Liability insurance, including general liability insurance
and automobile liability insurance;

(4) Workers' compensation or similar insurance;

(5) Automobile medical payment insurance;

(6) Credit-only insurance;

{7}  Coverage for onsite medical clinics; and

(8)  Other similar insurance coverage, specified in federal

regulations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub.L.104-
191], under which benefits for medical care are
secondary or incidental to other insurance benefits.
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"Health benefit plan” does not include the following benefits
if they are provided under a separate policy, certificate, or
contract of insurance or are otherwise not an integral part of

the plan:

{1) Limited scope dental or vision benefits;

{(2) Benefits for long-term care, nursing home care, home
health care, community-based care, or any
combination thereof; or

(3) Other similar, limited benefits specified in federal
requlations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub.L.104-

191].

"Health benefit plan" does not include the following benefits
if the benefits are provided under a separate policy,
certificate, or contract of insurance, there is ho coordination
between the provision_of the benefits and any exclusion of
benefits under any group health plan maintained by the
same plan sponsor, and the benefits are paid with respect to
an event without regard to whether benefits are provided
with respect to such an event under any group health plan
maintained by the same plan sponsor:

(1)  Coverage only for a specified disease or illness; or

(2) Hospital indemnity or other fixed indemnity insurance.

"Health benefit plan” does not include the following if offered
as a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance:

{1) Medicare supplemental health insurance as defined
under section 1882(qg)(1)of the Social Security Act;

{(2) Coverage supplemental to the coverage provided
under chapter 55 of title 10, United States Code
{civilian health and medical program of the uniformed
services (CHAMPUS)): or

(3) Similar supplemental coverage provided to coverage
under a group health plan.
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"Health care professional" means a physician or other health care
practitioner licensed, accredited, or certified to perform specified
health care services consistent with state law.

"Health care provider" or "provider' means a health care
professional or a facility.

"Health care services" means services for the diagnosis,
prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition__illness,
injury, or disease.

'Health carrier” means an entity subject to the insurance laws and
requlations of this state, or subject to the jurisdiction of the

commissioner that contracts or offers to contract to provide, deliver,
arrange for, pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care
services, including a sickness and accident insurance company, a
health maintenance organization, a nonprofit hospital and health
service corporation, or any other entity providing a plan of health
insurance, health benefits, or health care services.

"Managed care pian" means a health benefit plan that either
requires a covered person to use, or creates incentives, including
financial incentives, for a covered person to use health care
providers managed, owned, under contract with, or employed by
the health carrier.

"Network" means the group of participating providers providing
services to a managed care plan.

"Participating provider" means a provider who under a contract with
the health carrier or with its contractor or subcontractor has agreed
to provide health care services to covered persons with an
expectation of receiving payment other than coinsurance,
copayments, or deductibles, directly or indirectly from the health
carrier.

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an
association, a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an
unincorporated organization, any similar entity, or any combination
of the foregoing.

"Prospective review" means utilization review conducted prior to an
admission or the provision of a health care service or a course of
treatment in accordance with a health carrier's requirement that the
health care service or course of treatment, in whole or in part, be
approved prior to its provision.
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"Rescission" means a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage
under a health benefit plan that has a retroactive effect.Rescission
does not include a cancellation or discontinuance of coverage
under a health benefit plan if:

a. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage has only a
prospective effect; or

b. The cancellation or discontinuance of coverage is effective
retroactively to the extent it is attributable to a failure to
timely pay required premiums or contributions toward the
cost of coverage.

a. "Retrospective review" means any review of a request for a
benefit that is not a prospective review request.
b. "Retrospective review" does not include the review of a claim

that is limited to veracity of documentation or accuracy of
coding.

"Second opinion" means an opportunity or requirement to obtain a
clinical evaluation by a provider other than the one originally
making a recommendation for a proposed health care service to
assess the medical necessity and appropriateness of the initial
proposed health care service.

"Stabilized" means, with respect to an emergency medical
condition, that no material deterioration of the condition is likely,
within reasonable medical probability, to result from or occur during
the transfer of the individual from a facility or, with respect to a
pregnant woman, the woman has deiivered, including the placenta.

a. "Urgent care request” means a request for a health care
service or course of treatment with respect to which the time
periods for making a nonurgent care request determination:

(1)  Could seriously jeopardize the life or health of the
covered person or the ability of the covered person to
regain maximum function; or

(2) Inthe opinion of a physician with knowledge of the
covered person's medical condition, would subject the
covered person to severe pain that cannot be

adequately managed without the health care service
or treatment that is the subject of the request.
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Except as provided in paragraph 2, in determining

whether a request is to be treated as an urgent care
request.an individual acting on behalf of the health

carrier shall apply the judgment of a prudent
layperson who possesses an average knowledge of

health and medicine,

=2
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(2)  Any request that a physician with knowledge of the
covered person's medical condition determines is an
urgent care request within the meaning of subdivision
a must be treated as an urgent care request.

31.  "Utilization review" means a set of formal techniques designed to
monitor the use of or evaluate the medical necessity,
appropriateness, efficacy, or efficiency of health care services,
procedures, or settings. Technigues may include ambulatory review,
prospective review, second opinion, certification, concurrent review,
case management, discharge planning, or retrospective review.

32. "Utilization review organization" means an entity that conducts
utilization review other than a health carrier performing utilization

review for its own_health benefit plans.

26.1-36.7-02. Applicability and scope.This chapter shall apply to a
health carrier offering health benefit plans that provides or performs utilization
review services, to any designee of the heaith carrier or utilization review
organization that performs utilization review functions on the carrier's behalf, and
to a health carrier or its designee utilization_review organization that provides or
performs prospective review or retrospective review benefit determinations
regarding coverage provided under a nongrandfathered health benefit plan.For
purposes of this chapter, "nongrandfathered health benefit plan” means a health
benefit plan that is not exempt from the requirements of the Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act [Pub.L.111-148] and the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152] because it failed to achieve or lost
grandfathered health plan status.For purposes of this chapter, "grandfathered
health plan” has the meaning stated in the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act [Pub.l..111-148], as amended by the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub.L.111-152].

26.1-36.7-03. Corporate oversight of utilization review program.
A health carrier shall be responsible for monitoring all utilization review activities
carried out by or on behalf of the health carrier and for ensuring that all
requirements of this chapter and applicable rules are met.The health carrier aiso

shall ensure that appropriate personnel have operational responsibility for the
conduct of the health carrier's utilization review program.
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. 26.1-36.7-04. Contracting.VWhenever a health carrier contracts to have a
utilization review organization or other entity perform the utilization review
functions required by this chapter or applicable rules, the commissioner shall
hold the health carrier responsible for monitoring the_activities of the utilization
review organization or entity with which the health carrier contracts and for
ensuring that the requirements of this chapter and applicable rules are met.

26.1-36.7-05. Scope and content of utilization review program.

1. a. A health carrier that requires a request for benefits under the
covered person's health benefit plan to be subjected to

utilization review shall implement a written utilization review

program that describes all review activities and procedures,
both delegated and nondelegated for:

(1)  The filing of benefit requests;

(2)  The notification of utilization review and benefit
determinations; and

(3) The review of adverse determinations in accordance

. with chapter 26.1-36.8.

The program document shall describe the following:

isd

(1)  Procedures to evaluate the medical necessity,
appropriateness, efficacy, or efficiency of health care
services:

Data sources and clinical review criteria used in
decisionmaking;

S

[

Mechanisms to ensure consistent application of
clinical review criteria and compatible decisions:

Data collection processes and analytical methods
used in assessing utilization of heaith care services;

=

Provisions for assuring confidentiality of clinical and
proprietary information;

[

e

The organizational structure,_such as a utilization
review committee, quality assurance, or other

committee, that periodically assesses utilization
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review activities and reports to the health carrier's
governing body; and

(7)  The staff position functionally responsible for day-to-
day program management.

a. A health carrier shall file an annual summary report of its
utilization review program activities with the commissioner in
the format approved by the commissioner.

b. {1} In addition to the summary report, a health carrier

shall maintain records for a minimum of six years of
all benefit requests and claims and notices associated
with utilization review and benefit determinations
made in accordance with sections 26.1-36.7-07 and
26.1-36.7-08.

{(2) The health carrier shall make the records available for
examination by covered persons and the
commissioner and appropriate federal oversight
agencies upon reguest.

26.1-36.7-06. Operational requirements.

1.

N

|

A utilization review program shall use documented clinical review
criteria that are based on sound clinical evidence and are evaluated
periodically to assure ongoing efficacy.A health carrier may develop
its own clinical review criteria or it may purchase or license clinical
review criteria from qualified vendors.A health carrier shall make
available its clinical review criteria upon request to the
commissioner.

Qualified heaith care professionals shall administer the utilization
review program and oversee utilization review decisions.A clinical
peer shall evaluate the clinical appropriateness of adverse
determinations.

a. A health carrier shail issue utilization review and benefit
determinations in a timely manner pursuant to the
requirements of sections 26.1-36.7-07 and 26.1-36.7-08.

1=

(1)  Whenever a health carrier fails to strictly adhere to the
requirements of sections 26.1-36.7-07 or 26.1-36.7-08
with respect to making utilization review and benefit
determinations of a benefit request or claim, the
covered person shall be deemed to have exhausted
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the provisions of this chapter and may take action

under paragraph 2 regardless of whether the health
carrier asserts that it substantially complied with the
requirements of sections 26.1-36.7-07 or 26.1-36.7-

08, as applicable _or that any error it committed was
de minimis.

{2) (a) A covered person may file a request for
external review in accordance with the
procedures outlined in chapter 26.1-36.6.

(b) In addition, a covered person is entitled to
pursue any available remedies under state or
federal law on the basis that the health carrier
failed to provide a reasonable internal claims

and appeals process that would yield a
decision on the merits of the claim.

A health carrier shall have a process to ensure that utilization
reviewers apply clinical review criteria consistently in conducting
utilization review.

A health carrier shall routinely assess the effectiveness and
efficiency of its utilization review program.

A health carrier's data systems shall be sufficient to support
utilization review program activities and to generate management
reports to enable the health carrier to monitor and manage health
care services effectively.

If a health carrier delegates any utilization review activities to a

utilization review organization, the health carrier shall maintain
adequate oversight, which must include:

a. A written description of the utilization review organization's
activities and responsibilities, including reporting
requirements;

b. Evidence of formal approval of the utilization review
organization program by the health carrier; and

c. A process by which the health carrier evaluates the
performance of the utilization review organization.

The health carrier shall coordinate the utilization review program
with other medical management activity conducted by the carrier,
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such as quality assurance, credentialing, provider contracting, data
reporting, grievance procedures, processes for assessing member
satisfaction, and risk management.

A health carrier shall provide covered persons and participating
providers with access to its review staff by a toll-free number or
collect call telephone line.

When conducting utilization review, the health carrier shall collect
only the information necessary, including pertinent clinical
information, to make the utilization review or benefit determination.

a. In conducting utilization review, the health carrier shall
ensure that the review is conducted in a manner to ensure
the independence and impartiality of the individuals involved
in making the utilization review or benefit determination.

In ensuring the independence and impariiality of individuals
involved in making the utilization review or benefit
determination, the health carrier may not make decisions
regarding hiring, compensation, termination, promotion, or
other similar matters based upon the likelihood that the

individual will support the denial of benefits.

o

26.1-36.7-07. Procedures for standard utilization review and benefit

1

determinations.

A health carrier shall maintain written procedures pursuant to this
section for making standard utilization review and benefit

determinations on requests submitted to the health carrier by
covered persons or their authorized representatives for benefits
and for notifying covered persons and their authorized

representatives of its determinations with respect to these requests

within the specified timeframes required under this section.

a. (1}  Subject to paragraph 2, for prospective review
determinations, a health carrier shall make the
determination and notify the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative of the
determination, whether the carrier certifies the
provision of the benefit or not, within a reasonable
period of time appropriate to the covered person's
medical condition but in no event later than fifteen
days after the date the heaith carrier receives the
request.Whenever the determination is an adverse
determination, the health carrier shall make the
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notification of the adverse determination in
accordance with subsection 6.

The time period for making a determination and
notifying the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the determination
pursuant to paragraph 1 may be extended one time
by the health carrier for up to fifteen days, provided
the health carrier:

(a) Determines that an extension is necessary due
to matters beyond the health carrier's control.
and

(b) Notifies the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative, prior to the
expiration of the initial fifteen-day time period,
of the circumstances requiring the extension of
time and the date by which the health carrier
expects to make a determination.

If the extension under paragraph 2 is necessary due
to the failure of the covered person or the covered

person's authorized representative to submit
information necessary to reach a determination on the
request, the notice of extension shall:

(@) Specifically describe the required information
necessary to complete the request; and

(b)  Give the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative at least
forty-five days from the date of receipt of the
notice to provide the specified information.

Whenever the health carrier receives a prospective
review request from a covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative that fails to meet
the health carrier's filing procedures, the health carrier
shall notify the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative of this failure and
provide in the notice information on the proper

procedures to be followed for filing a request.

{a) = The notice required under paragraph 1 shali be
provided as soon as possible but in no event
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. later than five days following the date of the
failure.

{b)  The health carrier may provide the notice orally
or, if requested by the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative, in
writing.

(3)  The provisions of this paragraph apply only in the
case of a failure that:

{@a) Is a communication by a covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative
that is received by a person or organizational
unit of the health carrier responsible for
handling benefit matters; and

(b) Is a communication that refers to a specific
covered person, a specific medical condition or
symptom, and a specific health care service,
treatment, or provider for which certification is
being requested.

. 3. a. For concurrent review determinations, if a health carrier has
certified an ongoing course of treatment to be provided over
a period of time or number of treatments:

(1)  Any reduction or termination by the health carrier
during the course of treatment before the end of the
period or number treatments, other than by health
benefit plan amendment or termination of the health

benefit plan, shall constitute an adverse
determination; and

{2)  The health carrier shall notify the covered person of
the adverse determination in accordance with
subsection 6 at a time sufficiently in advance of the
reduction or termination to allow the covered person
or the covered person's authorized representative to
file a grievance to request a review of the adverse
determination pursuant to chapter 26.1-36.8 and
obtain a determination with respect to that review of
the adverse determination before the benefit is
reduced or terminated.
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The health care service or treatment that is the subject of the

adverse determination shall be continued without liability to

the covered person until the covered person has been

notified of the determination by the health carrier with

respect to the internal review request made pursuant to

chapter 26.1-36.8.

M

For retfrospective review determinations, a health
carrier shall make the determination within a
reasonable period of time but in no event later than

thirty days after the date of receiving the benefit
request.

If the determination is an adverse determination, the
health carrier shall provide notice of the adverse
determination to the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative in accordance with
subsection 8.

The time period for making a determination and
notifying the coveted person or the covered person's
authorized representative of the determination
pursuant to subdivision a may be extended one time
by the health carrier for up to fifteen days. provided
the health carrier:

{a) Determines that an extension is necessary due
to matters beyond the health_carrier's control;
and

{b) Notifies the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative prior to the
expiration of the initial thirty-day time period of
the circumstances requiring the extension of
time and the date by which the health carrier
expects to make a determination.

If the extension under paragraph 1 is necessary due
to the failure of the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative to submit
information necessary to reach a determination on the
request, the notice of extension shall:

(@) Specifically describe the required information
necessary to complete the request; and
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(b)  Give the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative at least
forty-five days from the date of receipt of the
notice to provide the specified information.

For purposes of calculating the time periods within which a
determination is required to be made under subsections 2

and 4 _the time period within which the determination is
required to be made shall begin on the date the request is
received by the health carrier in accordance with the health
carrier's procedures established pursuant to section 26.1-
36.7-05 for filing a request without regard to whether all of
the information necessary to make the determination
accompanies the filing.

(1)  Ifthe time period for making the determination under
subsection 2 or 4 is extended due to the covered
person's or the covered person's authorized
representative's failure to submit the information
necessary to make the determination, the time period
for making the determination shall be tolled from the
date on which the health carrier sends the notification
of the extension to the covered person or the covered
person's authorized representative until the earlier of:

{a) The date on which the covered person or the
covered person's authorized representative
responds to the request for additional
information; or

(b}  The date on which the specified information
was to have been submitted.

(2) if the covered person or the covered person's
authorized representative fails to submit the
information before the end of the period of the
extension, as specified in subsection 2 or 4, the
health carrier may deny the certification of the
requested benefit.

A notification of an adverse determination under this section
shall, in @ manner calculated to be understood by the
covered person, set forth:

(1) Information sufficient to identify the benefit request or
.claim involved, including the date of service, if
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